
 

 

 

Public Facilities and Safety Committee 

Beaufort County, SC 
NO EARLIER THAN Council Chambers, Administration Building Beaufort County Government 

Robert Smalls Complex 100 Ribaut Road, Beaufort 

Monday, January 22, 2024 
NO SOONER THAN 3:00 PM 

AGENDA 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS: 
         BLOGAN CUNNINGHAM, CHAIRMAN                           DAVID P. BARTHOLOMEW, VICE-CHAIRMAN 
                  THOMAS REITZ                                                             PAULA BROWN                                                                                                     
                  ANNA MARIA TABERNIK                                            JOSEPH F. PASSIMENT, EX-OFFICIO 
 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. PUBLIC NOTIFICATION OF THIS MEETING HAS BEEN PUBLISHED, POSTED, AND DISTRIBUTED IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE SOUTH CAROLINA FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES - November 27, 2023 & December 11, 2023 

6. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD- 15 MINUTES TOTAL  

Anyone who wishes to speak during the Citizen Comment portion of the meeting will limit their 
comments and speak no longer than three (3) minutes. Speakers will address Council in a respectful 
manner appropriate to the decorum of the meeting, refraining from the use of profane, abusive, or 
obscene language. In accordance with Beaufort County's Rules and Procedures, giving of a speaker's 
time to another is not allowed. 

7. ASSISTANT COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORT- Jared Fralix 

8. 2018 ONE CENT TRANSPORTATION SALES TAX UPDATE 
 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 

9. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF CONTRACT AWARD TO APAC ATLANTIC, INC. OF SAVANNAH, GA, FOR IFB # 
042523HXD TAXIWAY F REHABILITATION AND CONSTRUCTION PROJECT ($3,488,760) (FISCAL IMPACT: 
This project will be funded by an FAA grant (90%) and an SC Aeronautics grant (10%). Initial funds will 
be drawn from GL account 5402-90-0000-57130) - Jon Rembold, Airport Director 

1



County Council Agenda – Beaufort County, SC 

10. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF WORK AUTHORIZATION 2119-2302 TO TALBERT, BRIGHT, AND ELLINGTON 
(TBE) FOR CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION AND FAA-MANDATED RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE 
SERVICES (FISCAL IMPACT: Total value of work authorization shall not exceed $154,883.00. This project 
will be funded by an FAA grant (90%) and a SCAC grant (10%. Funds will be drawn from 5402-90-0000-
57130) - Jon Rembold, Airport Director 

11. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF WORK AUTHORIZATION 2119-2304 TO TALBERT, BRIGHT, AND ELLINGTON 
(TBE) TO PREPARE AN ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT IN SUPPORT OF THE ST. JAMES BAPTIST CHURCH 
PROJECT ($366,816) (FISCAL IMPACT: The total value of this work authorization shall not exceed 
$366,816.00. This project will be funded by a future grant (90%). The final 10% will be paid with airport 
funds and/or SCAC grant funds. Funds will be drawn from 5402-90-0000-57130) - Jon Rembold, Airport 
Director 

12. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT AWARD TO BEAUFORT CONSTRUCTION OF SC, LLC. FOR IFB 
#101823 M.C. RILEY POOL ENCLOSURE & CLIMATE CONTROL ($2,002,000) (FISCAL IMPACT: Contract 
award in the amount of $2,002,000.00 with a $200,200.00 contingency fund for a total of $2,202,200.00. 
Funding comes from Parks and Recreation Capital Fund, 1040-80-1600-54420. Current account balance 
is $3,956,064.35) - Eric Larson, Capital Projects Director 

13. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO 
ENTER INTO A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH THE SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
(SCDOT) FOR PROPERTY LOCATED UNDER THE CROSS ISLAND PARKWAY ADJACENT TO THE BROAD CREEK 
BOAT LANDING PARCEL 552 010 000 0650 0000 (FISCAL IMPACT: N/A) - Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County 
Administrator, Infrastructure 

14. RECOMMEND APPROVAL  OF A REQUEST TO PURCHASE (1) NEW CAT MODEL: 926 SMALL WHEEL LOADER 
(FISCAL IMPACT: $224,402.59) - Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, Infrastructure 

15. RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD TO EUROVIA ATLANTIC DBA BLYTHE FOR IFB #011224E YEAR 7 
RESURFACING PROJECT (FISCAL IMPACT: $5,036,574.54) - Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County 
Administrator, Infrastructure 

16. RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO AWARD TRANSYSTEMS WITH YEAR 7 RESURFACING CONSTRUCTION 
MANAGEMENT AND CEI ($196,672.20) (FISCAL IMPACT: Transystems bid total of $163,893.50, with a 
20% contingency of $32,778.70, for a project cost of $196,672.20. The funding for this project is CTC 
Infrastructure account number 2343-30-0000-54500, with a balance of $15,808,966.86)  - Jared Fralix, 
P.E., Assistant County Administrator, Infrastructure 

17. RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO AWARD A SOLE SOURCE CONTRACT TO PAVEMENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC. 
FOR YEAR 7 REJUVENATOR (FISCAL IMPACT: The contract fee is for materials and construction in the 
amount of $172,259.94. Staff recommends a 10% contingency of $17,225.99, bringing the project's total 
cost to $198,485.93. The funding for this project will be from CTC Infrastructure account number 2343-
30-0000-54500 with a balance of $15,808,966.86) - Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, 
Infrastructure 

18. RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO AWARD A SOLE SOURCE CONTRACT TO SLURRY PAVERS, INC. FOR 7-YEAR 
PAVEMENT PRESERVATION ($632,551.87) (FISCAL IMPACT: The contract fee is for materials and 
construction in the amount of $527,126.56. Staff recommends a 20% contingency of $105,425.31, 
bringing the project's total cost to $632,551.87. The funding for this project will be CTC Infrastructure 
account number 2343-30-0000-54500 with a balance of $15,808,966.86) - Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant 
County Administrator, Infrastructure 

19. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A CONTRACT AWARD TO i2 RECYCLE FOR RFP #102423 - RECYCLABLES, 
PROCESSING, AND MARKETING FOR BEAUFORT COUNTY ($1,129,618) (FISCAL IMPACT: This is a unit rate 
contract. The estimated cost for the contract is $1,129,618.  A certain amount from FY24 and a certain 

2



County Council Agenda – Beaufort County, SC 

amount from FY25 will be budgeted for FY25 under disposal services. The current funding account is 
5010-90-1340-5116) - Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, Infrastructure 

20. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE MILITARY ENHANCEMENT PLAN FUND 
GRANT FROM THE SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS’ AFFAIRS FOR THE AMOUNT OF 
$3,392,328 FOR THE LAUREL BAY ROAD PATHWAY PROJECT (FISCAL IMPACT: The grant is an 80/20 
match: 80% from SCDVA and 20% Local Match. The grant award is for a total of $3,392,328 that will be 
deposited in the 2018 One Cent Transportation Sales Tax account 4705-80-0000-43765 and used for the 
Laurel Bay Road Pathway project. With a total project cost, plus contingency equaling $4,950,940.79, 
the County’s match is $1,558,612.79 from account number 4705-80-0000-54500) - Jared Fralix, P.E., 
Assistant County Administrator, Infrastructure 

21. RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD TO IPW CONSTRUCTION GROUP FOR IFB #120123E LAUREL BAY RD 
PATHWAY PROJECT (FISCAL IMPACT: $4,125,783.99funding for this project will be South Carolina 
Veterans’ Affairs Military Enhancement Grant for $3,392,328 and the remainder from the 2018 One Cent 
Sales Tax – Sidewalks and Multi-Use Pathways account number 4705-80-0000-54500 with a balance of 
$17,735,384.) - Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, Infrastructure 

22. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF CONTRACT AWARD TO NIX CONSTRUCTION CO. INC. FOR IFB #101023 
OKATIE RIVER PARK (FISCAL IMPACT: $2,922,403.00) - Eric Larson, PE, Director, Capital Projects  

23. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE FOR A 2024 TRANSPORTATION SALES AND USE TAX 
REFERENDUM (FISCAL IMPACT: If approved by Council and the electorate, the county will levy and 
impose a one percent (1%) sales and use tax throughout the entire county for fifteen (15) years or until 
the county raises $1.625 billion in revenue, whichever occurs first) - Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County 
Administrator, Infrastructure 

24. ADJOURNMENT 

TO WATCH COMMITTEE OR COUNTY COUNCIL MEETINGS OR FOR A COMPLETE LIST OF AGENDAS AND 
BACKUP PACKAGES, PLEASE VISIT: 

https://beaufortcountysc.gov/council/council-committee-meetings/index.html 

3

https://beaufortcountysc.gov/council/council-committee-meetings/index.html


 

 

 

Public Facilities and Safety Committee 

Beaufort County, SC 
Council Chambers, Administration Building Beaufort County Government Robert Smalls 

Complex 100 Ribaut Road, Beaufort 

Monday, November 27, 2023 
3:00 PM 

MINUTES 

Watch the video stream available on the County's website to hear the Council’s discussion of a specific topic or 
the complete meeting. https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/281858 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Committee Chairman Cunningham called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 
PRESENT 

 Chairman Logan Cunningham 
 Vice-Chairman David P. Bartholomew 
 Council Member Paula Brown 
 Council Member York Glover  
 Council Member Alice Howard 
 Council Member Lawrence McElynn 
 Council Member Joseph F. Passiment 
 Council Member Thomas Reitz 
 Council Member Anna Maria Tabernik 

ABSENT 
Council Member Gerald Dawson 
Council Member Mark Lawson 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 Committee Chairman Cunningham led the Pledge of Allegiance.  

3. FOIA 

 Committee Chairman Cunningham noted that public notification of this meeting had been published, 
posted, and distributed in compliance with the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act.  

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Passiment, seconded by Council Member Glover, to approve 
the agenda. 

The Vote – The motion was approved without objection.  

4

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/281858


County Council Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Tabernik, seconded by Council Member Howard, to approve 
the minutes of September 25, 2023, and October 23, 2023. 

The Vote – The motion was approved without objection.  

6. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 

No citizen comments.  

7. UPDATE FROM ASSISTANT COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR - PRESENTATION ON THE REIMAGINE RIBAUT 
ROAD PROJECT   

Please watch the video stream available on the County’s website to view the full discussion.   

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/281858?ts=91 

Assistant County Administrator Fralix:   

 Successfully closed on the Oldfield property the week before Thanksgiving. Will put out an RFQ for 
the design.  

 Public Works – put out a recycling contract; in the RFQ, asked the provider to tell the County what 
they can provide; received 4 quotes and in negotiations with the most qualified vendor.  

 Hilton Head Airport – had meeting with FAA in September; had a MOU amendment and brought the 
St. James Baptist church into the amendment – was approved by the County, Town and Church; need 
to carry out an environmental assessment/go through the NEPA process. Also bringing in a consultant 
to see what the church building should look like.  

 Transportation - Windmill Harbor Signal – the signal has been fully implemented; received approval 
from DOT to add the protected left turn signal and the advance flashing beacon. Still need to go 
through design and encroachment permitting. 3 to 4 months for design, permitting and construction.  

 170 near term project going on right now.  

 Triangle Project. Held a coordination meeting on signals in the corridor 462, Argent and 268 – 
Hardeeville, Beaufort County, DOT and engineers.  

 Sales Tax Committee – hard at work for past 6 weeks. Working toward providing recommendations 
in December.  

Council Member Howard: asked about the MRF and yard waste/scope. Fralix: yard waste was not 
included; would be the recyclables – plastics, cans, cardboard, mixed paper, etc. Not all the municipalities 
have contracts for curbside.  

Council Member Glover and Fralix discussed waste management and the contract with waste 
management – taking waste to landfill.  

Committee Chairman Cunningham: question about the MRF, did we already put money aside for the 
actual project? Fralix: yes have ARPA and Geo-Bond Funds. Cunningham: if we decide not to do the MRF, 
can we use those funds or do we need to come up with new funding? Fralix: there may be some recycling 
improvements on the convenience centers that we may want to use some of that funding for, but the rest 
of the funding could reallocated to a different project. Cunningham: is the light on Hilton Head a warning 
signal? Fralix: it will be a warning signal. Cunningham: 170 temporary project; know it closes off the turn 
on Okatie Boulevard North, but does it also include the funding to build the road behind those businesses 
or is that in the long term plan? Fralix: that would be part of the long term plan. 

ACA Fralix – Reimagine Ribaut Road Update:  

 Joint project with Beaufort County, City of Beaufort and Town of Port Royal.  

5

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/281858?ts=91


County Council Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

 Overview of the Boundary Street masterplan. Conceived thorough that was a gateway entrance to 
the City of Beaufort. Got started in 2005; Boundary Street finished in 2019. Background of design, 
bidding, and construction process.  

 Doing a master plan for the street itself and moving that into design.  

 Trying to solve safety issues – safety with access management.  

 Ribaut Road: Boundary Street to Russel Bell Bridge; have a lot of different needs on the road – 
residential and commercial. Want to make sure have mode of access for all users – vehicles, 
pedestrian and bicyclists.  

 Six advisory committee meetings. Joint staff committee meeting made up of Beaufort County, Town 
of Beaufort and Town of Port Royal staff. Met on biweekly coordination calls.  

 Online engagement – 1171 responses. 3 major in-person outreach events/meetings, including a three 
day design workshop.  

 Data on number of wreaks; looked at type of crashes along the road and where the hotspots for 
accidents were. Did traffic counts and looked at historical volumes (last 20 years).  

 Sidewalk width – have 5 feet and most today start at 6 feet with multi-use being 8 feet. Also want to 
create some separation to encourage pedestrian traffic (grass/planted medium between curb and 
pathway).  

 Recommendations:  
o Intersection of Boundary Street and Ribaut Road – two-lane roundabout or an improve 

signalized intersection. Seeking input from the three entities, will finanlize report with 
updated recommendation after input from all is received.  

o Boundary to Depot Street – trying to address safety and speeding; propose to reduce the four 
lane section to a three lane section – two directors and open medium and add a roundabout 
at Bay Street because skewed intersection. 

o Depot Street to Reynolds Street: Bay street and Reynolds street would have roundabouts; 
would provide a safe movement in and out of TCL. Reduction to three lanes would also 
provide some space for a grass medium for pedestrian and bike pathways.  

o Reynolds Street to Allison Road: goes to five lanes and will stay five lanes to Bell Bridge. Added 
pedestrian accommodation in front of Beaufort Memorial Hospital and a free flow turn lane. 
5 foot pathway on one side and 10 foot pathway on other.  

o Allison Road to Mossy Oaks Road. 
o Mossy Oaks Boulevard to Lady’s Island Drive: focusing on accommodating the heavy right turn 

– would create a free flow right turn, don’t have to wait for signal.  
o Lady’s Island Drive to Paris Avenue: improved pedestrian crossing at Pinckney Boulevard.  
o Paris Avenue to Russel Bell Bridge: extension of the median to address traffic turn lane issues.  

 Walked through the section of the roads and outlined the road projects that would be carried out, 
including the addition of roundabouts and free flow turn lanes.  

 Statement piece for entry into Port Royal; could help slow people down.  

 Costs: 44,800,000 total project – split it up into different sections. Cost to bury the utilities would be 
16,950,000 – it is a high cost but has resilience and aesthetic benefits. Complete total is around 60 
million – if wait to do project, the cost will grow. 

Council Member Tabernik: did not seem to be a lot of pushback at the Port Royal meeting, was some 
pushback at the City of Beaufort meeting. What happened there? Fralix: at Beaufort – provided the same 
presentation and took public comments. Pushback on the proposal.   

Council Member Howard: one of the biggest concerns was about service vehicles and first responses to 
the houses (amazon, garbage trucks) if go down to a single lane. Fralix: the three lane plan was what got 
90% of the comments at the City of Beaufort meeting. Port Royal just wanted their intersection fixed. 

6

Item 5.



County Council Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

Council Member Bartholomew: how does the boundary street roundabout match up with the other 
lighted intersections. Fralix: would need to be in connection with Marsh in front of starbucks because 
don’t want backup. Would look at that in the design phase. Bartholomew: why not addressing the Lady’s 
Island Drive intersection in its entirety? Fralix: it is a 15 to 20 million dollar project for the intersection. 
Separated grade intersections. Starts having more impact outside of Ribaut Road because interacting with 
more land. Bartholomew: would it be more cost effective to incorporate it now with this proposal? Fralix: 
its so big in itself that it deserves its full attention; have a separate project with funding set up through 
LATS (not fully funded) – have engineer working on conceptual design – will be brought forward separately 
but may run concurrently to Ribaut project.  

Committee Chairman Cunningham asked if the Port Royal section should be done first. Fralix: would do 
the design and the NEPA on the entire project and then depending on funding, would decide if need to 
phase it and may make sense to start on the southern end. Cunningham asked about easement and right 
aways. Fralix: on sections that are five lanes, the major right of way is the 10 foot pathway on the hospital 
side; may be on one side only; still determining because need to get to the surveying phases (beyond 
design). Cunningham: would the possible transportation sales tax be a funding source for this? Fralix: a 
large portion of it would be and would also look for other funding opportunities; project woud be partially 
funded by sales tax.  

Fralix: will go back to design engineers with comments and will make another rendition of the proposed 
plan and come back to provide an update and seek adoption.  

Council Member Glover asked about the roundabout on Sam’s Point Road and if it has reduced accidents. 
Fralix: it’s a large roundabout so would be similar to the one put in at Boundary street; others would be 
smaller, one lane roundabout. DOT should have that data so would be able to use that as a guide.  

 

8. RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO AWARD INFRASTRUCTURE CONSULTING AND ENGINEERING THE DESIGN 
CONTRACT FOR MIDTOWN DRIVE CONNECTOR ROAD (FISCAL IMPACT: $188,370 The contract fee is 
$163,800. Staff recommends a 15% contingency of $24,570, bringing the project budget to $188,370. 
The funding for this project is Capital Funds approved in the 2022/41 Budget Amendment Ordinance – 
account 1040-20-1243-54500 with a balance of $232,640.21)  

Please watch the video stream available on the County’s website to view the full discussion.   

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/281858?ts=3359 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Howard, seconded by Council Member Tabernik, to 
recommend approval to award Infrastructure Consulting and Engineering the design contract for Midtown 
Drive Connector Road. 

Discussion: Council Member Howard noted that the Midtown Drive Connector Road project has been 
needed to improve traffic flow, but that funding was not previously available.  

ACA Fralix provided an overview of the Town of Port Royal’s 2017 traffic study and the three routes that 
were explored. ACA Fralix explained that the routes were still valid alternatives and the chose of extending 
Midtown Drive.  

The Vote – The motion was approved without objection.  

9. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION FOR MATCHING FUNDS FOR BEAUFORT COUNTY’S 
PORTION OF THE LOCAL MATCH FOR THREE PLANNING STUDIES THROUGH LOWCOUNTRY AREA 
TRANSPORTATION STUDY (LATS) AND THE APPROVAL OF THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDINGS 
(MOU) WITH LATS FOR EACH OF THE THREE PLANNING STUDIES (FISCAL IMPACT: The match for the 
Bluffton Parkway’s study will come from 2000 Bluffton impact fees professional services account 2300-
30-0000-51160 with a balance of $7,331,998.85. The match for the SC315/SC 46’s study and the 

7

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/281858?ts=3359


County Council Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

Northern Transit Study will come from TAG funds professional services account 2342-30-0000-51160 
with a balance of $1,558,409.65) 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Tabernik, seconded by Council Member Brown, to recommend 
approval of a resolution for matching funds for Beaufort County’s portion of the local match for three 
planning studies through Lowcountry Area Transportation Study (LATS) and the approval of the 
Memorandum of Understandings (MOU) with LATS for each of the three planning studies. 

The Vote – The motion was approved without objection.  

10. A PRESENTATION TO COUNTY COUNCIL ON THE COMPREHENSIVE BOAT LANDING STUDY  

Capital Projects Director Larson commented that the Comprehensive Boat Landing Study began in 
October 2021 and involved consultants from Creech & Associates. Director Larson explained that the 
study focused on an inventory of the existing landings, the future expansion of landings throughout the 
county, and the economic impact of boating on the community. Director Larson added that the report 
from the study includes the assessment of and required repairs for existing landings, operations manual, 
master plan recommendations, and cost analysis of future improvements.  

Please watch the video stream available on the County’s website to view the full discussion.   

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/281858?ts=3670 

Michael Supino, the project manager with Creech & Associations:  

 Project kicked off in 2021 and focused on five main components, looked at: individual landing 
assessments; standards operation manual; master planning study (master plan) of the county boat 
landings; economic impact of boating in the County; and capital planning to help fund some of these 
projects. 

 Community involvement – 5 public charettes and online survey. Looked at 28 sites – mix of boat 
landings and fishing piers.  

 Project took a year and a half. Started by getting an advisory committee together. Then three activities 
running in parallel: site assessments, online surveys/public engagement meetings, and coordination 
with county departments to see if any overlap.  

Craig Pawlyk of JGT Engineering:  

 Provided an overview of the individual site assessments – looked at the uplands (parking, drainage, 
grating, looking for erosion/barrier free access, ADA parking) and the marine structures themselves 
(boat ramps, queuing docks, the floating docks, etc.). Altered public works about health and safety 
issues immediately.  

 Standards operations manual (categories including standard operation practices/operational 
considerations at landing and piers, environmental management, uniform standard of signage, 
maintenance program and site file for each individual facility with all documentation/information, 
establish inspection frequently – weekly or biweekly) --- recommendations for maintaining the 
county’s assets.  

Mr. Supino:  

 County Boating Master Plan. Information gathered, analysis conducted, and recommendations 
proposed. Establishing zones or areas of interest for where folks are traveling most on your waterways 
– where they departed from and were headed to. Recommendations – some zones that did not have 
enough landings, so need new landings in specific zones. Also introduced idea of efficiency. Studied 
the different landings and organized recommendations by priority. Provided an overview a few of the 
recommendations in high (collaboration with other departments, low or no land acquisition costs, 
proximity to zones of deficiency), medium (minimal land acquisition costs, elevated development 

8

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/281858?ts=3670


County Council Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

costs), and low (most expensive development costs, proximity to zones of interest, decision to not 
advance these options) priority. Focused on the high and medium priority solutions. Provided 
examples.  

 Economic impact. Over 18,000 registered voters, so economic impact can be substantial. Revenue 
from boaters – hotels, restaurants, repair activities. Would get increased capacity at landings so more 
boater spending. Discussed the types of economic impacts – direct, indirect, and induced. Average 
trip cost in 2022 was $256 (fuel, grocery, restaurants, lodging). Overall spending in 2022 was 48.8 
million – 35 million from direct, 5 million from indirect and 8.3 million from induced. Tax revenue 
created was almost 4 million in 2022. Could generate another 3.9 million annually if repair and 
enhance existing landings.  

 Capital Planning – the total funding for the existing boat landing repair costs and the county master 
plan costs would be around $24 million. Provided overview of funding options.  

Council Member Passiment asked if site files were already being implemented. Mr. Supino commented 
that Public Works Desai is continuing to gather all the necessary information to ensure a comprehensive 
analysis of the boat landings.  

Council Member Howard asked about titles for the boat landings.  

Council Member Glover and Mr. Supino discussed the number of local residents and tourists that visit the 
boat landings.  

11. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF CONTRACT AWARD TO O’QUINN MARINE CONSTRUCTION FOR IFB 
#110123 SPANISH MOSS TRAIL BATTERY CREEK BRIDGE REPAIR PHASE 2 (FISCAL IMPACT: $605,000. 
Funding to come from an A-Tax Grant 2001-10-0000-55000 Current account balance is $3,142,240.64 
with $609,464 budgeted for this project)  

Please watch the video stream available on the County’s website to view the full discussion.   

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/281858?ts=5601 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Passiment, seconded by Council Member Howard, to 
recommend approval of contract award to O’Quinn Marine Construction for IFB #110123 Spanish Moss 
Trail Battery Creek Bridge Repair Phase 2.  

Discussion: Council Member Glover and Director Larson discussed the bidders for the projects and how 
O’Quinn Marine Construction was the more competitive option.  

The Vote – The motion was approved without objection.  

12. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF CONTRACT AWARD TO PARAGON BUILDERS FOR IFB #090823 
BUCKWALTER RECREATION CENTER GENERATOR (FISCAL IMPACT: $409,420.00 Funding comes from 
Parks and Recreation Capital Fund account number 1040-80-1600-54200)  

Please watch the video stream available on the County’s website to view the full discussion.   

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/281858?ts=5672 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Passiment, seconded by Council Member Tabernik, to 
recommend approval of contract award to Paragon Builders for IFB #090823 Buckwalter Recreation 
Center Generator. 

Discussion: Committee Chairman Cunningham asked if the State of South Carolina would provide some 
funding reimbursement since the project is for the National Guard. Director Larson explained that FEMA’s 
grants programs do not offer reimbursements, since the County would have to apply before work on the 
project starts. Director Larson added that the project is within the County’s budget.  

The Vote – The motion was approved without objection.  

9

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/281858?ts=5601
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/281858?ts=5672


County Council Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

13. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
TO ENTER INTO A LEASE AGREEMENT FOR REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 39 AIRPORT CIRCLE WITH CINDY 
HOLLMAN (FISCAL IMPACT: Beaufort Executive Airport will receive monthly income generated through 
lease revenue – Tenant shall pay $69.30 (42 sq ft x $19.80/12) in monthly base lease payments for 
premises located at the Beaufort Executive Airport terminal. Annual Expected Revenue increase: 
$831.60. These lease rates are in accordance with current Beaufort County lease policies)  

Please watch the video stream available on the County’s website to view the full discussion.   

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/281858?ts=5790 

Motion: It was moved by Committee Vice-Chairman Bartholomew, seconded by Council Member Brown, 
to recommend approval of an ordinance authorizing the Interim County Administrator to enter into a 
lease agreement for real property located at 39 Airport Circle with Cindy Hollman. 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Tabernik, seconded by Committee Vice-Chairman 
Bartholomew, to take 13 and 14 together. 

Discussion: Council Member McElynn asked for an overview of the statutory requirements for an 
ordinance and public hearing when entering into a lease agreement. County Attorney Keaveny added that 
the County has carried out leases through ordinances since 1989.  

The Vote – The motion was approved without objection.  

14. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 
TO ENTER INTO A LEASE AGREEMENT FOR REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 39 AIRPORT CIRCLE WITH MATT 
ARCHER (FISCAL IMPACT: Beaufort Executive Airport will receive monthly income generated through 
lease revenue – Tenant shall pay $69.30 (42 sq ft x $19.80/12) in monthly base lease payments for 
premises located at the Beaufort Executive Airport terminal. Annual Expected Revenue increase: 
$831.60. These lease rates are in accordance with current Beaufort County lease policies)  

 Items 13 and 14 were approved as a package.  

15. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE NATIONAL AIRPORTS CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (ACIP) THIS IS AN 
INFORMATIONAL UPDATE TO BRIEF COUNCIL ON THE BEAUFORT EXECUTIVE AIRPORT LIST  

Please watch the video stream available on the County’s website to view the full discussion.   

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/281858?ts=6124 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Passiment, seconded by Vice-Chairman Bartholomew, to take 
agenda items 15 and 16 together to recommend approval of the National Airports Capital Improvement 
Plan (ACIP).  

Discussion: Airports Director Rembold provided the annual update on the Airports Capital Improvement 
Plan, including collaboration with the FAA on project planning and the funding plan for projects. Director 
Rembold noted that specific projects would be brought before Council for approval.  

Council Member Howard and Director Rembold discussed the lack of adequate runoff space and the 
planned establishment of an extended runway safety area to meet FAA requirements. Director Rembold 
added that the projected timeline and reimbursement for the project is 2027.  

Committee Chairman Cunningham asked if there was an estimate for the economic impact that airport 
improvements would have. Director Rembold commented on a 2020 economic impact study and 
explained that increased modernization could lead to increased revenue.  

The Vote – The motion was approved without objection.  

10

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/281858?ts=5790
https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/281858?ts=6124


County Council Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

16. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE NATIONAL AIRPORTS CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (ACIP) THIS IS AN 
INFORMATIONAL UPDATE TO BRIEF COUNCIL ON THE HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT LIST  

 Items 15 and 16 were approved as a package.  

17. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION FOR COMMISSIONED PUBLIC WORKS CODE ENFORCEMENT 
OFFICERS  

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Glover, seconded by Council Member Passiment, to 
recommend approval of a resolution for commissioned public works code enforcement officers. 

The Vote – The motion was approved without objection.  

18. AN ORDINANCE CONVEYING AN EASEMENT LOCATED ON A PORTION OF REAL PROPERTY AT 55 

GARDNER DRIVE TO THE TOWN OF HILTON HEAD ISLAND 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Tabernik, seconded by Council Member Brown, to recommend 

approval of an ordinance conveying an easement located on a portion of real property at 55 Gardner Drive 

to the Town of Hilton Head Island.  

The Vote – The motion was approved without objection.  

19. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT WITH BEAUFORT-JASPER WATER 
SEWER AUTHORITY AND THE TOWN OF BLUFFTON TO JOINTLY FUND THE INSTALLATION OF SEWER 
FACILITIES IN THE STONEY CREEK AREA FOR THE PURPOSE OF PREVENTING FURTHER CONTAMINATION 
OF THE MAY RIVER HEADWATERS (FISCAL IMPACT: $1,250,000.00)  

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Passiment, seconded by Council Member Howard, to 
recommend approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement with Beaufort-Jasper Water Sewer Authority 
and the Town of Bluffton to jointly fund the installation of sewer facilities in the Stoney Creek Area for the 
purpose of preventing further contamination of the May River Headwaters. 

The Vote – The motion was approved without objection. 

20. RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO AUTHORIZE THE INTERIM ADMINISTRATOR TO NEGOTIATE AND ENTER 
INTO A CONTRACT WITH LOWCOUNTRY FERRY, LLC FOR THE PROVISION OF FERRY SERVICES TO AND 
FROM DAUFUSKIE ISLAND (FISCAL IMPACT: $250,000 in this budget year from General Fund 
Balance. $365,000 annually beginning in the new budget year) 

Please watch the video stream available on the County’s website to view the full discussion.   

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/281858?ts=6750 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Passiment, seconded by Council Member Howard, to 
recommend approval to authorize the Interim County Administrator to negotiate and enter into a contract 
with Lowcountry Ferry, LLC for the provision of ferry services to and from Daufuskie Island. 

Discussion: Special Assistant to the County Administrator Amundson commented on the receipt of three 
proposals for the Daufuskie Island ferry services and the proposed contract with Lowcountry Ferry, LLC. 
Mr. Amundson also commented on the condemnation proceedings at Helmsman Way and Melrose 
Landing.  

Council Member Glover noted a request by Daufuskie Island residents for an additional ferry run in the 
late afternoon or evening. Mr. Amundson said that the additional ferry run could be part of the contract 
negotiation.  

Committee Chairman Cunningham and Mr. Amundson discussed the funding source and budgeting 
process for covering the ferry service and related expenses.  

11

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/281858?ts=6750


County Council Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

The Vote – The motion was approved without objection.  

21. ADJOURNMENT 

Adjourned: 4:58 p.m. 

Ratified:   

 

12

Item 5.



 

 

 

Special Called Meeting of the Public Facilities and Safety 
Committee 

Beaufort County, SC 
Council Chambers, Administration Building Beaufort County Government Robert Smalls 

Complex 100 Ribaut Road, Beaufort 

Monday, December 11, 2023 
4:00 PM 

MINUTES 

Watch the video stream available on the County's website to hear the Council’s discussion of a specific topic or 
the complete meeting. https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/285343 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Committee Chairman Cunningham called the meeting to order at 4:08 p.m. 
PRESENT 
Chairman Logan Cunningham 
Vice-Chairman David P. Bartholomew 
Council Member Paula Brown 
Council Member Gerald Dawson 
Council Member York Glover 
Council Member Alice Howard 
Council Member Lawrence McElynn 
Council Member Joseph F. Passiment 
Council Member Thomas Reitz 
Council Member Anna Maria Tabernik 
ABSENT 
Council Member Mark Lawson  

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 Committee Chairman Cunningham led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

3. FOIA 

 Committee Chairman Cunningham noted that public notification of this meeting had been published, 
posted, and distributed in compliance with the South Carolina Freedom of Information Act.  

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Passiment, seconded by Council Member Tabernik, to approve 
the agenda.  

13

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/285343


County Council Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

The Vote – The motion was approved without objection.  

5. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 

No citizen comments. 

 

6. RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE SALES TAX 
ADVISORY COMMITTEE (STAC) REGARDING CONSIDERATION OF A 2024 SALES TAX REFERENDUM 

Assistant County Administrator Fralix introduced Dean Moss, Chairman of the Sales Tax Advisory 
Committee (STAC). ACA Fralix noted that this year’s STAC had six members instead of last year’s seventeen 
members. ACA Fralix added that the STAC had very constructive discussions about the region as a whole 
and long-term planning.  

Please watch the video stream available on the County’s website to view the full discussion.  

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/285343?ts=227 

Dean Moss briefed the Committee on the STAC’s recommendations to the County Council, including a 
sales tax referendum in November 2024 for a one percent additional sales tax beginning in 2025 and 
extending for fifteen years and a standing Citizen’s Oversight Committee to assist the County Council and 
staff with the prioritization and implementation of projects. Mr. Moss noted that the tax proceeds would 
go towards a series of critical transportation and mobility projects vital to the health and safety of Beaufort 
County residents and visitors. Mr. Moss also provided an overview of the projects that could be supported 
with the sales tax funds, including large-scale projects like Reimagine Ribaut Road, Highway 170 
improvements, and Lady’s Island Corridor improvements and smaller-scale projects like mass transit, 
pedestrian and bike pathways, ferry service, and safety and traffic flow improvements.  

Council Member Glover and Mr. Moss discussed Chowan Creek Bridge as the endpoint for the Lady’s 
Island Corridor improvements.  

Council Member Dawson commented on the need to improve road conditions and pave dirt roads in rural 
areas. Mr. Moss commented that funds could be put toward road pavement and resurfacing projects, but 
those funds can only be used to pave County-owned roads.  

Council Member Glover highlighted the need for pedestrian and bicycle pathways.  

Council Member Howard commented on her appreciation of the emphasis on mass transit and the need 
for a master plan.  

Committee Chairman Cunningham asked if the projected $1.6 billion in sales tax revenue would be enough 
to complete the transportation projects. Mr. Moss replied that the funds should be able to cover the 
major projects since other funding sources are involved, but that the transportation needs and list of 
projects will continue to grow. Mr. Moss added that other areas, like Charleston, have decided on twenty-
five years instead of fifteen years for their sales tax. 

Committee Chairman Cunningham asked if the end of the Green Space Program’s sales tax should be 
considered and if the amount of the tax should be increased. Council Member Passiment commented that 
the Council has time to adjust the time and amount of the sales tax since there will be three readings and 
a public hearing before the referendum question is finalized for the November 2024 ballot.  

Council Member Glover and Mr. Moss discussed how the money provided through the sales tax could 
help leverage state and federal funds.  

Committee Vice-Chairman Bartholomew and ACA Fralix discussed the funding available for the Lady’s 
Island Corridor improvements.  

14

Item 5.

https://beaufortcountysc.new.swagit.com/videos/285343?ts=227


County Council Minutes – Beaufort County, SC 

Motion: It was moved by Council Member Tabernik, seconded by Council Member Glover, to recommend 
approval of a resolution to adopt the recommendations of the Sales Tax Advisory Committee (STAC) 
regarding consideration of a 2024 Sales Tax Referendum.  

The Vote – The motion was approved without objection. 

7. ADJOURNMENT 

 Adjourned: 4:48 p.m. 

Ratified:   

 

15

Item 5.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

2018 One Cent Transportation Sales Tax Update 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities and Safety Committee – January 22, 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, Assistant County Administrator - Infrastructure 

Brittanee Bishop, Program and Finance Manager 

(10 mins) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

In 2018, the citizens of Beaufort County voted to impose a 4 year, $120M referendum for transportation 
projects. The projects are as follows: 

US 278 Corridor Traffic Improvements  

Lady’s Island Corridor Traffic Improvements  

Sidewalks and Multi-Use Pathways  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

An update on the projects associated with the 2018 One Cent Transportation Sales Tax. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

N/A  

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

For information only. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

For information only. 

 

16

Item 8.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Recommend Approval of Contract Award to APAC Atlantic, Inc. of Savannah, GA, for IFB # 042523HXD 
Taxiway F Rehabilitation and Construction Project ($3,488,760)  

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Safety and Facilities Committee – January 22, 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jon Rembold, Airports Director 

5 minutes 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Council Resolution 2022/25 accepted FAA AIP Grant 47, which funded the design of the Taxiway project.  The 
design is complete, and an acceptable bid was received. The project is ready for award and construction. 

A total of one (1) bid for this project was received on May 3, 2023. APAC Atlantic was the only bidder. The 
County Purchasing Department, the project’s design team, and the FAA have completed the evaluation of the 
bid. Their bid is acceptable, and the project team recommends a contract award. 

The Airports Board reviewed this recommendation of contract award at its regular May 18, 2023, meeting 

and recommended approval.    

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Taxiway F Rehabilitation and Construction - The scope of the project is to strengthen Taxiway F, including 
all ancillary improvements such as markings, etc.  Taxiway F is the primary commercial airline taxiway and 
is, therefore, critical to the safe and efficient operation of the airport.  

Purchasing has not submitted a draft contract to Legal. This will occur after contract award. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

This project will be funded by an FAA grant (90%) and an SC Aeronautics Grant (10%). Initial funds will be 
drawn from GL Account 5402-90-0000-57130. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval of contract to APAC Atlantic, Inc. of Savannah, GA, for IFB # 042523HXD Taxiway F 
Rehabilitation and Construction Project at the Hilton Head Island Airport in the amount of $3,171,600.00 plus 
a 10% contingency for a total of $3,488,760.00. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny the contract award to APAC Atlantic, Inc. for IFB # 042523HXD Taxiway F 
Rehabilitation and Construction Project at the Hilton Head Island Airport in the amount of $3,171,600.00 plus 
a 10% contingency for a total of $3,488,760.00 

Next Steps: Move forward to Council for Approval on February 12, 2024 

 

17

Item 9.



HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT (HXD) 
PROGRAM NARRATIVE 

 
3-45-0030-XXX-2023 (BIL) 

 
 
Taxiway F Strengthening (Construction): The project includes construction and construction 
administration services for the strengthening of Taxiway F from 75,000 pounds dual wheel gear 
to 120,000 pounds dual wheel gear bearing capacity. The project will include the overlay of the 
existing runway, grooving of the overlay, new pavement markings, construct paved shoulders 
along the taxiway, required edge light adjustments, sediment/erosion control. 
 

Construction Administration Services (Talbert, Bright & Ellington) $154,883.00  
Construction (APAC-Atlantic, Inc.) $3,171,600.00  
TOTAL $3,326,483.00  
   
FAA BIL $2,993,835.00  
SCAC $332,648.00  
Local $0.00  
TOTAL $3,326,483.00 

 
 
Estimated Cost: $3,326,483.00 
 
FAA BIL Cost: $2,993,835.00 
 

Project Total Federal State Local 
Taxiway F Strengthening (Construction) $3,326,483.00  $2,993,835.00  $332,648.00  $0.00  

 

18

Item 9.



19

Item 9.



BID TABULATION
TAXIWAY 'F' STRENGTHENING
HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT
TBE PROJECT NO. 2119-2101
MAY 3, 2023

BASE BID
ITEM SPEC
NO. NO. DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT UNIT PRICE EXT. TOTAL UNIT PRICE EXT. TOTAL

1 C-100 CONTRACTOR QUALITY CONTROL PROGRAM (CQCP) 1 LS $95,000.00 $95,000.00 $75,000.00 $75,000.00
2 C-102 TEMPORARY FILTER SOCK 4,000 LF $5.10 $20,400.00 $4.00 $16,000.00
3 C-102 TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE 2 EA $5,000.00 $10,000.00 $3,000.00 $6,000.00
4 C-102 TEMPORARY FILTER SOCK INLET PROTECTION 6 EA $375.00 $2,250.00 $800.00 $4,800.00
5 C-105 MOBILIZATION 1 LS $312,000.00 $312,000.00 $230,800.00 $230,800.00
6 P-101 VARIABLE DEPTH COLD MILLING 5,000 SY $25.00 $125,000.00 $20.00 $100,000.00
7 P-101 CRACK REPAIR - WIDTH 1/4" TO 2" 5,000 LF $3.20 $16,000.00 $4.00 $20,000.00
8 P-101 CRACK REPAIR - WIDTH GREATER THAN 2" 100 LF $250.00 $25,000.00 $60.00 $6,000.00
9 P-152 SHOULDER BUILDUP 11,900 LF $3.00 $35,700.00 $20.00 $238,000.00
10 P-401 BITUMINOUS ASPHALT SURFACE COURSE 5,000 TN $430.00 $2,150,000.00 $235.00 $1,175,000.00
11 P-603 EMULSIFIED ASPHALT TACK COAT 4,100 GAL $6.00 $24,600.00 $4.00 $16,400.00
12 P-610 CONCRETE MANHOLE RIM PROTECTION 7 EA $12,650.00 $88,550.00 $800.00 $5,600.00
13 P-620 TEMPORARY MARKING 6,900 SF $4.50 $31,050.00 $3.00 $20,700.00
14 P-620 PAVEMENT MARKING (REFLECTORIZED) 6,900 SF $2.00 $13,800.00 $5.00 $34,500.00
15 P-620 PAVEMENT MARKING (NON-REFLECTORIZED BLACK) 10,800 SF $0.75 $8,100.00 $5.00 $54,000.00
16 HA HERBICIDE APPLICATION 1 LS $2,575.00 $2,575.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00
17 T-901 TEMPORARY SEEDING (MULCHED) 5 AC $1,695.00 $8,475.00 $1,600.00 $8,000.00
18 T-901 PERMANENT SEEDING (MULCHED) 4 AC $3,180.00 $12,720.00 $2,400.00 $9,600.00
19 T-904 PERMANENT BAHIA SOD 106,000 SF $1.08 $114,480.00 $8.00 $848,000.00
20 L-125 ADJUST EXISTING TAXIWAY LIGHT 33 EA $2,300.00 $75,900.00 $300.00 $9,900.00

TOTAL BASE BID AMOUNT $3,171,600.00 $2,883,300.00

DBE SUBCONTRACTOR AMOUNT $163,300.00 $0.00
DBE PERCENTAGE OF BASE BID AMOUNT 5.15% 0.00%

I HEREBY CERTIFY THIS TABULATION OF BIDS TO BE CORRECT.

5/3/2023
TALBER, BRIGHT & ELLINGTON, INC. DATE

LICENSE NO.:  12050

APAC-ATLANTIC, INC. ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE
SAVANNAH, GA

20

Item 9.



21

Item 9.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                                
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

ITEM TITLE: 

Recommendation to approve Talbert, Bright and Ellington (TBE) Work Authorization 2119-2302 for 

Construction Administration and FAA-mandated Resident Project Representative Services 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities & Safety Committee – January 22, 2024   

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jon Rembold, Airports Director  
5 minutes 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Council Resolution 2022/25 accepted FAA AIP Grant 47, which funded the design of the Taxiway project. The 
design is complete, and an acceptable bid was received. The project is ready for award and construction. This 
Work Authorization is a standard item that must accompany this type of grant-funded project. 

The Airports Board reviewed this Work Authorization at its regular May 18, 2023, meeting, and 
recommended approval.   

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Taxiway F Rehabilitation and Construction - The scope of the project is to strengthen Taxiway F, including 

all ancillary improvements such as markings, etc. 

TBE will provide construction phase consulting services for this project. This includes daily construction 
observation and reporting, Quality Assurance testing/reporting, and an as-built survey. 
TBE will also assist with/prepare grant closeout documentation required by the FAA for this project. 
These are all standard services required by the FAA grant process. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

The total value of this Work Authorization shall not exceed $154,883.00. This project will be funded by 
an FAA grant (90%) and a SCAC grant (10%). Funds will be drawn from 5402-90-0000-57130 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Approve Talbert, Bright and Ellington (TBE) Work Authorization 2119-2302 for Construction Administration 

and FAA-mandated Resident Project Representative services 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION:  

Motion to approve /deny Talbert, Bright, and Ellington (TBE) Work Authorization 2119-2302 for Construction 
Administration and FAA-mandated Resident Project Representative services 
Move forward to Council for Approval on February 5, 2024 

 

22

Item 10.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                                
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

ITEM TITLE: 

Recommendation to approve Talbert, Bright and Ellington (TBE) Work Authorization 2119-2304 to prepare an 

Environmental Assessment in support of the St. James Baptist Church Project. ($366,816) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities & Safety Committee – January 22, 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jon Rembold, Airports Director  
5 minutes 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

This property acquisition has been discussed for several years, and recent coordination with project 
stakeholders established the need to move forward in the project process. The initial step in the FAA 
eligibility process is this environmental assessment. 

The Airports Board reviewed this Work Authorization at its regular meeting on January 18, 2024, and 
recommended approval.   

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

St. James Baptist Church is located in the Runway Protection Zone (RPZ) of Hilton Head Island Airport. FAA 
safety regulations discourage the location of gathering places such as churches and schools in the RPZ. 
Acquisition of the property is a grant-eligible project per the FAA. To meet NEPA regulations, an 
environmental assessment must be completed. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

The total value of this Work Authorization shall not exceed $366,816.00. This project will be funded by a 
future FAA grant (90%). The final 10% will be paid with airport funds and/or SCAC grant funds. Funds will be 
drawn from 5402-90-0000-57130 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Approve Talbert, Bright and Ellington (TBE) Work Authorization 2119-2304. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION:  

Motion to approve /deny Talbert, Bright, and Ellington (TBE) Work Authorization 2119-2302 to prepare an 
Environmental Assessment in support of the St. James Baptist Church Project. 

 
Next Step: Move forward to Council for Approval on February 12, 2024 

 

23

Item 11.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2304 

1 

HILTON HEAD ISLAND AIRPORT 
HILTON HEAD ISLAND, SOUTH CAROLINA 

WORK AUTHORIZATION 23-04 
December 21, 2023 

PROJECT NO.: TBE NO. 2119-2304 
 
It is agreed to undertake the following work in accordance with the provisions of our Contract 
for Professional Services.  
 
 
Description of Work Authorized: St. James Baptist Church is located at 209 Dillon Road. 
The first of three buildings on the lot was constructed in 1886 as a missionary branch of the 
nearby First African Baptist Church; this building later burned at an unknown date. A 
subsequent church building was constructed and organized as the St. James Baptist Church, 
though it too later fell into disrepair and was demolished. The current St. James Baptist Church 
building was built in 1972 and substantially renovated in 2005. The Cherry Hill School is 
located at 210 Dillon Road and was constructed in 1934. The building is currently owned by 
the St. James Baptist Church, located directly across Dillon Road. In 1954, a larger public 
school was constructed for African-American children, and the St. James Baptist Church 
congregation purchased the school building in 1961 for use as a community gathering space. 
The Cherry Hill School is located within the boundary of the Mitchelville/Fish Haul 
archaeological site and was listed on the National Register of Historic Places (NRHP) on 
November 21, 2012. 
 
In addition, the St. James Baptist Church property meets the five requirements set forth in 
National Register Bulletin (NRB) 381 for significance as a Traditional Cultural Property (TCP). 
The church property is a tangible place, is important to the Gullah community today, has been 
important to the Gullah cultural group for over 100 years, and has definable boundaries (in 
this case, the current real property legal boundary). Although the St. James Baptist Church 
building does not retain integrity of design, materials, or workmanship due to modern 
alterations, the overall property retains its integrity of relationship and condition as a TCP. 
 
Over the years, the church has been asked several times to consider relocating from its current 
location to a site outside of the Runway 03/21 runway protection zone and approach and 
departure surfaces to Hilton Head Island Airport. To date, members of the congregation have 
refused to move. However, recently deacons of the church have approached both Beaufort 
County and the Town of Hilton Head Island in reference to moving their facility to site next 
to the Church’s cemetery on Union Church Road outside of the runway protection zone and 
approach and departure surfaces. This request to relocate the church was elevated by the 
congregation to the United States Secretary of Transportation. 
 

 
1U.S. Department of the Interior National Park Service Cultural Resources National Register, History and 
Education (1990; Revised 1992; 1998), “National Register Bulletin 38, Guidelines for Evaluating and 
Documenting Traditional Cultural Properties.”  

24

Item 11.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2304 

2 

This resulted in a visit to the church by the Associate Administrator of Airports for the Federal 
Aviation Administration (FAA) on September 8, 2023. Based on the visit and ongoing 
correspondence between Beaufort County, Town of Hilton Head Island, FAA and the church, 
environmental analysis of the relocation site will be included in the environmental 
documentation. 
 
This work authorization presents Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc.’s (TBE) scope of services 
relating to the preparation of an environmental assessment (EA) for the previously described 
project. 
 
In fulfilling this scope of work, numerous objectives will be achieved including environmental 
inventory, evaluation, and analysis; state, federal, and local agency coordination; draft and final 
environmental documentation; and a public workshop (if deemed necessary). The 
environmental documentation will be prepared in accordance with the National 
Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (NEPA), Council on Environmental Quality (CEQ), FAA 
Order 5050.4B, National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) Implementing Instructions for Airport 
Projects (April 28, 2006), FAA Order 1050.1F – Environmental Impacts: Policies and Procedures (July 
16, 2015), and 1050.1F Desk Reference (July 2015). The Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) 
has agreed to review and approve the documentation. 
 
It is the intent of this environmental assessment (EA) process to review no more than three 
build alternatives, in addition to the no build alternative. Determination of potential impacts 
to water quality, the unknown extent of wetlands or jurisdictional waters of the United States, 
impact on adjacent residential development from noise, and possible controversial 
development because of adjacent neighborhood, are issues that will be addressed during the 
preparation of this EA. 
 
The following tasks are required to achieve the aforementioned output. 
 
 
TASK 1: PROJECT MANAGEMENT 
 
Project goals and objectives will be determined through coordination and consultation with 
the COUNTY, in order to create a chart of activities and a milestone schedule. These two 
items will provide the COUNTY and TBE with a sequential scheme of events and the 
anticipated dates to achieve the project goals. 
 
ASSUMPTIONS: 

1. For budgeting purposes, it was assumed that the project should take 6 months to perform the 
necessary field work, not including review by resource and regulatory agencies and public review or 
coordination with the South Carolina State Historic Preservation office (SCSHPO) or Advisory 
Council on Historic Preservation (ACHP). 

2. If additional field work is required by the resource agencies (for example, a Phase II Cultural 
Resources Survey), the schedule below will be modified under a contract amendment. 

  

25

Item 11.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2304 

3 

 

Work Item Time (Days) Cumulative Time (Days) 
Notice to Proceed 0 0 
Scoping Meeting 1 1 
Field Work 45 46 
Document Preparation/In-house 
Review 

60 101 

FAA/Client Review TBD TBD 
Draft Document Finalization 30 131 

 
DELIVERABLES: 

1. A flow chart of activities and milestone schedule. 
2. Attendance at three (3) meetings, not including the public workshop and public information 

meetings or meeting with the SCSHPO or ACHP. 
 
A. PUBLIC INFORMATION MEETINGS – Public information meetings will be 

scheduled at the beginning of the project to inform the public of the purpose of the 
project and after the noise analysis has been completed. Each meeting will utilize an 
informal/open house format for a period of two hours to maximize the opportunity 
for interested citizens to participate. The meeting will be publicized via the Hilton 
Head Airport web site and media. TBE will provide handouts, display boards, sign-in 
sheets, and comment forms, as well as a recorder for oral comments. 

 
ASSUMPTIONS: 

1. Two (2) public information meetings will be conducted.  
2. Four (4) TBE team members will attend each meeting. 
3. Beaufort County will handle meeting logistics (location, advertising for meetings, etc.). 

 
DELIVERABLES: 

1. Handouts (200 per meeting for a total of 400), displays (maximum of 8, four (4 per 
meeting), sign-in sheets (one [1] set per meeting for a total of four [4]), comment forms (200 
per meeting for a total of 400). 

2. A summary of each meeting, copy of comments received, and transcript of recorded comments. 
 
 
TASK 2 SECTION 163 DETERMINATION 
 
TBE will prepare a Section 163 Determination in accordance with Section 163 of the FAA 
Reauthorization Act of 2018, which regulates the uses of properties acquired by airport 
sponsors using FAA funds. 
 
DELIVERABLE 
1. Electronic copies of the Section 163 Determination will be provided to the Beaufort County and FAA. 
 
  

26

Item 11.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2304 

4 

TASK 3: STATE, FEDERAL, AND LOCAL AGENCY COORDINATION 
 
Coordination will include ongoing public relation activities to ensure that the agencies are kept 
informed of the project’s progress. Activities to be conducted for this task are as follows: 
 
A. Continuing research and communication with state, federal, and local environmental 

agencies. 
 
B. Preparation of a scoping letter for federal, state, and local agencies advising of the 

COUNTY’s intent to proceed with the preparation of an environmental assessment. 
 

ASSUMPTIONS: 
1. A scoping meeting with state, federal, and local agencies will not be held. 
2. One (1) scope meeting will be held with the SCSHPO. 

 
DELIVERABLE: 

1. TBE will prepare the scoping letter. 
2. A scoping meeting with state, federal, and local agencies will not be held. 

 
 
TASK 4: ENVIRONMENTAL INVENTORY, EVALUATION, AND 

ANALYSIS 
 
The environmental inventory, evaluation, and analysis will be conducted in accordance with 
the requirements of the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (NEPA), Council on 
Environmental Quality (CEQ), FAA Order 5050.4B, National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) 
Implementing Instructions for Airport Projects (April 28, 2006), FAA Order 1050.1F – Environmental 
Impacts: Policies and Procedures (July 16, 2015), and 1050.1F Desk Reference (July 2015).  
 
Prior to initiation of the environmental analysis, TBE will notify the COUNTY and FAA of 
agency concerns resulting from the project agency early coordination process. The required 
level of detail for each environmental issue will also be discussed. Existing data will be 
collected from the appropriate agencies; and, through field and map examination, data will be 
analyzed, and used to determine the potential impacts of the proposed project. Mitigation 
measures, including avoidance and minimization options, will be investigated for impacts 
(unless herein noted otherwise). 
 
A. AIR QUALITY – Coordination with the South Carolina Department of Health and 

Environmental Control Division of Air Quality (SCDHEC-DAQ) to determine 
whether an air quality analysis and/or air quality permit shall be required, as well as a 
request for air quality conformity. Using the Aviation Emissions and Air Quality 
Handbook and required FAA Aviation Environmental Design Tool (AEDT) 2c, 
potential air quality impacts due to construction will be analyzed to determine general 
conformity with de minimis emission levels. 

 

27

Item 11.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2304 

5 

ASSUMPTIONS: 
1. Beaufort County is considered an attainment area for National Ambient Air Quality Standards 

(NAAQS) pollutants. 
2. FAA Emissions and Dispersion Modeling System (EDMS) input and emission levels for the 

proposed project will not be prepared. 
3. FAA Aviation Environmental Design Tool (AEDT) 2c will be used to determine potential 

construction impacts to air quality. 
4. No monitoring of existing air quality or modeling will be performed as part of this scope of services. 

 
B. BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES –  

 
1. Biotic Communities – A survey of biotic communities that may be affected 

directly or indirectly by the proposed project will be performed. This survey will 
be performed in conjunction with Task B.2 – Endangered and Threatened Species 
of Flora and Fauna. A brief description of the biotic communities will be prepared 
for inclusion in the environmental document. 

 
2. Endangered and Threatened Species of Flora and Fauna – Reference 

information on threatened, endangered, and other rare species and critical habitats, 
as listed by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) and National Marine 
Fisheries Service (NMFS), will be reviewed. Utilizing the reference information 
collected, field investigations will be conducted to identify habitat that may support 
the listed species. The location of previously sighted species, critical habitat, and 
habitat suitable for the legally protected species will be identified on an overlay 
map. A Section 7 (Endangered Species Act) Biological Assessment will be 
prepared and forwarded to USFWS and NMFS in conjunction with the draft 
environmental document regardless of species present. Final agency concurrence 
with the results of the biological assessment and required mitigation measures will 
be summarized in the final environmental document, as required. 

 
ASSUMPTION: 

1. The site will be visited twice by an experienced biologist, for plant flowering periods. 
2. The results of the biological assessment will be submitted to the USFWS for concurrence. 
3. Should it be determined by USFWS that additional site visits will be necessary; these will be 

performed under a contract amendment. 
 
C. CLIMATE – In response to Executive Order 13514 Focused on Federal Leadership 

in Environmental, Energy, and Economic Performance (October 5, 2009), the CEQ 
developed Federal Greenhouse Gas Accounting and Reporting Guidance (October 6, 
2010), which serves as the federal government’s official greenhouse gas (GHG) 
reporting protocol. GHGs result primarily from combustion of fuels, and there is a 
direct relationship between fuel combustion and metric tons of carbon dioxide (CO2). 
A discussion of potential impacts will be provided. 

 
  

28

Item 11.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2304 

6 

ASSUMPTION: 
1. No modeling will be performed as part of this scope of services. 
 

D. COASTAL RESOURCES –  
 
1. Coastal Zone Management Program – Because the study area is located in the 

South Carolina Coastal Zone, coordination will be conducted with the SCDHEC 
Office of Coastal Resource Management (OCRM) to ensure consistency with the 
South Carolina Coastal Management Program. In particular, potential direct or indirect 
impacts to the designated critical areas will be identified. Mitigation measures will 
be investigated and summarized as necessary. During the preparation of the final 
environmental document, a final mitigation plan will be prepared, if deemed 
necessary. 

 
2. Coastal Barriers – Coastal barriers protected under the Coastal Barrier Resource 

Act will be identified. In addition, early coordination will be conducted with the 
review agencies to identify potential impacts and mitigative measures, if necessary. 

 
E. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION ACT, SECTION 4(f) – An early 

inventory will be conducted to determine the presence of Section 4(f) properties (i.e., 
parks, recreation areas, wildlife and waterfowl refuges, and/or historic and 
archaeological sites).  

 
F. FARMLAND – Soil data (prime, unique, and statewide important) will be evaluated. 

Information will be submitted on Form AD-1006, Farmland Conversion Impact 
Rating, Land Evaluation – Site Assessment, to the NRCS for review and comment. 
Based on the response from the NRCS, an estimate of direct and indirect impacts will 
be determined on: (1) number of acres that will be directly displaced; (2) areas where 
agricultural and timberland operations may be disrupted; and (3) indirect effects, such 
as those related to changes in land use. 
 
1. Soils – A soils map of the site will be prepared. Descriptions of each of the soils 

indicated and their development limitation will be provided. Information regarding 
the need for potential fill material and clearing and grading will be determined. 

 
ASSUMPTIONS: 

1. Construction requirements (such as, but not limited to, excavation and fill amounts) will be based 
on preliminary schematics and preliminary engineering. 

2. Soils will be identified using U.S. Department of Agriculture Natural Resources Conservation 
Service (NRCS) mapping 

3. Geotechnical investigation of existing soil conditions will not be performed. 
 
  

29

Item 11.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2304 

7 

G. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS, SOLID WASTE, AND POLLUTION 
PREVENTION –  
 
1. Hazardous Materials/Waste Sites – A Level I Environmental Site Assessment 

will be conducted to include a thorough review of the history (50-year maximum) 
of the proposed project to identify environmental concern for contamination or 
liability from hazardous materials. In addition, a review of published data and a 
physical site inspection will be conducted. Documentation of investigation 
methods used, results obtained (e.g., site overview, site history, regulatory 
compliance history, site features, and site walkover survey), and a summary of 
findings and recommendations for further investigation, if necessary, will be 
provided. 

 
ASSUMPTIONS: 

1. No subsurface investigations will be conducted. 
2. A Level II - Environmental Site Assessment will not be conducted. 
3. The Phase I ESA performed for the EA will be used for the purchase of the SJBC property. 
 
2. Solid Waste Impact – Proposed development, which relates only to airfield 

development (runways, taxiways, and related items), will not normally include any 
direct relationship to solid waste collection, control, or disposal other than that 
associated with the construction itself. 

 
3. Pollution Prevention – Agencies are required to comply with applicable pollution 

control standards, in the prevention, control, and abatement of environmental 
pollution; and consult with the federal, state, and local agencies concerning the 
best techniques and methods available for the prevention, control, and abatement 
of environmental pollution. Pollution prevention strategies should be outlined in 
the Airport’s Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan and Spill Prevention, Control, 
and Countermeasures Plan. These strategies will be discussed. 

 
H. HISTORIC, ARCHITECTURAL, ARCHAEOLOGICAL, AND CULTURAL 

RESOURCES – A cultural resources survey, to determine the nature and distribution 
of historical, archaeological, and architectural resources within the study area, will be 
conducted. This survey will attempt to identify cultural resources and evaluate 
identified resources for their potential to meet the criteria of significance of the 
National Register of Historic Places (NRHP). This investigation will involve thorough 
background research and limited field investigations that will include, at a minimum, a 
photo-inventory of structures that are likely to be impacted (physically or aesthetically) 
and that appear to be at least 50 years old. In addition, sufficient information to 
complete a Standing Structures Form will be collected for each historic structure. This 
information will provide the basis for the evaluation of the structure with respect to 
the criteria of significance of the NRHP.  
 

30

Item 11.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2304 

8 

The cultural resources survey will meet the guidelines set forth by the State Historic 
Preservation Office (SHPO). The background research is designed to provide a 
description of the kinds of cultural resources likely to be present in the study area. In 
addition, this research will outline those aspects of the cultural heritage, evident in the 
study area, which are significant in the development of the region. This information is 
necessary to properly evaluate the eligibility of an identified cultural resource for the 
NRHP. This research will involve the review of historic maps of the region and reports 
on file with the SHPO and other cultural resource agencies. Field inspection will be 
limited; a historic-architectural survey team will examine standing structures within the 
study area and an archaeological team will perform a cursory overview of the study 
area in search of prehistoric, archaeological, and paleontological resources. A Phase I 
Cultural Resources Report will be prepared and forwarded to the SHPO requesting 
compliance with the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended. 

 
ASSUMPTIONS: 

1. FAA will be responsible for correspondence with Indian Tribes regarding the project. 
2. No consultation with the Indian Tribes will be conducted. Should it be determined that 

consultation is required, this will be prepared as an amendment to this contract. 
3. Six (6) meetings with the SCSHPO are anticipated to determine the requirements of the 

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). 
4. The Phase I Cultural Resources Survey of the 4.25-acre St. James Church Relocation Tract, 

Union Cemetery Road prepared in April 2020 will be included as part of the environmental 
documentation. 

5. Comments for the aforementioned report will be included as part of the scope of services for the 
preparation of the environmental assessment. 

6. If the SHPO determines that a Phase II Cultural Resources Survey is necessary, this task will 
be performed under a contract amendment. 

7. A MOU is required and  will be prepared during the design phase of the proposed project. 
 
I. COMPATIBLE LAND USE – Existing land use within the study area (study area – 

0.5 miles around HXD and the proposed project site) will be inventoried by windshield 
surveys. Land use plans and zoning codes will be collected and reviewed. Land use 
types, to be identified, will include residential, commercial, industrial, and noise 
sensitive sites (parks, schools, churches, etc.). In addition, community facilities and 
existing utilities will be inventoried. Information collected will be reviewed. Evaluation 
of existing land use and land use planning will include impacts to existing zoning, 
conformance with adopted comprehensive plans, impacts to neighborhoods, and 
cumulative impacts. 
 

ASSUMPTION: 
1. Available land use and zoning data will be provided by the COUNTY and Town of Hilton 

Head Island. 
 

  

31

Item 11.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2304 

9 

J. NATURAL RESOURCES AND ENERGY SUPPLY – In general terms, the 
potential energy consumption required to implement the project during construction 
and throughout its life will be determined. Energy conservation measures will be 
evaluated, if necessary. 
 

K. NOISE – The proposed project is not anticipated to have an adverse impact on the 
surrounding community from noise generated by additional aircraft using HXD. 
However, a noise analysis will be performed using the Aviation Environmental Design 
Tool (AEDT) 2c to determine the potential impact of noise on the surrounding 
community for the existing and proposed conditions. Noise contours will be produced 
ranging from 65 dB DNL to 80 dB DNL at 5 dB increments and plotted on the Airport 
Layout Plan or an aerial image of the Airport. 
 

ASSUMPTIONS: 
1. FAA Aviation Environmental Design Tool (AEDT) 2c will be used to determine potential 

impacts. 
2. No monitoring of existing noise will be performed as part of this scope of services. 
 

L. SOCIOECONOMIC IMPACTS, ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE, AND 
CHILDREN’S HEALTH AND SAFETY RISKS –  

 
1. Socioeconomic Impacts – The impact of the proposed project on potential 

relocation of residences and/or businesses, changes in surface transportation 
patterns, disruption of planned development, and significant changes in the 
potential employment base will be analyzed. Should potential relocations occur, 
provisions of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition 
Policies Act of 1970, as amended, will be utilized to determine compliance.  

 
2. Environmental Justice – Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address 

Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations 
(February 11, 1994) states that to the greatest extent practicable and permitted by 
law, each federal agency should make achieving environmental justice part of its 
mission by identifying and addressing, as appropriate, disproportionately high and 
adverse human health or environmental effects of its programs, policies, and 
activities on minority and low-income populations. A cursory analysis of 
population impact will be performed. 

 
8. Children’s Health and Safety Risks – Executive Order 13045, Protection of 

Children from Environmental Health Risks and Safety Risks (April 23, 1997), 
directs federal agencies to identify and assess environmental health risks and safety 
risks that may disproportionately affect children. Environmental health risks and 
safety risks include risks to health or to safety that are attributable to products or 
substances that a child is likely to come in contact with or ingest, such as air, food, 
drinking water, recreational waters, soil, or products they might use or be exposed 
to. A cursory qualitative analysis of potential risks will be performed. 

32

Item 11.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2304 

10 

ASSUMPTION:  
1. A detailed quantitative risk assessment will be performed under a contract amendment, if deemed 

necessary. 
 
M. VISUAL EFFECTS –  

 
1. Light Emissions – Consideration of the extent to which any lighting associated 

with the proposed project will create an annoyance to people in the vicinity of the 
airport will be determined. 

 
2. Visual Impacts – Visual impact will be identified by examining the visual 

viewshed, which takes into account the entire landscape and is comprised of two 
main aspects: views to and views from. If necessary, mitigative measures to avoid 
adverse visual impacts will be discussed. 

 
N. WATER RESOURCES –  
 

1. Wetlands – Jurisdictional wetland areas will be identified and their size, location, 
type, and function/value estimated, in consultation with the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers (USACE) and other appropriate federal and state agencies. Available 
reference materials will be reviewed and field investigations will be conducted. 
Results of the wetland delineation and proposed mitigation plan, if necessary, will 
be prepared.  

 
ASSUMPTIONS: 

1. A past wetland jurisdictional determination was conducted in 2012 within the boundary of the 
airport property, but it has expired in accordance with USACXDE requirements and will be 
reassessed. 

2. Surveying of wetland boundaries will be performed by GPS and a jurisdictional determination 
prepared and submitted to the USACE for verification. 

3. Permitting and mitigation are not included in this Work Authorization. 
 

2. Floodplain – A topographic map with the project boundaries (with 1-foot 
contour intervals) will be prepared indicating major land surface features. In 
addition, the 100-year floodplain and floodway boundaries will be identified and 
described (no field work or flagging of floodplain boundaries will be conducted). 
In accordance with Executive Order 11988, floodplain impacts will be identified 
such as effects to existing floodplain values, support of incompatible floodplain 
development, etc. 

 
ASSUMPTIONS: 

1. Topographic mapping used in the preparation of the Master Plan Update will be used. 
2. Floodplain boundaries will not be identified in the field. 
3. Existing FEMA mapping will be used to identify floodplains. 

 

33

Item 11.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2304 

11 

3. Water Quality – The ambient conditions of streams and other water bodies likely 
to be impacted by the proposed project will be described. Where available from 
the review agencies, data for surface water and groundwater quantity and quality 
will be cited. Potential impacts to water quality will be discussed. Mitigation, in the 
form of retention/detention basins, runoff channels, etc., will be developed in 
accordance with COUNTY requirements and federal, state, and local stormwater 
and water quality regulations. 

 
4. Wild and Scenic Rivers – Wild and scenic rivers within the study area will be 

identified and potential impacts discussed. Opportunities for the proposed project 
to provide public access to recreational and scenic amenities at such waterways will 
be investigated. Mitigative measures, if necessary, will be investigated. 

 
O. CUMULATIVE IMPACTS – TBE will discuss the secondary and cumulative impacts 

on a category-by-category basis for those where impacts will be anticipated. This will 
include land use, water quality, social, economics, wetlands and other topics for which 
this discussion will be appropriate. 
 

ASSUMPTION: 
1. Indirect and cumulative impact analysis will be performed under a contract amendment, if deemed 

necessary. 
 

P. IRREVERSIBLE AND IRRETRIEVABLE COMMITMENT OF RESOURCES – 
Discussion of the use of resources will be outlined in this section. 
 

Q. PERMITS – Environmental permits required for construction of the proposed project 
will be identified and a brief description of regulatory requirements will be provided 
for each.  

 
 
TASK 5: DRAFT ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTATION 
 
TBE will prepare a draft environmental assessment (DEA) in accordance with the 
requirements of National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (NEPA), Council on 
Environmental Quality (CEQ), FAA Order 5050.4B, National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) 
Implementing Instructions for Airport Projects (April 28, 2006), FAA Order 1050.1F – Environmental 
Impacts: Policies and Procedures (July 16, 2015), and 1050.1F Desk Reference (July 2015), utilizing 
the technical material previously collected (Task 3). The document will be concise and will 
include support documents, as necessary. Four (4) copies of the preliminary DEA will be 
distributed for review and comment. Comments will be incorporated and 20 copies of the 
approved draft document will be prepared for general distribution to the reviewing agencies. 
The DEA will address the following items: 
 
A. PURPOSE AND NEED – This section will provide a description of the proposed 

action that addresses, at a minimum: 

34

Item 11.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2304 

12 

 
1. Project purpose 
2. Proposed action 
3. Relationship of the proposed action to applicable federal, state, and local rules and 

regulations 
4. Public need for the proposed action 

 
B. ALTERNATIVES – This section will discuss a maximum of three build alternatives, 

and a no-build alternative. Each alternative will be addressed to demonstrate that 
feasible options were adequately considered. 

 
C. AFFECTED ENVIRONMENT AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONSEQUENCES 

– TBE will use the environmental inventory previously conducted to describe the 
environmental setting in the local, regional, and statewide context. This will serve as 
the background for preparation of the impact analysis section of the draft document. 
The impact and mitigation portion of the DEA will identify and describe the primary, 
secondary, and cumulative environmental impacts on the natural, human, and 
economic resources. Primary impacts are environmental changes occurring as a result 
of the proposed action. Secondary impacts are those impacts that extend to the 
surrounding area from the implementation of the proposed action. Cumulative 
impacts are normally those occurring over a long period of time that is precipitated 
directly or indirectly from implementation of the proposed action. Mitigation plans, if 
required for unavoidable adverse impact will also be discussed.  

 
D. PREPARERS – A list of people responsible for preparation of the draft document 

will be included in the document. 
 
E. APPENDICES – Appendices will be included only for analytical information that 

substantiates an analysis pertinent to the document. 
 
ASSUMPTIONS: 

1. The COUNTY and FAA will review the preliminary DEA document concurrently and will 
provide comments to TBE. 

2. TBE will assume one (1) concurrent independent review by the COUNTY and FAA prior 
to approval of the DEA. 

 
DELIVERABLES 

1. Four (4) copies of the preliminary DEA for review; and, 
2. Twenty (20) copies of approved DEA. 

 
 
  

35

Item 11.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2304 

13 

TASK 6: ADVERTISE, CONDUCT PUBLIC HEARING WORKSHOP, AND 
EVALUATE COMMENTS 

 
A. PUBLIC HEARING WORKSHOP –  

 
1. The COUNTY will arrange for the location of the public hearing workshop.  

 
2. TBE will prepare the notice of opportunity for a public hearing workshop. 

 
3. Preparation for the Public Hearing Workshop – Prepare two (2) sets of color-

coded exhibits that identify inventoried resources associated with the proposed 
action, comment forms, maps and other graphics, and have on hand ten (10) 
copies of the DEA. 
 

4. Public Workshop Hearing Attendance – TBE will attend the public workshop 
and will provide technical assistance and support to the COUNTY. TBE will have 
a recorder for oral comments. 

5. Public comments received during the public comment period before, during, and 
after the public hearing workshop will be reviewed, categorized, and evaluated by 
the COUNTY and TBE. Appropriate responses will be included in the final 
document. 

 
ASSUMPTIONS: 

1. The COUNTY will select and provide the location for the public hearing workshop. 
2. TBE will provide two (2) copies of the DEA for the public workshop.  
3. TBE will provide two (2) sets of graphics for identifying the major environmental resources 

associated with the proposed project. 
4. TBE will prepare the referenced graphics and written materials normally associated with this 

task and attend the public hearing workshop. 
 

 
TASK 7: FINAL ENVIRONMENTAL DOCUMENTATION 
 
TBE will revise the DEA in accordance with the appropriate regulatory guidance referenced 
in Task 4. Four (4) copies each of the preliminary final environmental assessment (FEA) will 
be distributed for review and comment. Comments will be incorporated and 10 copies of the 
approved FEA will be prepared for general distribution to those agencies having provided 
substantive comments into the FEA. The FEA will include but not be limited to addressing 
the following issues: 
 
A. Revise project description to reflect changes as a result of circulation of DEA and 

input received from the public hearing process. 
 
B. Revise maps and drawings to reflect changes in location, design, and impact. 
 

36

Item 11.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2304 

14 

C. Attach written comments received following DEA circulation and public information 
workshop. Address both verbal and written comments received. 

 
D. List environmental commitments. 
 
ASSUMPTIONS: 

1. The COUNTY and FAA will review the preliminary FEA concurrently and will provide 
comments to the TBE. 

2. TBE will assume one (1) concurrent independent review prior to approval of the FEA. 
3. FAA will prepare the Finding of No Significant Impact (FONSI). 

 
DELIVERABLES: 

1. Four (4) copies of the preliminary FEA for review; and, 
2. Ten (10) copies of approved FEA. 

 
Estimated Time Schedule: Work shall be completed in accordance with the schedule 
established and agreed upon by the Owner and Engineer. 

 
Cost of Services: The method of payment shall be in accordance with Article 6 of the Master 
Contract. The basic services work shall be performed in accordance with the Master Contract 
as a lump sum of $296,177.67, which includes reimbursable expenses. Special Additional 
Services shall be performed as listed below with a budget of $70,638.36. The total value of 
this Work Authorization shall not exceed $366,816.03 without additional authorization 

 
Agreed as to Scope of Services, Time Schedule and Budget: 
 
 
APPROVED: 
BEAUFORT County 

 APPROVED: 
TALBERT, BRIGHT & 
ELLINGTON, INC. 

 
 

  

 
 

  
Vice President 

Title  Title: 
 
 

  

Date:  Date: 
 
 

  

Witness:  Witness: 

37

Item 11.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2304 

15 38

Item 11.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2304 

16 39

Item 11.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2304 

17 40

Item 11.



Talbert, Bright & Ellington, Inc. 
Work Authorization 2119-2304 

18 

 

41

Item 11.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Recommend Approval of Contract Award to Beaufort Construction of SC, LLC. for IFB #101823 M.C. Riley Pool 
Enclosure & Climate Control ($2,002,000) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities and Safety Committee – January 22, 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Eric Larson, PE, Director, Capital Projects (5 mins) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

On June 14, 2023 a proposal was received from C.E. Bourne & Co., Inc., in partnership with Tremco 
Incorporated.  After County Council awarded the contract, the Contractor withdrew their bid due to a change 
in pricing from a subcontractor.  Therefore, Beaufort County requested bids for the M.C. Riley Pool 
Renovation Phase II, consisting of new HVAC, enclosure panels, and interior renovations on 10/18/23. One 
bid was received from Beaufort Construction of SC, LLC with a cost of $2,002,000.00.  Staff and the design 
consultants, Hord, Cope, and Macht and RMF Engineering, have reviewed the detailed bid submittal and 
found the prices to be fair and reasonable.  Engineer’s estimate for the work was $1,985,000.00.   

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Parks and Recreation wishes to replace the HVAC system and construct interior renovations of the MC Riley 
Pool.  This includes enclosing the pool with unmovable panels and create a climate-controlled environment to 
maximize the efficiency of the new HVAC system.  The total funds requested are the bid amount (plus a 
contingency) ($2,002,000 + $200,200 = $2,202,200) 

Purchasing has not submitted a draft contract to Legal.  This will occur after contract award.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Funding comes from Parks and Recreation Capital Fund, 1040-80-1600-54420.   Current account balance is 
$3,956,064.35.   

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval of contract to Beaufort Construction of SC, LLC. for IFB #101823 in the amount of 
$2,002,000.00 with a $200,200 contingency fund for a total of $2,202,200.00 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny recommendation of award Beaufort Construction of SC, LLC. for IFB #101823 M.C. 
Riley Pool Enclosure & Climate Control. 

Next Step: Move forward to County Council to award Beaufort Construction of SC, LLC. for IFB #101823 M.C. 
Riley Pool Enclosure & Climate Control. 

 

42

Item 12.



PRELIMINARY BID TABULATION
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

Project Name:

MC Riley Pool Enclosure and Climate 

Control

Project Number: IFB 101823

Project Budget:

Bid Opening Date: 18-Oct-23

Time: 3:00:00 PM

Location: Beaufort County

Bid Administrator: Dave Thomas

Bid Recorder: Victoria Moyer

The following bids were received for the above referenced project:

BIDDER 

BID     

FORM

ALL 

ADDENDA

Bid 

Bond

SCH OF 

VALUES

SMBE 

Docs Sub Listing Grand Total Price 

Beaufort Construction of SC, LLC X X X X X X
$2,002,000.00

Bid Administrator Signature Bid Recorder

Beaufort County posts PRELIMINARY bid tabulation information within 2 business days of the advertised bid opening.  Information on the PRELIMINARY bid 

tabulation is posted as it was read during the bid opening.  Beaufort County makes no guarantees as to the accuracy of any information on the PRELIMINARY 

tabulation.  The bid results indicated here do not necessarily represent the final compliance review by Beaufort County and are subject to change. After the review, 

the final award will be made by Beaufort County Council and a certified bid tab will be posted online. 

10/18/2023
43

Item 12.



PRELIMINARY BID TABULATION
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

10/18/2023
44

Item 12.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

An ordinance authorizing the Interim County Administrator to enter into a lease agreement with the South 
Carolina Department of Transportation (SCDOT) for property located under the Cross Island Parkway adjacent 
to the Broad Creek Boat Landing parcel R552 010 000 0650 0000. 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities & Safety Committee Meeting January 22, 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, Infrastructure  

(5 Minutes) 
 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

On May 7, 2002 Beaufort County and The Town of Hilton Head Island executed an Intergovernmental 
Agreement associated with the construction of a boat ramp off Broad Creek. Recently, the Town of Hilton 
Head Island and the County have been working with SCDOT to formalize use of the property located under 
the Cross Island Parkway that has been in use for approximately 20 years. SCDOT requested a public interest 
finding from FHWA so the County can lease the property gratis. 

 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

SCDOT and the County have finalized a lease agreement for the property located under the Cross Island 
Parkway associated with the Broad Creek Boat Landing parcel # R552 010 000 0650 0000 .  SCDOT will lease 
this property to the County at no cost (gratis). 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval of an ordinance authorizing the Interim County Administrator to enter into a lease 
agreement with the South Carolina Department of Transportation (SCDOT) for property located under the 
Cross Island Parkway adjacent to the Broad Creek Boat Landing parcel R552 010 000 0650 0000. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny an ordinance authorizing the Interim County Administrator to enter into a lease 
agreement with the South Carolina Department of Transportation (SCDOT) for property located under the 
Cross Island Parkway adjacent to the Broad Creek Boat Landing parcel R552 010 000 0650 0000. 

An approval vote by Committee would move the item to full County Council for three readings and a public 
hearing to approve the ordinance. 

 

45

Item 13.



ORDINANCE 2024/_________ 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO ENTER 

INTO A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH THE SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION (SCDOT) FOR PROPERTY LOCATED UNDER THE CROSS ISLAND 

PARKWAY ADJACENT TO THE BROAD CREEK BOAT LANDING PARCEL R552 010 000 

0650 0000 

 

WHEREAS, Beaufort County (“County”) and the Town of Hilton Head Island (“Town”) entered 

into an Intergovernmental Agreement on May 7, 2002 to construct a boat ramp off Broad Creek on parcel  

# R550 010 000 0650 0000; and 

WHEREAS, the County completed the boat ramp in the 2003 time frame and the public has been 

utilizing the boat ramp and area under the Cross Island Parkway for approximately 20 years; and 

WHEREAS, the South Carolina Department of Transportation (“SCDOT”) has ownership 

interests in the property located under the Cross Island Parkway adjacent to the County boat ramp on parcel 

#R550 010 000 0650 0000. The County recently approached SCDOT about transferring ownership interests 

to the County, but SCDOT needs to retain ownership for bridge/highway maintenance purposes. SCDOT 

offered to lease the property gratis. More specific lease information is provided on attached Exhibit “A”; 

and 

WHEREAS, County Council finds that it is in best interest of the citizens and residents of Beaufort 

County for the Interim County Administrator to enter into a lease agreement with the South Carolina 

Department of Transportation (SCDOT) for property located under the Cross Island Parkway adjacent to 

the Broad Creek Boat Landing parcel R552 010 000 0650 0000. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED that Beaufort County Council hereby authorizes the 

Interim County Administrator to enter into a lease agreement with the South Carolina Department of 

Transportation (SCDOT) for property located under the Cross Island Parkway adjacent to the Broad Creek 

Boat Landing parcel R552 010 000 0650 0000. 

 

  

ADOPTED this ______ day of _____, 20___.  

 

      COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY  

 

 

      By: _______________________________ 

             Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Sarah W. Brock,  

Clerk to Council  

46

Item 13.



Exhibit “A” 
Final Lease SCDOT to Beaufort County January 2024 

47

Item 13.



1 | P a g e  
 

         Lessee______   Date _______                                         Lessor______ Date ________      Lessor ______ Date ________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
      )   LEASE AGREEMENT 
COUNTY OF BEAUFORT             ) 
 

This Lease Agreement is made this ________ day of _____________________, 2024, by 
and between the South Carolina Department of Transportation (SCDOT) (“Lessor”) and 
Beaufort County, its successors and/or assigns (“Lessee”). 
 
1.    Lease and Use of Premises 

 
a)  Lessor hereby leases to Lessee and Lessee hereby leases from Lessor the following 

described property (hereinafter referred to as “the Premises”) for use as parking: 
 

ALL AND SINGULAR, all that certain piece, parcel or lot of land, situate, 
lying and being in the town of Hilton Head Island in Beaufort County, South 
Carolina, containing approximately 2.05 acres and being shown on highway 
plans for US Route 278,  File 7.558, Sheets 13 & 32, Tract 41 and for Road 
S-80 under File 7.558, sheet 16 as portions of Tracts 113, 114, 116, and 121, 
and designated as “Lease Area” on the attached Exhibit A, and also being 
shown on “Dufuskie Island at Cross Island, Overall Site Plan prepared by 
Davis & Floyd, dated October 2023; on the attached Exhibit B. Said property 
being acquired by the South Carolina Department of Transportation by 
General Warranty Deed from Plantation Land Company, Inc. dated August 
5, 1994, and recorded on January 26, 1995, in Book 30042 at Page 325 in the 
Office of the Register of Mesne Conveyances for Beaufort County. Adjacent 
to TMS Number R552-010-000-0309-0000 and R552-010-000-0650-0000. 

 
b) Restricted Use of Premises 

  1) Lessee’s use of the Premises shall be subordinate at all times to SCDOT’s use 
of the Premises for Highway Purposes. As used herein, the term “Highway 
Purposes” means the operation, use, maintenance, construction, or reconstruction 
of the highway facilities, including but not limited to the piers, columns, and other 
structural support of the highways and bridge facilities. Lessee shall use and 
maintain the Premises at all times in a manner that will not interfere with the use 
of the Premises and SCDOT facilities thereon for Highway Purposes. 

2) Lessee shall use and manage the Premises exclusively for public purposes, 
specifically as follows: 

(i)  to make parking available for passenger vehicles for patrons of Cross 
Island Boat Landing; and to install and maintain a ferry embarkation dock 
near, but not under the bridge on Premises;  

     (ii)  for park and recreational uses; and  

48

Item 13.



2 | P a g e  
 

         Lessee______   Date _______                                         Lessor______ Date ________      Lessor ______ Date ________ 

   (iii)  for pedestrian, bicycle, and vehicular access, ingress, and egress, including 
walking, jogging, and biking paths and/or trails to other property of the Lessee 
or to parking, park, and recreational uses on the Premises.  

(iv)  at no time shall any vehicle or recreational vehicle be used as living and/or 
sleeping quarters while parked on the Premises. Lessee will be responsible for 
operation, security, landscaping, trash, ice and snow removal and all 
maintenance of the parking and recreational park facilities. 

3)  SCDOT has complete authority to require that the Lessee install approved 
protective barriers at bridge piers and at low elevation structures of any bridge 
affected by construction plans and improvements prepared and approved in 
accordance with Paragraph 6) of this Section. SCDOT can regulate or prohibit the 
type of machinery and use of the Premises in any manner necessary to insure 
protection of highway structures. 

    4)   Vehicular access to any portion of the Premises affected by construction plans 
and improvements prepared and approved in accordance with Paragraph 6) of this 
Section will be restricted by Lessee with fences, bollards or other means to prevent 
regular use of vehicles larger than a passenger vehicle (16’ height limitation), but 
to allow access by emergency vehicles, fire trucks and SCDOT’s maintenance 
vehicles and trucks whenever necessary. 

5)   No use will be made of the space within ten feet (10’) of any bridge pier or 
column. To the extent any piers or columns are affected by construction plans and 
improvements prepared and approved in accordance with Paragraph 6) of this 
Section, said piers or columns shall be protected by Lessee, at no expense to 
SCDOT, with protective devices suitable to and approved by SCDOT’s District Six 
Engineering Administrator, or his or her designee (the “DEA”). No flexible 
pavement will be utilized within five feet (5’) of any bridge pier or column. 
Exceptions upon approval of SCDOT’s District Six Engineering Administrator or 
designee may include: 

   (a) Install and maintain parking spaces as needed 

   (b)  Install and maintain walkways, both surface and raised as needed 

6)  All construction plans and improvements to the Premises must be 
preapproved by the DEA, who may be contacted as follows: 

SCDOT District Six Engineering Administrator 
6355 Fain Boulevard 
North Charleston, SC 29406 
843-740-1667(Office); 843-740-1663 (Fax) 

 Any outstanding issues with respect to plans, improvements, modifications, etc. 
of the individual Premises that cannot be resolved by the DEA and the Lessee 
shall be elevated to the Deputy Secretary for Engineering in Columbia.  The 
Deputy Secretary for Engineering shall review and make the final determination. 

7) Unless approved by the DEA in accordance with Paragraph 6 of this Section, 
the following modifications to the Premises shall not be allowed: 

(a) Change in site grades or fill elevation; 
(b)       Trenching for drain structures; or 
(c)       Additional storm water drainage discharged into bridge ponds. 
(d)      Additional off-site storm water drainage from private parcels 

 
8)       Without the prior written approval of the DEA, the Lessee shall not do any   
of the following on the Premises: 

a) change or divert, or fill drainage under or around bridge structures;   
b) mine, remove soil or any ground materials; or 

49

Item 13.



3 | P a g e  
 

         Lessee______   Date _______                                         Lessor______ Date ________      Lessor ______ Date ________ 

c) install signs, displays or lighting.  
d) additional off-site storm water drainage from private parcels 

  9)      No flammable, explosive or hazardous materials of any kind shall be allowed                           
on the Premises. 

10)  The operation and use of the Premises by Lessee shall not permit 
objectionable smoke, fumes, steam, vapor, or odors to rise above the grade line of 
the highway. 

11)      The Premises shall be subject to the SCDOT’s superior right at all times: 

a)  Entry for emergency inspections and/or repairs. If SCDOT, in its sole 
discretion, determines that emergency inspection and/or repairs are 
necessary in the interests of public safety, SCDOT, its agents, contractors, 
and employees, shall have the right to enter the Premises without notice to 
Lessee for the purposes of inspection and/or repair. 
b)  Entry for non-emergency situations. In cases other than such 
emergencies, SCDOT, its agents, contractors and employees, shall have the 
right to enter the Premises upon no less than 48 hours prior notice for any 
reason including maintenance, repair and inspection of the Premises or the 
highway or bridge facilities. Lessee shall remove or have removed at its own 
cost any vehicles or other obstructions to such work.  
c) Responsibility for damages or injuries. Except in the case of gross 
negligence or willful misconduct, neither SCDOT, nor its agents or 
employees, shall be held responsible for costs or damages to the Lessee, or 
anyone claiming through Lessee, for damages to property or injuries to 
persons arising from the work described in subparagraphs a) and b) directly 
above. 

2.       Rental and Covenant to pay rent. Lessee shall pay SCDOT rent at the rate of $1.00 
per year. As additional rent, Lessee shall be responsible for maintaining the Premises in 
a safe, clean and attractive condition, to include without limitation regular mowing. 

 

3. Term of Lease. The lease term will run for a thirty (35) year period beginning at 

12:00AM on_____________________________, and ending at 12:00am on 
____________________________, unless otherwise terminated in accordance with this Lease. 
4. Security Deposit. There will be no security deposit required.  
 
5. Condition of the Premises. The Lessee acknowledges that it has examined and knows 
the condition of the Premises and that no representations as to the condition or repair of 
the Premises have been made to Lessee by SCDOT. SCDOT makes no warranties or 
representations as to the condition of the Premises or the fitness of the Premises for 
Lessee’s intended use. Should the Premises be deemed to be unsuitable for parking at any 
time during the term of this Lease by any governmental or regulatory authority through 
no fault of Lessee, Lessee may immediately terminate this Lease without penalty. 
 
6. Repairs, improvements, or modifications. The Lessee shall keep the Premises in a 
good and safe state of repair. The Lessee shall make no repairs, modifications, or 
improvements on the Premises without the prior written consent of the DEA.  

. 
7.   Outdoor Advertising. No outdoor advertising shall be allowed on the Premises. 
 
8.   Responsibility for Claims. Lessee acknowledges its responsibility for acts of its 
employees and officials within the limits of the S.C. Tort Claims Act. Lessee shall reimburse 
SCDOT for any and all damages to the highway and bridge facilities arising out of the use 
of the Premises for Lessee’s purposes caused by the negligent or intentional acts of the City.  

50

Item 13.



4 | P a g e  
 

         Lessee______   Date _______                                         Lessor______ Date ________      Lessor ______ Date ________ 

 
 9.     Insurance.   The Lessee will obtain and keep in effect during the term of the Lease a 
policy of Commercial General Liability insurance with minimum limits of liability of 
$1,000,000.00 per occurrence and $2,000,000.00 in the aggregate to cover any and all 
liability that the Lessee or Lessor may incur as a result of the Lessee’s occupancy of the 
Premises and such policy shall name Lessor as an additional named insured.  Proof of 
insurance must be provided to the Lessor. 

 
10.  Taxes and Insurance.   The Lessee agrees to pay all taxes, insurance, water and other 
utilities imposed or charged upon the Premises or upon the Lessor and Lessee in respect 
thereof.  At the execution of this Lease there are no taxes due and owing on the Premises 
for which the Lessee is responsible.  If at any time during the term of this Lease any taxes 
are assessed against the Premises for which Lessee is responsible, Lessor shall notify 
Lessee upon receipt of such notice at the Lessor’s Property Management Office and Lessee 
shall make payment for such taxes directly to the entity assessing the taxes and provide 
the Lessor a copy of the paid receipt. 
 
11.    Compliance with Laws.  The Lessee agrees to use the Premises for legal purposes only 
and agrees to comply with all local, state and federal laws and ordinances governing the 
use and occupancy thereof. 

    
  12.   Default Remedies.  If any rental installment shall be due and remain unpaid ten (10) 

business days after the due date, or if default shall be made in any of the covenants and 
terms of this Lease Agreement on the part of the Lessee, then it shall be lawful for the 
Lessor to re-enter the Premises and to again have, possess and enjoy the same.  Lessor 
shall give Lessee written notice of any default other than failure to pay rent and an 
opportunity to cure the default within fifteen (15) days.  If the default cannot be cured 
within fifteen (15) days and Lessee promptly commences and diligently pursues a cure of 
the default, Lessor will grant Lessee a reasonable time to cure, not to exceed thirty (30) 
days. If not cured, Lessor may terminate this lease. 
 
13.    Termination. 

a)  Either party may elect to terminate this Lease Agreement for “Just Cause” (as 
hereinafter defined) at any time during the life of the Lease upon ninety (90) days written 
notice given to the other party.  The parties will incur no damages, liabilities, or 
responsibilities by reason of such termination.  “Just Cause” shall mean the need for major 
structural repairs or major maintenance to be made to the bridge structure located within 
the Premises. 

  b)  Lessor shall also have the right to terminate this Lease Agreement pursuant to 
the provisions of Paragraphs (6), (12), (16) (b). 

  c)  Termination shall not operate to relieve Lessee from its responsibility for any 
charges payable pursuant to this Lease or for any damages to the Premises or Lessor’s 
improvements on the Premises. 

  d)  In lieu of terminating for Just Cause, if the repairs can be made within six (6) 
months, Lessee can agree to vacate the Premises until repairs are complete and rent shall 
abate for an equal period and add the equal number of months onto the tail end of the 
Lease. 
 
14. Lessee’s Duty as to Condition of Premises upon Termination or Default. 

  a)   Upon termination or default of the Lease, the Lessee shall vacate the Premises 
and leave it in good and clean condition, free of vehicles and debris.  Failure to clean and 
clear the Premises will result in direct action for damages should Lessor incur any 
expenses for cleaning or clearing the Premises, including attorney’s fees and costs in 
bringing such action. 

  b)   Upon expiration or earlier termination of the Lease, Lessor may, at their option, 
request the removal of any improvements made by the Lessee.  If such request is made, 
the removal shall be accomplished by the Lessee in a manner prescribed by Lessor at no 
cost to the Lessor.  If such request is not made, any modifications or improvements to the 
Premises made by Lessee shall become the property of Lessor and shall be surrendered 

51

Item 13.



5 | P a g e  
 

         Lessee______   Date _______                                         Lessor______ Date ________      Lessor ______ Date ________ 

to Lessor upon the expiration or prior termination of this Lease and Lessee shall not be 
required to remove any modifications or improvements made to the Premises. 

 
15. Assignment.  The Lessee may not assign or sublet the Premises; provided, however, 
the County may rent monthly and daily parking passes to the general public in compliance 
with all applicable federal, state, and local laws.  Charges for parking shall be limited to 
an amount necessary to recoup the County’s cost of improvements, maintenance, security 
and regulating/management of parking. 
 
16.  Lease Subject to Other Rights.  This Lease is being made subject to any and all 
existing public utility rights of user, reservations, easements, rights of way, control of 
access, zoning ordinances and restrictions or protective covenants that may appear of 
record or on the Premises, other than those hereby released. It is understood and agreed 
by the parties hereto that Lessor holds Control of Access rights along the boundary line of 
many of its properties.  The Premises being subject to the Lessor’s superior right at all 
times,  Lessor retains the right to enter the Premises at any reasonable time for any reason 
including maintenance of the Premises or its improvements on the Premises without any 
liability or cause for complaint by Lessee, or anyone claiming through Lessee, and Lessor 
shall not be held responsible for costs or damages to the Lessee, or anyone claiming through 
Lessee, except to the extent caused by the willful conduct or gross negligence of Lessor, its 
officers, employees, agents and contractors.  

a)  The Lessee shall not mine, remove soil or any ground materials from the subject 
property other than in conjunction with work that is permitted in paragraphs 1 (b) (ii) and 
by encroachment permit, without specific written permission from the Lessor’s local 
District Engineering Administrator.  Lessor shall have and retain all mineral and timber 
rights to the land. 

             b)  Lessee’s operation on the Premises shall not interfere in any way with the 
Lessor’s use of the Premises for highway purposes and if such interference takes place, 
Lessor shall have the right to immediately terminate this Lease without any liability to the 
Lessee for such termination and Lessee shall compensate Lessor for any damages to 
Lessor’s property by reason of Lessee’s operations. 
 
17.   Hazardous Waste.  Lessee shall be responsible for the cleanup of any hazardous waste   
contamination caused by their use of the premises without liability to the Lessor. 
 
18.   Relocation Benefits.  Lessee acknowledges that Lessee will not qualify for relocation 
benefits upon the termination of this Lease. 
 
19.   Notices.  Any notice by either party to the other shall be valid only if it is in writing 
and delivered personally or by certified mail to the addresses shown below, unless the other 
party is notified in writing of a new address: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
20. Use of Generated Revenues.  Lessee shall dedicate and expend any revenues 
generated under this lease solely for maintenance and/or improvements to the Premises, 
security, and/or regulation and management of parking on the Premises. 
  
21. Entire Agreement.  This Lease contains the entire agreement of the parties and no 
representations, inducements, promises or agreements, oral or otherwise, between the 
parties not stated herein, shall be of any force or effect. 
 

If to Lessor:  

South Carolina Department of 
Transportation  
955 Park Street  
Columbia, SC 29202 
Attn: Property Management  

If to Lessee:    
Beaufort County 
104 Industrial Village Rd,  
Beaufort, SC 29902 
Attn: Pat Wilson 

52

Item 13.

GiammonaAL
Text Box
Right of Way Manager 



6 | P a g e  
 

         Lessee______   Date _______                                         Lessor______ Date ________      Lessor ______ Date ________ 

22. Applicable Law.  This Lease shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with 
the laws of the State of South Carolina. 
 
23. Severability.  If any clause or provision of this Lease is illegal, invalid or 
unenforceable, under present or future laws effective during the term hereof, then it is the 
intention of the parties hereto that the remainder of this Lease shall not be affected thereby 
and it is also the intention of both parties that in lieu of each clause or provision as similar 
in terms to such illegal, invalid or unenforceable clause or provision as may be possible and 
be legal, valid and enforceable; provided however, that both parties must agree in writing 
to such substitute language and provisions before such will become binding on either party. 
 
24. Counterparts.  This Lease may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of 
which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the 
same instrument.  Faxed signatures are acceptable with the understanding that the parties 
will use their best efforts to promptly deliver original signatures to the other parties. 
 
25.  Non-discrimination Clause.  The parties covenant that the use of these premises 
pursuant to this Agreement shall in no way discriminate on the grounds of race, religion, 
color, sex, age, disability or national origin. 
 
 
  

REMAINDER INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK  

53

Item 13.



7 | P a g e  
 

         Lessee______   Date _______                                         Lessor______ Date ________      Lessor ______ Date ________ 

Signed, sealed and delivered SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF 
in the presence of TRANSPORTATION 
 “LESSOR” 
 
        
       
_______________________________               By:      (L.S.) 
Witness                  Christy A. Hall, PE, Secretary of Transportation
             
_______________________________               By:      (L.S.)
                   Madeleine Hendry, Acting Deputy Secretary for  

             Finance and Administration  
 
 
 
THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

) 

 ) PROBATE 
COUNTY OF RICHLAND ) 

 
 

Personally appeared before me _____________________________________________ and 
made oath that s(he) saw the within named South Carolina Department of Transportation, by 
its duly authorized officers, Christy A. Hall, PE, Secretary of Transportation and Madeleine 

Hendry, Acting Deputy Secretary for Finance and Administration, sign, seal with its corporate 
seal, and as its act and deed delivered the within written instrument, and that s(he) with 
_____________________________________________ witnessed the execution thereof. 

 
 
SWORN to before me this ______               ______________________________ 
day of __________________, 2024               Witness 
 
_______________________________ 
Notary Public for South Carolina 
 
_______________________________ 
Printed Name of Notary 
 
My Commission Expires: ________ 
 
 
 
 
 

LESSEE SIGNATURE ON FOLLOWING PAGE 

 

Witness 

54

Item 13.



 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
THE STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
  )     PROBATE 
COUNTY OF  BEAUFORT   ) 

 
 

Personally appeared before me _____________________________________________ and 
made oath that s(he) saw the within named South Carolina Department of Transportation, by 
its duly authorized officers, __________________________________, sign, seal with its corporate 

seal, and as its act and deed delivered the within written instrument, and that s(he) with 
_____________________________________________ witnessed the execution thereof. 

 
 

SWORN to before me this ______                           ______________________________ 
day of __________________, 2024               Witness 

 
_______________________________ 
Notary Public for South Carolina 
 
_______________________________ 
Printed Name of Notary 
 
My Commission Expires: ________ 
 

Signed, sealed and delivered in the 
presence of 

BEAUFORT COUNTY 
“LESSEE” 

               
 
________________________________       By_________________________________(L.S.) 
Witness                 
 
 
           Its: _________________________________ 
           
 

55

Item 13.

GiammonaAL
Text Box
))                             PROBATE)

GiammonaAL
Text Box

GiammonaAL
Line



Approx 2.05 Acres

Lease Area 

Sheet 32 & 32A

File 7.558  S-80

Beaufort Co.

(Cross Island Expressway) S-80

EXHIBIT "__"A

25

SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

SCALE

0

FEET

5025

SCALE

0

FEET

50 COUNTYPREPARED

08/23/2023

DRAWING 809-105-00.
STANDARD SCDOT WITH COMPLIANCE IN DEEDS OF REGISTER THE TO SUBMITTED 

BE SHALL PLAT WAY OF RIGHT RECORDABLE A CONSTRUCTION, OF COMPLETION UPON 
ADDITIONALLY, 29201. SC COLUMBIA, STREET, PARK 955 HEADQUARTERS; SCDOT FROM 

OBTAINED BE CAN WHICH OF COPY A PLANS, ENGINEERING TO REFERENCE DIRECT 
IN IS AND AREA" "LEASE THE OF REPRESENTATION GRAPHIC A IS EXHIBIT THIS 

AREA OF  LEASE  Approx - 2.05 AC  File - 7.558

Beaufort

56

Item 13.

stonerk
Text Box

stonerk
Text Box

GiammonaAL
Polygon

GiammonaAL
Rectangle

GiammonaAL
Line



OW
NE

R

TH
ES

E 
DR

AW
IN

GS
 A

ND
 T

HE
 D

ES
IG

N 
TH

ER
EO

N 
AR

E 
TH

E 
PR

OP
ER

TY
 O

F 
DA

VI
S 

& 
FL

OY
D,

 IN
C.

 A
ND

 M
AY

 N
OT

 B
E 

US
ED

 IN
 W

HO
LE

 O
R 

IN
 P

AR
T 

W
IT

HO
UT

 W
RI

TT
EN

 C
ON

SE
NT

 O
F 

TH
E 

EN
GI

NE
ER

 / A
RC

HI
TE

CT
 A

ND
 A

NY
 IN

FR
IN

GE
ME

NT
 W

ILL
 B

E 
SU

BJ
EC

T 
TO

 LE
GA

L A
CT

IO
N

F:
\P

ro
jec

ts\
20

23
\20

23
 P

ro
jec

ts\
J2

37
07

 D
au

fus
kie

 F
er

ry 
at 

Cr
os

s I
sla

nd
 La

nd
ing

 P
h 1

\dw
g\J

22
74

6_
ms

t.d
wg

, 1
0/4

/20
23

 11
:53

:06
 A

M, c
hr

is 
ba

tes
, p

e

PR
OJ

EC
T 

TI
TL

E

DR
AW

IN
G 

TI
TL

E
NO

.
RE

LE
AS

ED
CH

EC
KE

D
DA

TE

PAGE OF

CH
EC

KE
D

DE
SI

GN
ED

JO
B 

NO
.

DR
AW

N

AP
PR

OV
ED

DA
TE

27
12

 B
UL

L S
TR

EE
T,

 S
UI

TE
 A

BE
AU

FO
RT

, S
C 

29
90

2
84

3-
74

3-
91

35

Ov
er

all
 S

ite
 P

lan

BE
AU

FO
RT

 C
OU

NT
Y

DA
UF

US
KI

E 
IS

LA
ND

 A
T 

CR
OS

S 
IS

LA
ND

4
C200

15

CA
B

CA
B

CA
B

CA
B

Oc
tob

er
 20

23

03
21

41
00

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

     

     

     

     

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

PROJECT DATUM INFORMATION:
HORIZONTAL DATUM: NAD83
VERTICAL DATUM: NAVD88

00 30 60

SCALE: 1" = 30'

R

Know what's below.
before you dig.Call

57

Item 13.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOD ZONE "X"  (OTHER FLOOD AREAS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOD ZONE "AE" (EL 8)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DHEC/OCRM CRITICAL AREA LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DHEC/OCRM CRITICAL AREA LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOTTOM OF BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOTTOM OF BANK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIP RAP (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX SAN SEWER MH RIM=7.03 INV8"n=-0.61 INV4"se=2.59 INV8"s=-1.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROSS ISLAND PARKWAY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIDGE COLUMNS AND PILE CAP/FOOTING (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
7' WD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC. PAD  (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX FLOATING DOCK (TO BE REPLACED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOCK RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
R552 010 000 0649 0000 3.142 ACRES 136,882 SQ. FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
R552 010 000 0650 0000 3.892 ACRES 169,543 SQ. FT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARSHES OF BROAD CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARSHES OF BROAD CREEK

AutoCAD SHX Text
(TIE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK SET NAIL IN PAVEMENT ELEV=8.08 DATUM=NAVD88

AutoCAD SHX Text
HELMSMAN WAY (60' R/W)

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIP RAP (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF BRIDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRIDGE COLUMNS AND PILE CAP/FOOTING (TYP.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL E

AutoCAD SHX Text
10FT MIN STREET BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
20FT IN STREET BUFFER  (ALT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE LOCATION EXISTING 10" WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE LOCATION EXISTING 8" WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCHMARK SET NAIL IN PAVEMENT ELEV=8.02 DATUM=NAVD88

AutoCAD SHX Text
OCRM  CRITICAL LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM CRITICAL LINE BUFFER (15 FT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MINIMUM CRITICAL LINE SETBACK (5 FT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVERAGE CRITICAL LINE BUFFER (35 FT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOADING ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
BIKES

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED PAVILION FFE=11.00

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' SETBACK FROM PIILE CAP/FOOTING. NO HEAVY EQUIPMENT WITHIN THIS AREA (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' SETBACK FROM PIILE CAP/FOOTING. NO HEAVY EQUIPMENT WITHIN THIS AREA (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' SETBACK FROM PIILE CAP/FOOTING. NO HEAVY EQUIPMENT WITHIN THIS AREA (TYP)

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
RPZ

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO. 28606

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
Z

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOYD, INC

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAVIS &

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO. C00538

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
STATE PLANE

GiammonaAL
Text Box
EXHIBIT B 



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

REQUEST TO PURCHASE (1) NEW CAT MODEL: 926 SMALL WHEEL LOADER ($224,402.59) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee Meeting – January 22nd, 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, P.E., Assistant County Administrator, Infrastructure 

Neil J. Desai, P.E., Public Works Director 

(5 Minutes) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Due to age and wear and tear, the equipment is in poor condition (Asset# 23271 2007 John Deere Loader). It 
is recommended by the Director of Public Works for replacement. The old asset will be disposed of per 
County Procurement Policy. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Purchase of One (1) New Cat Model: 926 Small Wheel Loader with all standard equipment.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

A quote has been provided from Blanchard in the amount of $224,402.59.  The funding source for this item 
was approved in the FY 2024 budget for Stormwater Infrastructure account # 5025-90-9020-54200. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

The Public Works Director recommends approving the purchase of the 926 Small Wheel Loader to replace the 
existing wheel loader due to the age and poor condition of the current equipment model. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to either accept/deny the recommendation to approve the purchase of a 926 Small Wheel Loader. 

Next Steps - A Majority Vote for Acceptance by Committee would move item forward to final acceptance by 
full County Council vote. 

 

58

Item 14.



 Quote 173131-01

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 
 
 
BEAUFORT COUNTY GOVERNMENT- 
PUBLIC WORKS & MAINTENANC 
120 SHANKLIN RD 
BEAUFORT, SC 29906-8402 
 
Attention: TODD DAVIS 

Jan 18, 2024
 
 
 

 
Dear Todd, 
 
We would like to thank you for your interest in our company and our products and are pleased to quote the following for your 
consideration. 
 

One (1) New Cat Model: 926 Small Wheel Loaders with all standard equipment in addition to the additional specifications 
listed below: 

 
We wish to thank you for the opportunity of quoting on your equipment needs. This quotation is valid for 30 days, after which time we 
reserve the right to re-quote. If there are any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Wiley Murph 
Machine Sales Representative 
 
 
STANDARD EQUIPMENT 
 
POWERTRAIN -Cat C7.1 ACERT engine --Auto Idle shut down feature --Auto Engine RPM --Power modes (Standard and 
Performance) --Power by range (High power in range 4) --Tier 4 final/Stage V compliant --Turbocharged and aftercooled --Filtered 
crankcase breather --Diesel particulate filter --Selective catalyst reduction -Dry type air cleaner -Coolant protection to -34C (-29F) 
-Fuel priming pump, automatic -Fuel Water separator -Differential lock in front axle -Axle seal guards -Enclosed wet disc full hydraulic 
brakes -Parking brake, electric -Lubed for life driveshafts -Hydrostatic transmission with electronic -control --Operator modes (TC, 
Hystat,Single Pedal -and Ice) --Directional shift aggressiveness (Fast, -Medium, Slow) --Auto Rimpull control, adjust wheel -torque 
--Creeper control, adjust ground speed -Single plane cooling package wide 6 fins -per inch density -Hydraulically driven demand 
cooling fan -S-O-S port,engine,coolant,transmission -oil - 
 
HYDRAULICS -Automatic lift and bucket kickouts, -adjustable in-cab -Bucket and fork modes, adjustable in-cab -Cylinder damping at 
kickout and -mechanical end stops -Fine mode control (fast, medium, slow) -in Fork Mode -Hydraulic response setting (fast, -medium, 
slow) -Hydraulic diagnostic connectors and -S-O-S ports -Hydraulic sight gauge, visible -Load sensing hydraulics and steering -Seat 
mounted hydraulic joystick controls -Cat Payload 250 hours of Demo - 
 
ELECTRICAL -Alternator, 115-amp, heavy duty -12V power supply in cab (2) -Batteries, 1,000 CCA (2) 24 volt system, -disconnect 
switch -Back up alarm -Emergency shutdown switch -LED rear stop and turn lights -Heavy duty gear reduction starter -Product Link 
-Remote jump start post -Resettable main and critical function -breakers -Roading lights front and rear - 
 
OPERATOR ENVIRONMENT -75 mm (3 in) retractable seatbelt -Automatic temperature control -Cab, enclosed ROPS/FOPS 
pressurized -and sound suppressed -Push to Start -8 Inch Touch Screen -Jog Dial with Screen Control -Programmable Joystick -Cup 
holders -External mirrors with lower -parabolic -Ground level cab door release -Hydraulic control lockout -Interior cab lighting, door 
-Lunch box storage -Operator warning system indicators -Radio ready speakers -Rear window defrost, electric -Seat mounted 
electronic implement -controls, adjustable -Sliding glass on the side windows -Column mounted multi function control --lights, wipers, 
turn signal -Suspension seat, fabric -Tilt steering wheel -Tinted front glass -Wet arm wiper/washer, 2-speed and -intermittent, front 
-Wet arm wiper washer, rear -Mounting Provision -Gauges --Digital hour meter, odometer and -tachometer --Digital ground 
speedometer and -direction indicator --Engine coolant temperature gauge --Fuel and diesel exhaust fluid level -indicator --Hydraulic oil 
temperature gauge – 

59

Item 14.



 Quote 173130101

Page 2 of 3 
 

OTHER STANDARD EQUIPMENT -Large-access enclosure doors with -adjustable close/open force -Parallel lift loader linkage 
-Recovery hitch with pin -Remote mounted lubrication points -Vandalism protection- -lockable compartments -1000 hour Service 
Intervals -(after initial 500) - 
 
 
MACHINE SPECIFICATIONS 
Description Reference No 
926 14A WHEEL LOADER 579-7700 
PREP PACK, UNITED STATES 593-8900 
STANDARD LIFT, COUPLER READY 593-8911 
HYDRAULICS, 3V 593-8913 
HYDRAULICS, STANDARD, SL 536-5281 
STEERING WHEEL, STANDARD 579-7716 
JOYSTICK 3V, STEERING WHEEL 593-8916 
DIFFERENTIAL, OPEN REAR 333-6529 
ENVIRONMENT, STANDARD 579-7720 
WEATHER, STANDARD 611-3020 
CAB, STANDARD 578-1363 
AIR CONDITIONING, R134A REF 579-7735 
ENGINE 593-8993 
PUSH START, PASSCODE SECURITY 579-7738 
CAMERA, REAR VIEW 579-7761 
MIRROR, BASE 423-7168 
SEAT, DELUXE, TILT AND TELE 593-8962 
LIGHTS, STD, HALOGEN 590-8902 
LIGHTS, ROADING, HALOGEN, RH 633-0624 
STANDARD RADIO (12V) 590-8872 
PRODUCT LINK, CELLULAR PLE643 573-8455 
FILM GP, WARNING, PL, ANSI 638-5475 
WINDSHIELD ACCESS STEPS 598-2802 
TIRES, 20.5R25 MX XTLA * L2 366-6896 
FENDERS, STANDARD 593-8950 
CTWT, STD, 538LBS, 2PCS 376-0502 
TOOLBOX AUX, NONE 519-8081 
HYDRAULIC OIL, STANDARD 619-8443 
LINES, AUX 3RD, STD LIFT 530-1623 
RIDE CONTROL 579-7697 
DECAL,HI VIS STEP,HANDRAIL,DLX 615-9210 
LIGHTS,WARNING,REVERSE STROBE 616-0040 
MIRROR, INTERNAL 2X REAR VIEW 623-6438 
QUICK COUPLER,FUSION,HIGH VIS 536-5313 
JUMPER LINES, NONE 536-5339 
CARRIAGE, CON, FORK, 60'', FUS 538-3866 
BUCKET-GP, 3.0 YD3, FUS, BOCE 360-3323 
VL Access for 3 years  
 

SELL PRICE $223,902.59 

EXT WARRANTY Included 

CSA Included 

60

Item 14.



 Quote 173131-01

Page 3 of 3 
 

NET BALANCE DUE $223,902.59 

SC SALES TAX $500.00 

AFTER TAX BALANCE $224,402.59 

 
WARRANTY 
Standard Warranty: 12 Months - Unlimited 

Extended Warranty: 926-36 MO/5000 HR POWERTRAIN + HYDRAULICS + TECH 

CSA  2 YEARS/1,000 HOURS PARTS KIT,OIL 
SAMPLING,LABOR,FLUIDS,TT&M 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Accepted by___________________________________ on ____________________  
 
                                                                              ______________________________ 
                                                                                           Signature 
 

61

Item 14.



Cat®

926
Wheel loader

Features:
CONFIGURED FOR SUCCESS
	� Cat wheel loaders set the standard for productivity, fuel efficiency, 
operator comfort and low operating costs. The Cat 926 Small Wheel 
Loader features a high torque C7.1 engine that works in conjunction 
with an intelligent hydrostatic power train to deliver exceptional fuel 
efficiency. Meets U.S. EPA Tier 4 Final and EU Stage V emission 
standards, designed to manage itself so you can concentrate on your 
work. Extended service intervals to 1000 hours reduce fluid and filter 
use by up to 45% (compared to previous M Series models) while 
keeping operating cost low. 

ENJOY ALL DAY COMFORT
	� Have a seat in the new Cat small wheel loader and enjoy automatic 
temperature control, class leading sound levels, enhanced all-around 
visibility and low-effort joystick controls that move with you on a fully 
adjustable seat suspension. A large spacious operator environment 
combined with Caterpillar hydraulic cylinder damping and smooth 
predictable controls make this the most comfortable seat on your jobsite. 
	� An upgrade to multi-view camera and rear object detection gives 
you an extra eye on the jobsite while the new optional force feedback 
joystick steering keeps you feeling confident on those long shifts. 
The operator not present function helps to isolate the machine if you 
leave the environment; while seat belt notifications give you a gentle 
reminder to buckle up.

EFFICIENTLY POWERFUL
	� Experience the difference with an intelligent hydrostatic power train 
and industry leading fuel savings through a lower maximum engine 
speed working in combination with a new auto engine RPM mode. 
This provides efficiency as standard with a boost in power when you 
need it. Optimize traction and minimize wheel slip with a new Auto 
Wheel Torque system tuned to provide peak performance while 
maximizing tire life and keeping operating costs low. Track your 
production and accurately hit your load targets with Cat Payload. 
250 hours of Cat Payload demonstration will be included as standard 
with an optional subscription for extended use. 

WORK MADE EASY
	� Move more with the Caterpillar patented quick loading performance 
series buckets and optimized Z-bar linkage with enhanced forward 
visibility that combines the digging efficiency of a traditional Z-bar with 
tool carrier capabilities. The parallel lift and high tilt forces throughout the 
working range allow you to confidently handle loads with precise control. 
	� Multi-function work has never been easier with dedicated pumps 
for each system and a flow sharing implement valve governed by 
an intelligent power management system. Simultaneously lift, steer, 
and drive without compromise. Upgrade to autolube and tire pressure 
monitoring to make service easy and get to work quicker. Light the 
way with auto roading lights that come on at night fall.

CUSTOMIZE YOUR EXPERIENCE
	� Meet your application requirements and individual preferences with 
Caterpillar industry first Hystat™ Operator Modes featuring four unique 
power train settings. Select classic torque converter for smooth rollout, 
conventional hystat for aggressive engine braking, an ice mode that 
maximizes your control on slippery underfoot, and an all new single 
pedal mode for simplified use. 
	� Fine tune machine performance with adjustments at your fingertips 
through programmable joysticks, soft touch buttons, and a new jog dial 
that works in combination with a standard touch screen display. Quickly 
recall attachment profiles that maintain key settings for versatility on 
the jobsite and optimal efficiency. 

PURPOSE BUILT SPECIALITY MODELS 
	� Configure your Cat small wheel loader to meet the needs of your 
applications with a full range of options. The 926 features the following 
application specific arrangements that are configured for success:

 – Waste Handler
 – Aggregate Handler
 – Ag Handler (Europe Only)

UPGRADES AND SERVICES
	� Enjoy a full range of upgrades and accessories to configure your 
small wheel loader for a broader range of applications. 
	� Utilize readily available services and maintenance parts, including 
a range of self-service options (SSO) and dealer installed kits.

62

Item 14.



2

926 Wheel Loader

Engine
Engine Model Cat® C7.1*
Performance Mode Automatic
Rated Gross Power
 Rated Engine Speed 1,800 rpm
 SAE J1995 127 kW 170 hp
 SAE J1995 (DIN) 172 mph (PS)
Rated Engine Power
 ISO 14396 125 kW 168 hp
 ISO 14396 (DIN) 170 mhp (PS)
Rated Net Power
 SAE J1349 at Minimum Fan Speed 123 kW 165 hp
 ISO 9249 at Minimum Fan Speed 123 kW 165 hp
 ISO 9249 (DIN) at Minimum Fan Speed 167 mhp (PS)

* Meets U.S EPA Tier 4 Final, EU Stage V off-highway, and Japan 2014 
emission standards.

• Advertised power is tested per the specified standard in effect at the time 
of manufacture.

Engine (continued)
Maximum Gross Torque
 Engine Speed 1,400 rpm
 SAE J1995 824 N·m 608 lbf-ft
 ISO 14396 815 N·m 601 lbf-ft
Maximum Net Torque
 SAE J1349 804 N·m  593 lbf-ft
 ISO 9249 807 N·m  595 lbf-ft
Displacement 427 in³ 7.01 L
Bore 4 in 105 mm
Stroke 5 in 135 mm

• Net power ratings are tested at the reference conditions for the specified 
standard and denote power available at the flywheel when engine is 
equipped with alternator, air cleaner, emission components and fan 
at specified speed.

• No derating required up to 3000 m (10,000 ft) altitude. Auto derate protects 
hydraulic and transmission systems.

Specifications

Purpose Built: Handlers Arrangements
A complete range of optional equipment and work tool attachments gives you the versatility to configure a handler package to be successful in your 
business. Get with Caterpillar to configure yours.

	� Increased Payload: Additional counterweight improves stability 
without reducing ground clearance or departure angle to maximize 
performance. 

	� Long Life Sand and Gravel Buckets: Performance series buckets 
deliver higher fill factors and better material retention for significant 
productivity and fuel efficiency improvements. Buckets feature a long 
floor, open throat, curved side bars and additional serviceable wear 
plates including corner guards. 

	� Protect your Power Train: Increase your fording depth with optional 
elevated breathers. Remote mounted high on the machine for the front 
and rear axles and hydrostatic gear box. Allows settling pond cleanout 
without contamination.

	� Guard Your Investment: Choose from a complete range of optional 
guarding to protect your machine from the harsh environment of 
a waste handling application. Machine guarding is purpose built 
to protect the machine’s major components. 

	� Breathe Clean: Maximize your engine life and extend filter cleaning 
intervals with a turbine pre-cleaner. Keep cool with a reversing fan 
to purge the single plane, widely spaced core cooling package 
and brush-less sealed alternator. Breathe clean with a powered 
pre-cleaner for the operator environment. 

	� Maximize Tire Life: Fine tune your wheel torque to match the 
underfoot conditions and maximize performance while extending 
tire life. Standard auto wheel torque is ideal for waste handling 
applications.

Aggregate Handler Waste Handler

63

Item 14.



3

926 Wheel Loader

Buckets
Bucket Capacities 1.9-5.0 m3 2.5-6.5 yd3

Steering
Steering Cylinder
 Bore Diameter 70 mm 2.8 in
 Rod Diameter 40 mm 1.6 in
 Stroke 438 mm 17.2 in
Maximum Flow – Steering Pump 130 L/min 34 gal/min
Maximum Working Pressure –  
 Steering Pump 24 130 kPa 3,500 psi
Steering Cycle Times (Full Left to Full Right)
 Minimum RPM: Pump Flow Limited 2.8 seconds
 Maximum RPM: 90 rpm Steering  
 Wheel Speed 2.4 seconds

Loader Hydraulic System 
Maximum Flow – Implement Pump 150 L/min 40 gal/min
 3rd Function Maximum Flow* 150 L/min 40 gal/min
 4th Function Maximum Flow* 150 L/min 40 gal/min
Maximum Working Pressure –  
 Implement Pump 26 000 kPa 3,771 psi
Relief Pressure – Tilt Cylinder 28 000 kPa 4,061 psi
 3rd and 4th Function Maximum 
 Working Pressure 26 000 kPa 3,771 psi
 3rd and 4th Function Relief Pressure 28 000 kPa 4,061 psi
Lift Cylinder – Standard Lift Linkage:
 Bore Diameter 110 mm 4.3 in
 Rod Diameter 60 mm 2.4 in
 Stroke 728 mm 28.7 in
Tilt Cylinder – Standard Lift Linkage:
 Bore Diameter 140 mm 5.5 in
 Rod Diameter 75 mm 3.0 in
 Stroke 516 mm 20.3 in
Hydraulic Cycle Time:
 Raise (Ground Level to Maximum Lift) 5.5 seconds 
 Dump (at Maximum Lift Height) 1.5 seconds
 Float Down (Maximum Lift to  
 Ground Level) 2.6 seconds
 Total Cycle Time 9.6 seconds

* 3rd and 4th function flow is fully adjustable from 20% to 100% 
of maximum flow through the secondary display when equipped. 

Service Refill Capacities
Fuel Tank  195 L 51.5 gal 
Cooling System  30 L  7.9 gal 
Engine Crankcase  20 L 5.3 gal 
Transmission (gearbox)  8.5 L 2.2 gal 
Axles: 
 Front  26 L 6.9 gal 
 Rear  25 L 6.6 gal 
Hydraulic System (including tank) 160 L 42.3 gal 
Hydraulic Tank  90 L  23.8 gal 
Diesel Exhaust Fluid (DEF) Tank  19 L 5 gal

• DEF used in Cat systems must meet the requirements outlined in the 
International Organization for Standardization (ISO) standard 22241-1.

Transmission
Forward and Reverse
 Range 1* 1-13 km/h 0.6-8 mph
 Range 2 13 km/h 8 mph
 Range 3 27 km/h 17 mph
 Range 4 40 km/h 25 mph

* Creeper control allows maximum speed range adjustability from 1 km/h 
(0.6 mph) to 13 km/h (8 mph) in Range 1 through the secondary display 
when equipped. Factory default is 7 km/h (4.4 mph). 

Tires
Standard Size:
 20.5 R25, radial (L-3) 
Other Choices Include: 
 20.5 R25, radial (L-2)  17.5 R25, radial (L-2)
 20.5 R25, radial (L-5) 17.5 R25, radial (L-3)
 20.5-25 12PR (L-2) 17.5 R25, radial (L-5)
 20.5-25 12PR (L-3) 550/65 R25 radial (L-3) 
 20.5-25 16PR (L-5) Skidder/Agriculture 

– Other tire choices are available. Contact your Cat dealer for details. 
–  In certain applications, the loader’s productive capabilities may exceed 

the tire’s tonnes-km/h (ton-mph) capabilities.
–  Caterpillar recommends that you consult a tire supplier to evaluate all 

conditions before selecting a tire model.

Cab
Rollover Protective Structure (ROPS):  ISO 3471:2008 
Falling Object Protective Structure (FOPS):  ISO 3449:2005 LEVEL II

Axles
Front  Fixed  
  Locking differential (standard) 
Rear  Oscillating ±11 degrees  
  Open differential (standard)  
  Limited slip differential (optional)

Specifications (continued)

64

Item 14.



4

926 Wheel Loader

CONFIGURED FOR SUCCESS:
Machine upgrades, either as a do-it-yourself option or dealer installed.

Guards 
	� Windshield 
	� Tilt cylinder 
	� Lights 
	� Fender deflectors 
	� Drive shaft 
	� Hitch 
	� Steering cylinders 
	� Side power train 
	� Lower power train 
	� Crank case

Debris Management
	� Reversing fan 
	� Sealed alternator 
	� Turbine engine precleaner 
	� Powered cab precleaner

Operator Environment
	� Bluetooth Key Fob 
	� Multi View Camera 
	� Internal Mirrors
	� Washing Platform 

Other Options
	� Autolube 
	� Coupler: Fusion and ISO 23727:2009 
	� Auxiliary hydraulics: 3rd and 4th 
	� Window washing access 
	� Ride control 
	� Fenders: extended and full coverage 
	� Counterweights 
	� Rear object detection 
	� Blue Angel certification 
	� Beacon: Warning and Seatbelt
	� LED auxiliary lights 
	� Cat Payload Printer
	� Tire Pressure Monitoring
	� Polycarbonate windshield
	� 4-point harness  

WORK TOOL ATTACHMENTS FOR EVERY JOB: 
Get more from your machine with Cat attachments. Choose from a wide variety of options and tailor your machine to different tasks and conditions.

General Purpose Buckets Light Material Buckets High Dump Buckets Pallet Forks Construction Forks

Angle and Pickup Brooms Snow Pushes Snow Plows Millyard Forks Material Handling Arms 

65

Item 14.



5

926 Wheel Loader

2

1

6

8

16

9
11

12
13

10
14

7

5

23

24

25

15 4 26 3

Standard Lift High Lift
** 1 Height: Ground to Cab 3340 mm 10'11" 3340 mm 10'11"
** 2 Height: Ground to Beacon 3707 mm 12'2" 3707 mm 12'2"
** 3 Height: Ground to Axle Center 685 mm 2'3" 685 mm 2'3"
** 4 Height: Ground Clearance 397 mm 1'4" 397 mm 1'4"

* 5 Length: Overall 7388 mm 24'3" 8065 mm 26'6"
6 Length: Rear Axle to Bumper 1958 mm 6'5" 1958 mm 6'5"
7 Length: Hitch to Front Axle 1500 mm 4'11" 1500 mm 4'11"
8 Length: Wheelbase 3000 mm 9'10" 3000 mm 9'10"

* 9 Clearance: Bucket at 45° 2881 mm 9'5" 3378 mm 11'1"
** 10 Clearance: Load over Height 3351 mm 11'0" 3550 mm 11'8"
** 11 Clearance: Level Bucket 3576 mm 11'9" 4073 mm 13'4"
** 12 Height: Bucket Pin 3903 mm 12'10" 4400 mm 14'5"
** 13 Height: Overall 5072 mm 16'8" 5569 mm 18'3"

* 14 Reach: Bucket at 45° 928 mm 3'1" 1261 mm 4'2"
15 Carry Height: Bucket Pin 382 mm 1'3" 582 mm 1'11"

** 16 Dig Depth 100 mm 3.9" 135 mm 5.3"
17 Width: Bucket 2550 mm 8'4" 2550 mm 8'4"
18 Width: Tread Center 1930 mm 6'4" 1930 mm 6'4"
19 Turning Radius: Over Bucket 5903 mm 19'4" 6226 mm 20'5"
20 Width: Over Tires 2540 mm 8'4" 2540 mm 8'4"
21 Turning Radius: Outside of Tires 5402 mm 17'9" 5402 mm 17'9"
22 Turning Radius: Inside of Tires 2851 mm 9'4" 2851 mm 9'4"
23 Rack Angle at Full Lift 53° 51°
24 Dump Angle at Full Lift 50° 49°
25 Rack Angle at Carry 41° 47°
26 Departure Angle 33° 33°
27 Articulation Angle 40° 40°

* Tipping Load – Straight (ISO 14397-1:2007) 8771 kg 19,337 Ib 6449 kg 14,218 lb
* Tipping Load – Full Turn (ISO 14397-1:2007) 7567 kg 16,682 Ib 5508 kg 12,143 lb
* Breakout 11 558 kg 25,481 Ib 9714 kg 21,416 lb
* Operating Weight 12 688 kg 27,972 Ib 13 049 kg 28,767 lb

*Vary with bucket.
**Vary with tire.
Dimensions listed are for a machine configured with 1.9 m³ (2.5 yd³) general purpose Fusion™ bucket, bolt-on cutting edge, standard counterweights, 
additional guarding, 80 kg (176 Ib) operator and 20.5 R25 (L-3) XHA2 tires.

Dimensions and Operating Specifications (All dimensions are approximate. Dimensions vary with bucket and tire choice.)

19
21

22

20
18

27

17

66

Item 14.



6

926 Wheel Loader

Engine

• The Cat® C7.1 engine meets U.S EPA Tier 4 Final, EU Stage V  
off-highway, and Japan 2014 emission standards. 

• Cat diesel engines are required to use ULSD (ultra-low sulfur 
diesel fuel with 15 ppm of sulfur or less) or ULSD blended with 
the following lower-carbon intensity fuels** up to:

  20% biodiesel FAME (fatty acid methyl ester)*
   100% renewable diesel, HVO (hydrogenated vegetable oil) 

and GTL (gas-to-liquid) fuels
Refer to guidelines for successful application. Please consult your 
Cat dealer or “Caterpillar Machine Fluids Recommendations” 
(SEBU6250) for details.
* Engines with no aftertreatment devices can use higher blends, 
up to 100% biodiesel (for use of blends higher than 20% biodiesel, 
consult your Cat dealer).

** Tailpipe greenhouse gas emissions from lower-carbon intensity fuels 
are essentially the same as traditional fuels.

Air Conditioning System

• The air conditioning system on this machine contains the 
fluorinated greenhouse gas refrigerant R134a (Global Warming 
Potential = 1430). The system contains 1.9 kg (4.2 lb) of refrigerant 
which has a CO2 equivalent of 2.717 metric tonnes (2.99 tons).

Paint

• Based on best available knowledge, the maximum allowable 
concentration, measured in parts per million (PPM), of the 
following heavy metals in paint are: 
– Barium < 0.01% 
– Cadmium < 0.01% 
– Chromium < 0.01%
– Lead < 0.01%

Sound Performance

With cooling fan speed at 70% of maximum value:

Operator Sound Pressure Level (ISO 6396:2008) – 68 dB(A)*

Exterior Sound Power Level (ISO 6395:2008) – 101 dB(A)**

* Measurements were conducted with properly installed 
and maintained cab doors and windows closed.

** European Union Directive 2000/14/EC and UK Noise 
Regulation 2001 No. 1701.

Oils and Fluids

• Caterpillar factory fills with ethylene glycol coolants. Cat Diesel 
Engine Antifreeze/Coolant (DEAC) and Cat Extended Life 
Coolant (ELC) can be recycled. Consult your Cat dealer for 
more information.

• Cat Bio HYDO™ Advanced is an EU Ecolabel approved 
biodegradable hydraulic oil.

• Additional fluids are likely to be present, please consult the 
Operations and Maintenance Manual or the Application and 
Installation guide for complete fluid recommendations and 
maintenance intervals.

Features and Technology

• The following features and technology may contribute to fuel 
savings and/or carbon reduction. Features may vary. Consult 
your Cat dealer for details.
– Tire Pressure Monitoring 
– Cat Production Measurement 
– Auto Wheel Torque Control 
– Auto Engine RPM
– Extended Maintenance Intervals 
– Intelligent Hystat Transmission 
– Performance Series Buckets 
– Engine Idle Shutdown 
– Variable Displacement Pumps

Recycling

• The materials included in machines are categorized as below with 
approximate weight percentage. Because of variations of product 
configurations, the following values in the table may vary.

Material Type Weight Percentage
Steel 67.08% 

Iron 12.92% 

Rubber 6.63% 

Nonferrous Metal 3.42% 

Other 3.10% 

Fluid 2.13% 

Plastic 1.51% 

Uncategorized 1.39% 

Mixed Metal 1.01% 

Mixed-Metal and Nonmetal 0.79% 

Mixed Nonmetallic 0.01% 

Total 100.00%

• A machine with higher recyclability rate will ensure more efficient 
usage of valuable natural resources and enhance End-of-Life 
value of the product. According to ISO 16714:2008 (Earthmoving 
machinery – Recyclability and recoverability – Terminology and 
calculation method), recyclability rate is defined as percentage by 
mass (mass fraction in percent) of the new machine potentially 
able to be recycled, reused or both.
All parts in the bill of material are first evaluated by component 
type based on a list of components defined by the ISO 16714:2008 
and Japan CEMA (Construction Equipment Manufacturers 
Association) standards. Remaining parts are further evaluated 
for recyclability based on material type.
Because of variations of product configurations, the following 
value in the table may vary.

Recyclability – 95%

The following information applies to the machine at the time of final manufacture as configured for sale in the regions covered in this 
document. The content of this declaration is valid as of the date issued; however, content related to machine features and specifications 
are subject to change without notice. For additional information, please see the machine’s Operation and Maintenance Manual.

For more information on sustainability in action and our progress, please visit https://www.caterpillar.com/en/company/sustainability.

926 Environmental Declaration

67

Item 14.



7

926 Wheel Loader

STANDARD EQUIPMENT
OPeratOr eNVIrONMeNt 
	� 75 mm (3 in) retractable seatbelt
	� Automatic temperature control
	� Cab, enclosed ROPS/FOPS pressurized 
and sound suppressed
	� Push to Start
	� 8 Inch Touch Screen
	� Jog Dial with screen control
	� Programmable Joystick
	� Cup holders
	� External mirrors with lower parabolic
	� Ground level cab door release
	� Hydraulic control lockout
	� Interior cab lighting, door 
	� Lunch box storage
	� Operator Not Present system 
	� Radio ready speakers
	� Rear window defrost, electric
	� Seat mounted electronic implement controls, 
adjustable
	� Sliding glass on side window
	� Column mounted multi function control lights, 
wipers, turn signal
	� Suspension seat, fabric
	� Tilt steering wheel
	� Tinted front glass
	� Wet arm wiper/washer, 2-speed and 
intermittent, front
	� Wet arm wiper washer, rear
	� Mounting Provision
	� Digital hour meter, odometer and tachometer
	� Digital ground speedometer and direction 
indicator
	� Engine coolant temperature gauge
	� Fuel and diesel exhaust fluid levels
	� Hydraulic oil temperature gauge

POWer traIN 
	� Cat C7.1 engine
	� Auto idle shut down feature
	� Auto Engine RPM
	� Tier 4 Final/EU Stage V compliant
	� Turbocharged and aftercooled
	� Filtered crankcase breather
	� Diesel particulate filter
	� Selective catalyst reduction
	� Dry type air cleaner
	� Coolant protection to –34 °C (–29 °F)
	� Fuel priming pump, automatic
	� Fuel water separator
	� Differential lock in front axle
	� Axle seal guards
	� Enclosed wet disc full hydraulic brakes
	� Parking brake, electric
	� Lubed for life driveshafts
	� Hydrostatic transmission with 
electronic control
	� Operator modes (TC, Hystat,  
Single Pedal  and Ice)
	� Directional shift aggressiveness 
(fast, medium, slow)
	� Auto Wheel Torque control, 
adjust wheel torque
	� Creeper control, adjust ground speed
	� Single plane cooling package, wide 6 fins 
per inch density
	� Hydraulically driven demand cooling fan
	� Scheduled Oil Sampling (S·O·SSM) port, 
engine, coolant, transmission

HYDrauLICs 
	� Automatic lift and bucket kickouts, 
adjustable in-cab
	� Bucket and fork modes, adjustable in-cab
	� Cylinder damping at kickout and mechanical 
end stops
	� Fine mode control (fast, medium, slow)
	� Hydraulic response setting (fast, medium, slow)
	� Hydraulic diagnostic connectors and
	� S·O·S ports
	� Hydraulic sight gauge, visible
	� Load sensing hydraulics and steering
	� Seat mounted hydraulic joystick controls
	� Cat Payload 250 hours of Demo 

eLeCtrICaL 
	� Alternator, 115-amp, heavy duty
	� 12V power supply in cab (2)
	� Batteries, 1,000 CCA (2) 24-volt system, 
disconnect switch
	� Back up alarm
	� Emergency shutdown switch
	� LED rear stop and turn lights
	� Heavy duty gear reduction starter
	� Product Link™ Elite 
	� Remote jump start post
	� Resettable main and critical function 
breakers
	� Roading lights front and rear

OtHer
	� Large-access enclosure doors with 
adjustable close/open force
	� Parallel lift loader linkage
	� Recovery hitch with pin
	� Remote mounted lubrication points
	� Lockable compartments
	� 1000-hour Service Intervals (after initial 500)

68

Item 14.



OPTIONAL EQUIPMENT
OPeratOr eNVIrONMeNt 
	� Joystick steering – 25 mph (40 kph) capable
	� Radio packages 
	� Telescoping Steering Column 
	� Deluxe seat – fully adjustable fabric air 
suspension seat with mid seat backrest 
	� Premium seat – fully adjustable leather and 
fabric air suspension with high backrest 
and air lumbar support. Seat is heated and 
ventilated on bottom cushion and backrest. 
	� Rear Object Detection 
	� Multi View Camera
	� Front View Camera, roof mounted
	� Heated external Mirrors (2)
	� Electrically adjustable and heated 
external mirrors (2) 
	� Internal Mirrors (2)
	� Sunscreen, front and rear 
	� Windshield Washing Platform
	� Powered precleaned for cab air
	� Cab guarding 

POWer traIN 
	� Differential, limited slip, rear 
	� Powertrain Guarding
	� Tire Pressure Monitoring (TPM)
	� Range of Tire Options  
	� Fenders (extended cover and full coverage)

HYDrauLICs 
	� Auxiliary flow, third and fourth function
	� Connect Under Pressure Disconnects
	� Ride Control System, adjustable via display 
	� Autolube, integrated in display 
	� Biodegradable Oil 
	� Debris packages (low, medium, high)

eLeCtrICaL 
	� Cold start package 
	� Ether starting aid, block heater and additional 
batteries, 1,000 CCA (4 total) 
	� Lights, auxiliary, halogen or LED with engine 
and DEF compartment lights 
	� Beacon light, strobe 
	� Light Guarding 

OtHer OPtIONaL eQuIPMeNt 
	� Linkage, high lift 
	� Coupler, (Fusion and ISO 23727:2009) 
	� Aggregate Counterweight
	� Cat Payload Printer 
	� Cylinder Guarding 
	� Range of Work Tool Attachments

NOTE:  Not all features are available 
in all regions.

926 Wheel Loader

AEHQ8448 (10-2023) 
Build Number: 14A 
(N Am, EU, ANZP,  

Chile, Turkey)

For more complete information on Cat products, dealer services, and industry solutions, visit us on the web 
at www.cat.com

© 2023 Caterpillar 
All rights reserved

Materials and specifications are subject to change without notice. Featured machines in photos may include 
additional equipment. See your Cat dealer for available options.

CAT, CATERPILLAR, LET’S DO THE WORK, their respective logos, “Caterpillar Corporate Yellow,” the  
“Power Edge” and Cat “Modern Hex” trade dress as well as corporate and product identity used herein,  
are trademarks of Caterpillar and may not be used without permission.

69

Item 14.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD TO EUROVIA ATLANTIC DBA BLYTHE FOR IFB #011224E YEAR 7 RESURFACING 
PROJECT ($5,036,574.54) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee – January 22, 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix – Assistant County Administrator - Engineering (5 mins) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

On December 12, 2023, Beaufort County published IFB #011224E Year 7 Resurfacing Project requesting 
competitive bids for the material procurement and construction of a hot mixed asphalt roadway 
resurfacing. On January 12, 2024, the County received two (2) bids to perform the specified scope. 
Eurovia Atlantic DBA Blythe was the apparent lowest responsive bid. 

 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

A pavement condition report for County roads was prepared by F&ME Consultants dated February 
16, 2022 and a condition assessment for SCDOT owned roads was prepared by A. Morton Thomas & 
Associates, Inc. dated October 3, 2022, which serves as a basis for evaluating pavement 
maintenance and preservation methods for the Beaufort County roadway network.  

This award was presented to County Transportation Committee at the January 17, 2024 meeting and 
approved.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

The contract fee is for materials and construction in the amount of $4,197,145.45. Staff recommends 
a 20% contingency of $839,429.09, bringing the project’s total cost to $5,036,574.54. The funding 
for this project will be CTC Infrastructure account number 2343-30-0000-54500 with a balance of 
$15,808,966.86. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval to award Eurovia Atlantic DBA Blythe for IFB #011224E Year 7 Resurfacing Project 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny recommendation to award Eurovia Atlantic DBA Blythe for IFB #011224E Year 7 
Resurfacing Project  

Next Step: Move forward to County Council to award Eurovia Atlantic DBA Blythe for IFB #011224E Year 7 
Resurfacing Project 

 

70

Item 15.



PRELIMINARY BID TABULATION
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

Project Name:
Beaufort County Road Resurfacing Projects 

- Year 7

Project Number: IFB 011224E
Project Budget:
Bid Opening Date: 12-Jan-24
Time: 3:00:00 PM
Location: Beaufort County
Bid Administrator: Dave Thomas
Bid Recorder: Victoria Moyer

The following bids were received for the above referenced project:

BIDDER 
BID     

FORM
ALL 

ADDENDA
Bid 

Bond
SCH OF 
VALUES

SMBE 
Docs Sub Listing Grand Total Price 

Eurovia Atlantic DBA Blythe X X X X X X
2,313,309.55$                                             

County Roads

1,749,771.10$                                             
SCDOT

134,064.80$                                                
Bluffton Pkwy Patching

4,197,145.45$                                             Grand Total All 3 

APAC Atlantic X 2,723,467.60$                                             County Roads

1,668,652.65$                                             SCDOT

180,036.30$                                                Bluffton Pkwy Patching

4,572,156.55$                                             Grand Total All 3 

Bid Administrator Signature Bid Recorder

Beaufort County posts PRELIMINARY bid tabulation information within 2 business days of the advertised bid opening.  Information on the PRELIMINARY bid 
tabulation is posted as it was read during the bid opening.  Beaufort County makes no guarantees as to the accuracy of any information on the PRELIMINARY 
tabulation.  The bid results indicated here do not necessarily represent the final compliance review by Beaufort County and are subject to change. After the review, 
the final award will be made by Beaufort County Council and a certified bid tab will be posted online. 

1/12/2024
71

Item 15.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Recommendation to Award Year 7 Resurfacing Construction Management and CEI to Transystems 
($196,672.20) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee – January 22, 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, Assistant County Administrator – Engineering 

(5 mins) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Transystems’s proposal was reviewed and found understanding of the required scope and deemed 
responsive. 

 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

Transystems submitted to, and was selected as an on-call firm through RFQ062222E Beaufort County 
Construction Management and CEI On-Call services. Through the on-call, Transystems was selected to provide 
construction management and CEI services for the Yer 7 Resurfacing project. Transystems submitted pricing 
information on December 19, 2023. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Transystems’s bid total of $163,893.50, with a 20% contingency of $32,778.70, for a total project 
cost of $196,672.20.  

The funding for this project is CTC Infrastructure account # number 2343-30-0000-54500 with a balance of 
$15,808,966.86. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval to award Year 7 Resurfacing Construction Management & CEI to Transystems 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny recommendation to award Year 7 Resurfacing Construction management and CEI to 
Transystems. 

Next Step: Item does not need Council approval since its less than $200k. Procurement to issue a contract to 
vendor. 

 

72

Item 16.



Classification Hourly Rate Hrs/wk #weeks Daily Rate # Days Monthly Rate # months Total Classification Hourly Rate Hrs/wk #weeks Daily Rate # Days Monthly Rate #Month
Project Maanger 158.75$      16 12 30,480.00$ Project Manager 158.75$       10 16 25,400.00$    

vehicle usage 65.00$    8 520.00$       vehicle usage 65.00$    31 2,015.00$      
Mid-Lvel Inspector 85.85$        45 12 46,359.00$ Mid-Level Inspector 85.85$          32 16 43,955.20$    

vehicle usage 65.00$    32 2,080.00$   vehicle usage 65.00$    124 8,060.00$      
air card 60.00$        2 120.00$       air card 60.00$            7 420.00$          

Project Admin 71.00$        2 12 1,704.00$   Project Admin 71.00$          1 16 1,136.00$      
Accountant 117.45$      0.5 12 704.70$       Accountant 117.45 0.5 16 939.60$          

81,967.70$ 81,925.80$    

163,893.50$               

*Testing of ashalt to be completed by SCDOT SC-M-400 specifications requiring contractor or third party to conduct testing of actual asphalt properties to meet SCDOT requirements
**This fee is to provide a mid-level insepctor with Asphalt Roadway Technician certification and a project manager well versed with SCDOT procedures, specifications and reporting requirements
***According to documents provided on 12/5/2023, there will be no need for laboratory services, 
****Assuming slower than normal production on driveways, as 139 are accounted for in summary of estimated quantities.

CTC Total

Total Fee Amount

SCDOT CTC

Year 7 Paving Program

SCDOT Total

73

Item 16.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Recommendation to Award sole source contract for Year 7 Rejuvenator to Pavement Technology, Inc. 

($189,485.93) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee – January 22, 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, Assistant County Administrator – Engineering 

(5 mins) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

The asphalt rejuvenator product Reclamite is proprietary and Pavement Technology, Inc. is the sole 
source provider and applicator in this area.  Non-competitive purchase form was submitted on 
December 15, 2023, and approved by purchasing department.  

 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

A pavement condition report for County roads was prepared by F&ME Consultants dated February 
16, 2022, and a condition assessment for SCDOT owned roads was prepared by A. Morton Thomas & 
Associates, Inc. dated October 3, 2022, which serves as a basis for evaluating pavement 
maintenance and preservation methods for the Beaufort County roadway network. On August 14, 
2023, Beaufort County received a proposal from Pavement Technology, Inc for asphalt rejuvenator and on 
December 1, 2023 the pricing was confirmed to still be applicable. 

This award was presented to County Transportation Committee at the January 17, 2024, meeting and 
approved.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

The contract fee is for materials and construction in the amount of $172,259.94. Staff recommends 
a 10% contingency of $17,225.99, bringing the project’s total cost to $189,485.93. The funding for 
this project will be CTC Infrastructure account number 2343-30-0000-54500 with a balance of 
$15,808,966.86. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval to award Year 7 Rejuvenator to Pavement Technology, Inc. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny recommendation to award Year 7 Rejuvenator to Pavement Technology, Inc. 

Next Step: Item does not need Council approval since its less than $200k. Procurement to issue a contract to 
vendor.  

 

74

Item 17.



Pavement  
  Technology,  
     Inc. 
24144 Detroit Rd. 

Westlake, Ohio  44145 

      Phone: 800-333-6309 440-892-1895 

      Fax: 440-892-0953 
 

August 14, 2023 

 

Mr. Bryan Bauer, PE 

Transportation Construction Manager 

Beaufort County Public Works 

120 Shanklin Road 

Beaufort, SC  29906 

 

Dear Mr. Bauer: 

 

We are pleased to offer our proposal to apply Reclamite® asphalt rejuvenator to the streets listed below. 

 

       Square   

Street From To Yards  Amount 

Cardinal Rd Beach City Mathews Dr. 5,655 $6,672.90 

Broadland Cir Hollowtail Dr Willowtrace Ln 3,840 $4,531.20 

Quarter Horse Rd Clydesdale Cir Palomino Rd 2,048 $2,416.64 

Jonesville Rd Spanish Wells Rd Terminus 17,443 $20,582.74 

Palmetto Parkway William Hilton Pkwy Mathews Dr 7,219 $8,518.42 

Barberry Ln Baywood Dr Terminus 1,076 $1,269.68 

Forest Field Rd Parris Island Gtwy Clydesdale Cir 3,287 $3,878.66 

Shetland Ln Clydesdale Cir Clydesdale Cir 668 $788.24 

Gardner Dr 278 Leg-O-Mutton 21,328 $25,167.04 

Willowtrace Ln Lakepoint Dr Broadland Cir 2,112 $2,492.16 

Cardinal Court Cardinal Rd Terminus 1,825 $2,153.50 

Sandy Pointe Dr Skylark Dr Sunny Glen Dr 4,725 $5,575.50 

Knightsbridge Rd Terminus Terminus 13,061 $15,411.98 

Sandy Beach Tr Burkes Beach Trail Start of brick pavers 1,167 $1,377.06 

Soperton Dr Parking Lot Terminus 8,167 $9,637.06 

Ann Smith Dr Burnt Church Rd Soperton Dr 9,536 $11,252.48 

Professional Village Cir Terminate 300' from Sea Island Pkwy Terminate 300' from Sea Island Pkwy 1,444 $1,703.92 

Prescott Rd Old Sheldon Church Terminus 10,689 $12,613.02 

Browns Island Rd Gum Tree Ln Causeway 12,637 $14,911.66 

Dolphin Point Dr Islands Causeway Terminus 18,056 $21,306.08 

Total   145,983 $172,259.94 

75

Item 17.



Page 2 

 
Our unit price of $1.18 per square yard is inclusive of traffic control, notification of residents and all labor and material 

necessary to complete the work. 

 

Actual field measurements will determine final quantities. 

 

Thank you for your continued interest in pavement preservation with Reclamite®. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Ken Holton 
 

Ken Holton 

kholton@pavetechinc.com 

76

Item 17.

mailto:kholton@pavetechinc.com


https://beaufortcountysc-0bad3c45979102.sharepoint.com/sites/Forms/FormsApp/UFRuntime.aspx?remoteAppUrl=https://formso365.nintex.com&am… 1/4

Non-Competitive Purchases Form

This form shall be completed for any non-competitive purchase that is not exempt.

(a)A County contract may be awarded without competition when the Purchasing Director determines in
writing, after conducting a good faith review of available sources, that there is only one source for the
required supply, service, or construction item.  The Purchasing Director shall conduct negotiations, as
appropriate, as to price, delivery, and terms.  A record of sole source procurements shall be maintained
as public record and shall list each contractor’s name, the amount and type of each contract, a listing of
the items procured under each contract, and the identi�cation of each contract �le. 
(b)Sole source procurement of a used item from the open market may only be considered, provided
that:
        (1) The using agency recommends purchase; (2) condition of the item is veri�ed by appropriate
County o�cial; and             (3) price analysis justi�es purchase when the following factors are
considered: (a) new acquisition price; (b) current               book value; and (c) maintenance costs.
Code 1982 SS 12-19 Sec. 2-518 Sole source procurement

The County Council may by resolution, exempt speci�c supplies or services from the purchasing
procedures required in the Code.  The following supplies and services shall be exempt from the
purchasing procedures required in this division; however, the Purchasing Director for just cause may
limit or withdraw any exemption provided for in this section. (1) Works of art for museum and public
display (2) Published books, library books, maps, periodicals, technical pamphlets (3) Copyrighted
educational �lms, �lmstrips, slides and transparencies (4) Postage stamps and postal fees (5)
Professional dues, membership fees and seminar registration fees (6) Medicine and drugs (7) Utilities
including gas, electric, water and sewer (8) Advertisements in professional publications or newspapers
(9) Fresh fruit, vegetables, meats, �sh, milk, bread and eggs  (10) Oil company credit cards (11) Articles
for commercial sale by all governmental bodies
Code 1982 SS 12-14 Ord. No. 2000-1 S 1, 1-1-0-2000 Sec. 2-514 Exemption from procedures (12) Legal
Services, which must be approved by the County Administrator or County Council (13) Fixed Wing and
Rotary Win and Aircraft Maintenance.

Notwithstanding any other section of this division, the Purchasing Director may make or authorize
others to make emergency procurements of supplies, services, or construction items when there exists
a threat to the functioning of county government; for the preservation or protection of property; or for
the health, welfare or safety of any person, provided that such emergency procurements shall be made
with such competition as is practicable under the circumstances.  A written determination of the basis
for the emergency and for the selection of the particular contractor shall be included in the contract
�le.  As soon as practicable, a record of each emergency procurement shall be made and shall set forth
the contractor’s name, the amount and type of the contract, a listing of the items procured under the
contract, and the identi�cation number of the contract �le.

Code 1982 SS 12-20 Sec. 2-519 Emergency procurements

77

Item 17.



1/4/24, 1:12 PM Nintex Forms for SharePoint Lists

https://beaufortcountysc-0bad3c45979102.sharepoint.com/sites/Forms/FormsApp/UFRuntime.aspx?remoteAppUrl=https://formso365.nintex.com&am… 2/4

Requesting Department

Engineering

Requested Account Code

2343-30-0000-54500

Department Head *

Description of Requested Services:

Furnish & Install Asphalt Rejuvenator

Please provide a listing of the items purchased:

Furnish & Install Asphalt Rejuvenator

Requested Vendor Name:

Pavement Technology, Inc

Requested Vendor Address:

24144 Detroit Rd, Westlake, OH

Requested Vendor Phone Number:

813-767-5090

Requested Vendor Email Address:

kholton@pavetechinc.com

Type of Service Requested (Please choose one)

Construction Service Supply/Good

Attachments

2023 Beaufort Co Proposal Year 7.pdf

D&D Emulsions Single Source Letter - Beaufort Co, SC - 2023.pdf

Tricor - Beaufort County SC Pavement Tech Letter.pdf

Please select a reason below as to why this is a non-competitive purchase and provide a brief explanation.

Bishop, Brittanee

78

Item 17.

https://beaufortcountysc.sharepoint.com/sites/Forms/Lists/NCP/Attachments/521/2023%20Beaufort%20Co%20Proposal%20Year%207.pdf
https://beaufortcountysc.sharepoint.com/sites/Forms/Lists/NCP/Attachments/521/2023%20Beaufort%20Co%20Proposal%20Year%207.pdf
https://beaufortcountysc.sharepoint.com/sites/Forms/Lists/NCP/Attachments/521/D%26D%20Emulsions%20Single%20Source%20Letter%20-%20Beaufort%20Co%2C%20SC%20-%202023.pdf
https://beaufortcountysc.sharepoint.com/sites/Forms/Lists/NCP/Attachments/521/D%26D%20Emulsions%20Single%20Source%20Letter%20-%20Beaufort%20Co%2C%20SC%20-%202023.pdf
https://beaufortcountysc.sharepoint.com/sites/Forms/Lists/NCP/Attachments/521/Tricor%20-%20Beaufort%20County%20SC%20Pavement%20Tech%20Letter.pdf
https://beaufortcountysc.sharepoint.com/sites/Forms/Lists/NCP/Attachments/521/Tricor%20-%20Beaufort%20County%20SC%20Pavement%20Tech%20Letter.pdf


1/4/24, 1:12 PM Nintex Forms for SharePoint Lists

https://beaufortcountysc-0bad3c45979102.sharepoint.com/sites/Forms/FormsApp/UFRuntime.aspx?remoteAppUrl=https://formso365.nintex.com&am… 3/4

It is not possible to obtain competition. There is only one source available for the supply; service; or
construction item.

The procurement is for a used item from the open market. The item may only be considered if; (1) the
using agency recommends purchase; (2) condition of the item is veri�ed by appropriate County o�cial;
(3) Price analysis justi�es purchase when the following factors are considered; (a) new acquisition price;
(b) current book value; and (c) maintenance costs.

An emergency exists that threatens the functioning of County government.

An emergency exists that threatens the preservation or protection of County property.

The item is a single source purchase. Other sources may be available but purchases are directed to one
source because of factors unique to Beaufort County. Please select an option below:

What steps have been taken to verify that these features are not available elsewhere?

 
Other brands/manufacturers were examined (please list names and contact information, and explain
whey they are not suitable for use by the County - attach additional pages as necessary):

 
Other vendors were contacted (please list names and contact information and explain why those
contacted did not meet the needs of the County - attach additional pages as necessary):

 
Submitter
Reviewed

Bauer, Bryan Dec 15, 2023 2:21 PM

*** Department Head Section ***

 
Department Head
Approved

Bishop, Brittanee Dec 15, 2023 2:34 PM

*** Purchasing Review Section ***

Date Received in Purchasing 

Department:

Dec 15, 2023

 
Reviewed by Purchasing Department for completeness

Reviewed by:

Thomas, Dave Dec 15, 2023 2:57 PM

79

Item 17.



1/4/24, 1:12 PM Nintex Forms for SharePoint Lists

https://beaufortcountysc-0bad3c45979102.sharepoint.com/sites/Forms/FormsApp/UFRuntime.aspx?remoteAppUrl=https://formso365.nintex.com&am… 4/4

Veri�ed that this is the only source:

Yes No

Comments:

Purchasing Director Decision:

Approve Disappro
ve

Thomas, Dave Dec 15, 2023 2:57 PM

Associated Requisition Number: Associated Contract Number:

*** Purchasing Completion Section ***

 
Process Complete

Moyer, Victoria Dec 15, 2023 3:14 PM

80

Item 17.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Recommendation to Award sole source contract for Year 7 Pavement Preservation to Slurry Pavers, Inc. 

($632,551.87) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee – January 22, 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, Assistant County Administrator – Engineering 

(5 mins) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

Slurry Pavers, Inc is the only responsive contractor in the region that performs the pavement 
preservation treatment Microsurfacing. Analysis of the proposal submitted revealed Slurry Pavers, 
Inc as a responsive bidder. 

Non-competitive purchase form was submitted on December 15, 2023, and approved by purchasing 
department.  

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

A pavement condition report for County roads was prepared by F&ME Consultants dated February 
16, 2022, and a condition assessment for SCDOT owned roads was prepared by A. Morton Thomas & 
Associates, Inc. dated October 3, 2022, which serves as a basis for evaluating pavement 
maintenance and preservation methods for the Beaufort County roadway network. On February 14, 
2023, Beaufort County solicited and received one (1) submission from Slurry Pavers, Inc to IFB #021423 Year 6 
Preservation.  On July 20, 2023 Beaufort County received a proposal from Slurry Pavers, Inc for pavement 
preservation. 

This award was presented to County Transportation Committee at the January 17, 2024, meeting and 
approved.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

The contract fee is for materials and construction in the amount of $527,126.56. Staff recommends 
a 20% contingency of $105,425.31, bringing the project’s total cost to $632,551.87. The funding for 
this project will be CTC Infrastructure account number 2343-30-0000-54500 with a balance of 
$15,808,966.86 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval to award Year 7 Pavement Preservation to Slurry Pavers, Inc. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny recommendation to award Year 7 Pavement Preservation to Slurry Pavers, Inc. 

Next Step: Move forward to County Council to award Year 7 Rejuvenator to Slurry Pavers, Inc. 

 
81

Item 18.



82

Item 18.



83

Item 18.



84

Item 18.



85

Item 18.



86

Item 18.



87

Item 18.



88

Item 18.



89

Item 18.



90

Item 18.



91

Item 18.



92

Item 18.



93

Item 18.



94

Item 18.



https://beaufortcountysc-0bad3c45979102.sharepoint.com/sites/Forms/FormsApp/UFRuntime.aspx?remoteAppUrl=https://formso365.nintex.com&am… 1/4

Non-Competitive Purchases Form

This form shall be completed for any non-competitive purchase that is not exempt.

(a)A County contract may be awarded without competition when the Purchasing Director determines in
writing, after conducting a good faith review of available sources, that there is only one source for the
required supply, service, or construction item.  The Purchasing Director shall conduct negotiations, as
appropriate, as to price, delivery, and terms.  A record of sole source procurements shall be maintained
as public record and shall list each contractor’s name, the amount and type of each contract, a listing of
the items procured under each contract, and the identi�cation of each contract �le. 
(b)Sole source procurement of a used item from the open market may only be considered, provided
that:
        (1) The using agency recommends purchase; (2) condition of the item is veri�ed by appropriate
County o�cial; and             (3) price analysis justi�es purchase when the following factors are
considered: (a) new acquisition price; (b) current               book value; and (c) maintenance costs.
Code 1982 SS 12-19 Sec. 2-518 Sole source procurement

The County Council may by resolution, exempt speci�c supplies or services from the purchasing
procedures required in the Code.  The following supplies and services shall be exempt from the
purchasing procedures required in this division; however, the Purchasing Director for just cause may
limit or withdraw any exemption provided for in this section. (1) Works of art for museum and public
display (2) Published books, library books, maps, periodicals, technical pamphlets (3) Copyrighted
educational �lms, �lmstrips, slides and transparencies (4) Postage stamps and postal fees (5)
Professional dues, membership fees and seminar registration fees (6) Medicine and drugs (7) Utilities
including gas, electric, water and sewer (8) Advertisements in professional publications or newspapers
(9) Fresh fruit, vegetables, meats, �sh, milk, bread and eggs  (10) Oil company credit cards (11) Articles
for commercial sale by all governmental bodies
Code 1982 SS 12-14 Ord. No. 2000-1 S 1, 1-1-0-2000 Sec. 2-514 Exemption from procedures (12) Legal
Services, which must be approved by the County Administrator or County Council (13) Fixed Wing and
Rotary Win and Aircraft Maintenance.

Notwithstanding any other section of this division, the Purchasing Director may make or authorize
others to make emergency procurements of supplies, services, or construction items when there exists
a threat to the functioning of county government; for the preservation or protection of property; or for
the health, welfare or safety of any person, provided that such emergency procurements shall be made
with such competition as is practicable under the circumstances.  A written determination of the basis
for the emergency and for the selection of the particular contractor shall be included in the contract
�le.  As soon as practicable, a record of each emergency procurement shall be made and shall set forth
the contractor’s name, the amount and type of the contract, a listing of the items procured under the
contract, and the identi�cation number of the contract �le.

Code 1982 SS 12-20 Sec. 2-519 Emergency procurements

95

Item 18.



1/4/24, 1:11 PM Nintex Forms for SharePoint Lists

https://beaufortcountysc-0bad3c45979102.sharepoint.com/sites/Forms/FormsApp/UFRuntime.aspx?remoteAppUrl=https://formso365.nintex.com&am… 2/4

Requesting Department

Engineering

Requested Account Code

2343-30-0000-54500

Department Head *

Description of Requested Services:

Furnish & Install Pavement Preservation Microsurfacing

Please provide a listing of the items purchased:

Furnish & Install Pavement Preservation Microsurfacing

Requested Vendor Name:

Slurry Pavers, Inc

Requested Vendor Address:

3617 Nine Mile Rd, Richmond, VA 23223

Requested Vendor Phone Number:

910-818-7607

Requested Vendor Email Address:

tim.herbst@slurrypavers.com

Type of Service Requested (Please choose one)

Construction Service Supply/Good

Attachments

Preliminary Bid Tab VLM Signed.pdf

RE_ Year 7 Preservation Sole Source.pdf

Slurry Pavers - Year 7 Preservation Bid Package.pdf

Please select a reason below as to why this is a non-competitive purchase and provide a brief explanation.

Bishop, Brittanee

96

Item 18.

https://beaufortcountysc.sharepoint.com/sites/Forms/Lists/NCP/Attachments/522/Preliminary%20Bid%20Tab%20VLM%20Signed.pdf
https://beaufortcountysc.sharepoint.com/sites/Forms/Lists/NCP/Attachments/522/Preliminary%20Bid%20Tab%20VLM%20Signed.pdf
https://beaufortcountysc.sharepoint.com/sites/Forms/Lists/NCP/Attachments/522/RE_%20Year%207%20Preservation%20Sole%20Source.pdf
https://beaufortcountysc.sharepoint.com/sites/Forms/Lists/NCP/Attachments/522/RE_%20Year%207%20Preservation%20Sole%20Source.pdf
https://beaufortcountysc.sharepoint.com/sites/Forms/Lists/NCP/Attachments/522/Slurry%20Pavers%20-%20Year%207%20Preservation%20Bid%20Package.pdf
https://beaufortcountysc.sharepoint.com/sites/Forms/Lists/NCP/Attachments/522/Slurry%20Pavers%20-%20Year%207%20Preservation%20Bid%20Package.pdf


1/4/24, 1:11 PM Nintex Forms for SharePoint Lists

https://beaufortcountysc-0bad3c45979102.sharepoint.com/sites/Forms/FormsApp/UFRuntime.aspx?remoteAppUrl=https://formso365.nintex.com&am… 3/4

It is not possible to obtain competition. There is only one source available for the supply; service; or
construction item.

The procurement is for a used item from the open market. The item may only be considered if; (1) the
using agency recommends purchase; (2) condition of the item is veri�ed by appropriate County o�cial;
(3) Price analysis justi�es purchase when the following factors are considered; (a) new acquisition price;
(b) current book value; and (c) maintenance costs.

An emergency exists that threatens the functioning of County government.

An emergency exists that threatens the preservation or protection of County property.

The item is a single source purchase. Other sources may be available but purchases are directed to one
source because of factors unique to Beaufort County. Please select an option below:

What steps have been taken to verify that these features are not available elsewhere?

 
Other brands/manufacturers were examined (please list names and contact information, and explain
whey they are not suitable for use by the County - attach additional pages as necessary):

 
Other vendors were contacted (please list names and contact information and explain why those
contacted did not meet the needs of the County - attach additional pages as necessary):

 
Submitter
Reviewed

Bauer, Bryan Dec 15, 2023 2:28 PM

*** Department Head Section ***

 
Department Head
Approved

Bishop, Brittanee Dec 18, 2023 6:50 AM

*** Purchasing Review Section ***

Date Received in Purchasing 

Department:

Dec 18, 2023

 
Reviewed by Purchasing Department for completeness

Reviewed by:

Thomas, Dave Dec 18, 2023 10:39 AM

97

Item 18.



1/4/24, 1:11 PM Nintex Forms for SharePoint Lists

https://beaufortcountysc-0bad3c45979102.sharepoint.com/sites/Forms/FormsApp/UFRuntime.aspx?remoteAppUrl=https://formso365.nintex.com&am… 4/4

Veri�ed that this is the only source:

Yes No

Comments:

Purchasing Director Decision:

Approve Disappro
ve

Thomas, Dave Dec 18, 2023 10:39 AM

Associated Requisition Number: Associated Contract Number:

*** Purchasing Completion Section ***

 
Process Complete

Moyer, Victoria Dec 18, 2023 1:48 PM

98

Item 18.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Recommendation of award for RFP 102423 Recyclables Processing and Marketing for Beaufort County to i2 
Recycle ($1,129,618) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities and Safety Committee – January 22, 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, P.E. - Assistant County Administrator - Engineering 
Neil Desai, P.E. - Public Works Director (backup) 
Time needed for discussion = 10 minutes 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

RFP 102423 was advertised on Vendor Registry September 19, 2023 and in the SC Business Opportunity 
Magazine and the Island Packet.  The bid closed on October 24, 2023.  A selection committee received four 
proposals for review. Interviews were held for all proposers. The selected vendor will provide the 
transportation of recyclable materials for processing, processing of recyclable materials, and marketing and 
sale of recyclable materials.    

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The selection committee rated each proposal based on the ability of the vendor to provide recyclables 
collection and processing services for Beaufort County (Convenience Centers).  This included the transportation 
of containers for processing, container rentals, and processing of recyclables for market and sale of each 
commodity collected at the County Convenience Centers.  The initial contract term would be for 5 years from 
August 1, 2024, to July 31, 2029, with the option for three additional annual renewals. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

This is a unit rate contract. The estimated cost for the contract is $1,129,618 and will be budgeted for FY25 
under disposal services.  The current funding account is 5010-90-1340-51166. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends the award of RFP 102423 Recyclables Collection and Processing Services to i2 Recycle.   

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve /deny the recommendation of award for RFP 102423 Recyclables Processing and 
Marketing for Beaufort County.   

(Next Step – A Majority Vote for Acceptance by Committee would move item forward to final acceptance by 
full County Council vote- 2/12/2024.) 

 

99

Item 19.



RFP 102423

Summary Score Sheet

Evaluators Name of Company Name of Company Name of Company   Name of Company   2

Capital Waste 
Services i2 Recycle Pratt Recycling Inc. Waste Management

K. Herrera 50 82 71 37
J. Fralix 50 87 75 32
B. McAbee 37 67 45 66
V. Hoffman 40 92 77 49
TOTALS: 177 328 268 184

1. i2 Recycle 328
2. Pratt Recycling Inc 268
3. Waste Management 184
4. Capital Waste Services 177

Recyclable Materials Processing & Marketing for Beaufort County

100

Item 19.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE MILITARY ENHANCEMENT PLAN FUND GRANT FROM THE SOUTH CAROLINA 
DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS’ AFFAIRS FOR THE AMOUNT OF $3,392,328 FOR THE LAUREL BAY ROAD 
PATHWAY PROJECT 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities and Safety Committee – January 22, 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, Assistant County Administrator - Infrastructure 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

The South Carolina Department of Veterans’ Affairs provided a grant opportunity through the Military 
Enhancement Plan Fund which are distributed to projects including, but not limited to, recreational purposes, 
educational purposes, and facilities for military personnel. As the 2018 One Cent Transportation Sales Tax 
project for Laurel Bay Road Pathway resides between two military installations, Laurel Bay housing complex 
and Marine Corps Air Station (MCAS Beaufort), the County sought after the grant to leverage funds for the 
Sidewalks and Multi-Use Pathways within the 2018 One Cent Transportation Sales Tax program.   

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The Laurel Bay Road Pathway Project will support Marines, sailors, and their respective families through 
enhanced connections to the local federal military installations. The project scope includes a new 3.6-mile 
long 10 FT multi-use pathway with a grass buffer on the northern side of Laurel Bay Road, replacing the 
existing 5 FT sidewalk.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

The grant is an 80/20 match: 80% from SCDVA and 20% Local Match. The grant award is for a total of 
$3,392,328 that will be deposited in the 2018 One Cent Transportation Sales Tax account 4705-80-0000-
43765 and used for the Laurel Bay Road Pathway project. With a total project cost, plus contingency equaling 
$4,950,940.79, the County’s match is $1,558,612.79 from account number 4705-80-0000-54500. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends to approve the Resolution to accept the Military Enhancement Plan Fund Grant from the 
South Carolina Department of Veterans’ Affairs for the amount of $3,392,328 for the Laurel Bay Road 
Pathway project. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny the Resolution to accept the Military Enhancement Plan Fund Grant from the South 
Carolina Department of Veterans’ Affairs for the amount of $3,392,328 for the Laurel Bay Road Pathway 
project.  

Next Steps: Move forward to County Council to approve/deny the Resolution to accept the Military 
Enhancement Plan Fund Grant from the South Carolina Department of Veterans’ Affairs for the amount of 
$3,392,382 for the Laurel Bay Road Pathway project. 

 

101

Item 20.



RESOLUTION 2024 /__ 

 

A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE MILITARY ENHANCEMENT PLAN FUND GRANT 

FROM THE SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS’ AFFAIRS FOR THE 

AMOUNT OF $3,392,328 FOR THE LAUREL BAY ROAD PATHWAY PROJECT 

 

WHEREAS Beaufort County Council adopted a One percent (1%) Transportation Sales Tax 

Ordinance on November 13, 2017, enumerating twenty-four (24) pathways projects to be funded for a total 

of Ten Million Dollars ($10,000,000); and  

  

WHEREAS the One Cent Sales Tax Referendum question to approve the one (1%) percent sales 

tax was passed on November 6, 2018; and 

  

WHEREAS the total cost of all the pathway projects will exceed the available funding from the 

sales tax referendum therefore, sought to leverage funds to complete the projects; and  

 

WHEREAS Beaufort County was awarded $3,392,328 from the South Carolina Department of 

Veterans’ Affairs Military Enhancement Plan Fund Grant for the Laurel Bay Road Pathway Project; and  

 

WHEREAS Beaufort County will execute the grant’s requirements during the duration of the 

project while completing all applicable reporting. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THAT THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT 

COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA hereby approves the acceptance of the Military Enhancement Plan Fund 

Grant from the South Carolina Department of Veterans’ Affairs for the amount of $3,392,328 for the Laurel 

Bay Road Pathway Project. 

 

Adopted this ____ day of ____________, 2024. 

 

 

      COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY 

 

 

      BY:        

             Joseph Passiment, Chairman 

  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

     

Sarah W. Brock, Clerk to Council 

102

Item 20.



103

Item 20.



104

Item 20.



105

Item 20.



106

Item 20.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD TO IPW CONSTRUCTION GROUP FOR IFB #120123E LAUREL BAY RD 
PATHWAY PROJECT ($4,125,783.99) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Committee – January 22, 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix – Assistant County Administrator - Infrastructure (5 mins) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

On October 31, 2023, Beaufort County published IFB #120123E Laurel Bay Road Pathway Project 
requesting competitive bids for the material procurement and construction of a pathway along 
Laurel Bay Rd. On December 1, 2023, The County received two (2) bids to perform the specified 
scope. IPW Construction Group was the apparent lowest responsive bid. 

 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

As part of the 2018 one cent transportation sales tax, a program of pathways was identified for construction 
to provide better and safer access to pedestrians at key areas on Beaufort County. This pathway along Laurel 
Bay Rd was one of the projects identified and will replace an existing asphalt sideway connecting US 21 and 
Laurel Bay. The project will consist of all materials and construction to complete approximately 3.4 miles of 
10’ wide concrete pathway extending from US 21 to Laurel Bay. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:  

The contract fee is for materials and construction in the amount of $4,125,783.99. Staff 
recommends a 20% contingency of $825,156.80, bringing the project’s total cost to $4,950,940.79. 
The funding for this project will be South Carolina Veterans’ Affairs Military Enhancement Grant for 
$3,392,328 and the remainder from the 2018 One Cent Sales Tax – Sidewalks and Multi-Use Pathways 
account number 4705-80-0000-54500 with a balance of $17,735,384. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval to award IPW Construction Group for IFB #120123E Laurel Bay Pathway Project 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny recommendation to award IPW Construction Group for IFB #120123E Laurel Bay Rd 
Pathway Project  

Next Step: Move forward to County Council to award IPW Construction Group for IFB #120123E Laurel Bay 
Rd Pathway Project 

 

107

Item 21.



PRELIMINARY BID TABULATION
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT

Project Name: Laurel Bay Pathway Project

Project Number: IFB 120123E
Project Budget:
Bid Opening Date: December 1 2023
Time: 3:00:00 PM
Location: Beaufort County
Bid Administrator: Dave Thomas
Bid Recorder: Victoria Moyer

The following bids were received for the above referenced project:

BIDDER 
BID     

FORM
ALL 

ADDENDA
Bid 

Bond
SCH OF 
VALUES

SMBE 
Docs Sub Listing Grand Total Price 

IPW Construction Group X X X X X
4,125,783.99$                                              

117,040.00$                                                 
IPW Public Utilities 
Relocation Worksheet

Lewallen Construction X X X X X X
4,873,313.46$                                              

211,892.85$                                                 

Lewallen Public 
Utilities Relocation 
Worksheet

Bid Administrator Signature Bid Recorder

Beaufort County posts PRELIMINARY bid tabulation information within 2 business days of the advertised bid opening.  Information on the PRELIMINARY bid tabulation 
is posted as it was read during the bid opening.  Beaufort County makes no guarantees as to the accuracy of any information on the PRELIMINARY tabulation.  The bid 
results indicated here do not necessarily represent the final compliance review by Beaufort County and are subject to change. After the review, the final award will be 
made by Beaufort County Council and a certified bid tab will be posted online. 

12/5/2023
108

Item 21.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

ITEM TITLE: 

Recommend Approval of Contract Award to Nix Construction Co. Inc. for IFB #101023 Okatie River Park 
($2,922,403.00) 

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities and Safety Committee – January 22, 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Eric Larson, PE, Director, Capital Projects (5 mins) 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

On November 14, 2023 bids were received for the construction of the Okatie River Park.  Three (3) bids were 
received, with one bidder withdrawing their bid.  The qualified low bidder being Nix Construction Co. Inc. with 
a cost of $2,656,730.00.  Staff and the design consultants, Whitmer Jones Keefer Ltd., have reviewed the 
detailed bid submittal and found the prices to be fair and reasonable.  Engineer’s estimate for the work was 
$1,936,475.   

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

The Passive Parks Department is constructing a park within the property purchased adjacent to the Pepper 
Hall Developments.  The park consists of a walking trail, pier and dock, a pavilion, along with supporting 
restrooms and parking.  The total funds requested are the bid amount (plus a 10% contingency) 
($2,656,730.00 + $265,673 = $2,922,403) 

Purchasing has not submitted a draft contract to Legal.  This will occur after contract award.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

Funding comes from the Passive Parks Fund (4502-80-0000-54420), an A-Tax Grant (2001-10-0000-55000) 
and the Reforestation Fund, Fund Balance (2012-10-0000-31510). Reforestation funding will be used for 
landscaping to include site prep, landscape plants and the pervious walking trail, as allowed by Ordinance 
5.11.100 Section D.7.  Current FY24 project allocations are $890,000 (PP Fund), $1,052,824 (Local A-Tax 
Grant), and $979,579 (Tree Fund).   Current balances are $4,258,312.25 (PP Fund), $3,029,386.19 (Local A-Tax 
Grant), and $2,892,911.41 (Reforestation Fund, Fund Balance). 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval of contract to Nix Construction Co. Inc. for IFB #101023 in the amount of 
$2,656,730.00 with a $265,673 contingency fund for a total of $2,922,403. 

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny recommendation of award Nix Construction Co. Inc. for IFB #101023 Okatie River 
Park. 

Next Step: Move forward to County Council to award Nix Construction Co. Inc. for IFB #101023 Okatie River 
Park. 

 

109

Item 22.



110

Item 22.



BEAUFORT COUNTY COUNCIL                   

      AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 

             ITEM TITLE: 

Approval of an Ordinance for a 2024 Transportation Sales and Use Tax Referendum  

MEETING NAME AND DATE: 

Public Facilities Meeting, January 22, 2024 

PRESENTER INFORMATION: 

Jared Fralix, Assistant County Administrator of Engineering 

30 minutes 

ITEM BACKGROUND: 

On December 11, 2023, County Council adopted Resolution 2023/66. In adopting the Resolution, 
Council accepted and adopted the recommendations of the Sales Tax Advisory Committee (“STAC”) 
which Council established on June 12, 2023 and whose purpose it was to study possible sales taxes 
for three different purposes: transportation, capital projects, and education capital projects. STAC 
recommended proceeding with a transportation sales tax only in 2024. It recommended a 
referendum question to be placed on the ballot in November 2024 which asks voters to approve a 
one percent (1%) sales and use tax in Beaufort County beginning the following year and extending for 
fifteen (15) years or until the County raises $1.625 billion, whichever occurs first, to fund the series of 
critical transportation and mobility projects set forth in Exhibit A to the Resolution. Based on 
Resolution 2023/66, administration brings forward the attached ordinance to levy and impose a one 
percent (1%) sales and use tax, subject to a referendum, pursuant to S.C. Code §4-37-30; to define 
the specific purposes and to designate projects for which the proceeds of the sales and use tax may 
be used; to provide for the maximum time for which the tax may be imposed; to provide the 
estimated cost of the projects to be funded; to provide for a county-wide referendum on the issuance 
of general obligations bonds; to prescribe the contents of the ballot questions in the referendum; and 
other matters as set forth therein. 

PROJECT / ITEM NARRATIVE: 

See above  

FISCAL IMPACT:  

If approved by Council and the electorate, the county will levy and impose a one percent (1%) sales 
and use tax throughout the entire county for fifteen (15) years or until the county raises $1.625 billion 
in revenue, whichever occurs first. 

STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends approval of the ordinance  

OPTIONS FOR COUNCIL MOTION: 

Motion to approve/deny/amend the proposed ordinance for a 2024 Transportation Sales and Use Tax 
Referendum. 

If approved, the proposed ordinance will move to Council for approval. 

 
111

Item 23.



112

Item 23.



113

Item 23.



114

Item 23.



115

Item 23.



116

Item 23.



117

Item 23.



118

Item 23.



119

Item 23.



120

Item 23.



 

 

AN ORDINANCE 

TO LEVY AND IMPOSE A ONE PERCENT (1%) SALES AND USE TAX, SUBJECT TO 

A REFERENDUM, WITHIN BEAUFORT COUNTY PURSUANT TO SECTION 4-37-30 

OF THE CODE OF LAWS OF SOUTH CAROLINA 1976, AS AMENDED; TO DEFINE 

THE SPECIFIC PURPOSES AND DESIGNATE THE PROJECTS FOR WHICH THE 

PROCEEDS OF THE SALES AND USE TAX MAY BE USED; TO PROVIDE THE 

MAXIMUM TIME FOR WHICH SUCH SALES AND USE TAX MAY BE IMPOSED; TO 

PROVIDE THE ESTIMATED COST OF THE PROJECTS FUNDED FROM THE 

PROCEEDS OF THE SALES AND USE TAX; TO PROVIDE FOR A COUNTY-WIDE 

REFERENDUM ON THE IMPOSITION OF THE SALES AND USE TAX AND THE 

ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS AND TO PRESCRIBE THE 

CONTENTS OF THE BALLOT QUESTIONS IN THE REFERENDUM; TO PROVIDE 

FOR THE CONDUCT OF THE REFERENDUM BY THE BOARD OF VOTER 

REGISTRATION AND ELECTIONS OF BEAUFORT COUNTY; TO PROVIDE FOR 

THE ADMINISTRATION OF THE SALES AND USE TAX, IF APPROVED; TO 

PROVIDE FOR THE PAYMENT OF THE SALES AND USE TAX, IF APPROVED; AND 

TO PROVIDE FOR OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO.  

BE IT ENACTED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF BEAUFORT COUNTY, SOUTH 

CAROLINA, IN MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED:  

Section 1. Recitals and Legislative Findings. As an incident to the enactment of this 

ordinance (the “Ordinance”), the County Council (the “County Council”) as governing body of 

Beaufort County, South Carolina  (“County”) makes the following findings: 

1.1 The South Carolina General Assembly has enacted Section 4-37-30 of the 

Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the “Act”), pursuant to which the 

County governing body may impose by ordinance a sales and use tax in an amount not to 

exceed one percent, subject to the favorable results of a referendum, within the County area 

for a specific purpose or purposes and for a limited amount of time to collect a limited 

amount of money. 

 

1.2 Pursuant to the terms of Section 4-37-30 of the Code of Laws of South 

Carolina 1976, as amended, the South Carolina General Assembly has authorized county 

government to finance the costs of highways, roads, streets, bridges, mass transit systems, 

greenbelt initiatives, and other transportation-related projects facilities  including, but not 

limited to, drainage facilities relating to the highways, roads, streets, bridges, and other 

transportation-related projects; either alone or in conjunction with other governmental 

entities. As a means to furthering the powers granted to the County under the provisions of 

Section 4-9-30 and Sections 6-21-10, et.seq. of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976 

as amended, the County Council is authorized to form a transportation authority or to enter 

into a partnership, consortium, or other contractual arrangement with one of more other 

governmental entities pursuant to Title 4, Chapter 37 of the Code of Laws of the South 

Carolina 1976, as amended. The County Council has decided to provide funding for 

121

Item 23.



 

 

highways, roads, streets, bridges, mass transit systems, greenbelts, and other 

transportation-related projects, inter alia, without the complexity of a transportation 

authority or entering into a partnership, consortium, or other contractual arrangements with 

one or more other governmental entities at this time; provided that nothing herein shall 

preclude County Council from entering into partnerships, consortiums, or other contractual 

arrangements in the future. County Council may utilize such provisions in the future as 

necessary or convenient to promote the public purposes served by funding highways, roads, 

streets, bridges, mass transit systems, greenbelt initiatives, and other transportation-related 

projects facilities as provided in this Ordinance.  

 

1.3 The County Council finds that a one percent (1%) sales and use tax should 

be levied and imposed within the County, for the following projects and purpose: 

 

i. For financing the costs of highways, roads, streets, bridges, and other 

transportation-related projects facilities related thereto, including, but not 

limited to, drainage facilities relating to the highways, roads, streets, 

bridges, and other transportation-related projects; and mass transit systems 

operated by Beaufort County or jointly operated by the County and other 

entities. 

 

ii. For financing the costs of greenbelt initiatives. 

 

(the above herein referred to as the “Projects”) 

 

For a period not to exceed fifteen (15) years from the date of imposition of such tax, to 

fund the Projects at a maximum cost not to exceed $1,625,000,000 to be funded from the 

net proceeds of a sales and use tax imposed in the County pursuant to provisions of the 

Act, subject to approval of the qualified electors of the County in referendum to be held on 

November 5, 2024. The imposition of the sales and use tax and the use of sales and use tax 

revenue if approved in the referendum, shall be subject to the conditions precedent and 

conditions or restrictions on the use and expenditure of sales and use tax revenue 

established by the Act, the provisions of this Ordinance, and other applicable law. Subject 

to annual appropriations by County Council, sales and use tax revenues shall be used for 

the costs of the Projects established in this Ordinance, as it may be amended from time to 

time, including, without limitation, payment of administrative costs of the Projects, and 

such sums as may be required in connection with the issuance of bonds, the proceeds of 

which are applied to pay costs of the Projects. All spending shall be subject to an annual 

independent audit to be made available to the public. 

 1.4 County Council finds that the imposition of a sales and use tax in the County 

for the Projects and purposes defined in this Ordinance for a limited time not to exceed 

fifteen years to collect a limited amount of money will serve a public purpose, provide 

funding for highways, roads, streets, bridges, mass transit systems, greenbelts, and other 

transportation-related projects facilities including, but not limited to, drainage facilities 

122

Item 23.



 

 

relating to the highways, roads, streets, bridges, and other transportation-related projects; 

as provided in this Ordinance to facilitate economic development, promote public safety, 

provide needed infrastructure, promote desirable living conditions, enhance the quality of 

life in the County, and promote public health and safety in the event of fire, emergency, 

panic, and other dangers, and prepare the County to meet present and future needs of the 

County and its citizens.  

Section 2.  Approval of Sales and Use Tax Subject to Referendum. 

2.1  A sales and use tax (the “Sales and Use Tax”), as authorized by the Act, is 

hereby imposed in Beaufort County, South Carolina, subject to a favorable vote of a 

majority of the qualified electors voting in a referendum on the imposition of the tax to be 

held in Beaufort County, South Carolina on November 5, 2024.  

2.2 The Sales and Use Tax shall be imposed for a period not to exceed fifteen 

(15) years from the date of imposition.  

2.3 The maximum cost of the Projects to be funded from the proceeds of the 

Sales and Use Tax shall not exceed, in the aggregate, the sum of $1,625,000,000 and the 

maximum amount of net proceeds to be raised by the tax shall not exceed $1,625,000,000, 

which includes administrative costs and debt service on bonds issued to pay for the 

Projects. The estimated principal amount of initial authorization of bonds to be issued to 

pay costs of the Projects and to be paid by a portion of the Sales and Use Tax is 

$_______________. 

2.4 The Sales and Use Tax shall be expended for the costs of the following 

described Projects, including payment of any sums as may be required for the issuance of 

and debt service for bonds, the proceeds of which are applied to such Projects, for the 

following purposes: 

(i)   For financing the costs of highways, roads, streets, bridges, and other 

transportation-related projects facilities, and drainage facilities related thereto, and mass 

transit systems operated by the County or jointly operated by the County and other 

governmental entities, which may include, but not limited to the following Projects at the 

estimated costs indicated: 

    Major Projects and Amounts 

The Triangle ($100 million): Capacity and safety improvements on the 

Beaufort County section of the triangle made by Highway 170, Highway 

278 and Argent Boulevard. 

Ribaut Road Improvements ($75 million): Implementation of the 

Reimagine Ribaut Road project developed by Beaufort County, the City of 

Beaufort and the Town of Port Royal to improve safety, interconnectivity, 

capacity and attractiveness along the Ribaut Road Corridor between 

Boundary Street and the Russell Bell Bridge. 

123

Item 23.



 

 

Highway 46 Improvements ($20 million): Capacity and safety 

improvements along SC 46 from SC 170 to Jasper County. Additional 

safety improvements (i.e.- turn lanes at intersections) along SC 46 from SC 

170 to Buckwalter Parkway. All planned improvements would be 

coordinated so as to preserve the South Carolina Scenic Byway designation.  

Lady’s Island Corridor Traffic Improvements ($40 million): Lady’s 

Island Corridor Traffic Improvements from the Woods Memorial Bridge to 

Chowan Creek. These funds will supplement the monies approved in the 

2018 Transportation Sales Tax Referendum. 

Bluffton Municipal Projects ($60 million): Implementation of the 

Bluffton projects listed as priorities by the Bluffton Town Council. 

Hilton Head Island Municipal Projects ($60 million): Intersection 

improvements to included Sea Pines Circle and adjacent corridors for the 

safety of motorists, bicyclists and pedestrians. 

North of the Broad Transportation System Improvements ($60 

million): Intersection improvements, pathways, flood prevention on access 

road such as Warsaw Island Road, and other projects in both incorporated 

and unincorporated areas developed in coordination with the City of 

Beaufort and the Town of Port Royal. 

Highway 278 Project Enhancements ($60 million): Additional funding 

to support the US 278 Corridor Improvement Project.  

Future Projects ($175 million): Additional safety, capacity and 

interconnectivity transportation improvement projects in the County.  

 

Project Programs and Amounts 

 

Mass Transit ($100 million): Funding multimodal transportation planning 

and implementation, including marine transport and commercial airport 

improvements.  

Safety and Traffic Flow ($250 million): Safety improvements along 

roadways and intersections to include pedestrian accommodations.  

Emergency Evacuation and Resiliency ($90 million): Improvements to 

transportation infrastructure to address flooding, rising sea levels, 

stormwater and drainage. 

Pavement Resurfacing and Preservation ($180 million): Road 

resurfacing and preservation of roadways (including roads owned by the 

State, by the County and by municipalities). The goal is to improve the 

overall pavement condition of roads throughout the County.  

Pathways ($180 million): Design, right of way acquisition, and 

construction of bike and pedestrian accommodations throughout the County 

in accordance with the Beaufort County Connects Bicycle and Pedestrian 

Plan 2021.  

Transportation Technology/Access Roads ($90 million): Planning, 

design, right of way acquisition, and construction of access roads for better 

interconnectivity. Implementation of transportation technologies to support 

the enhancement to capacity and safety of the transportation system.  

124

Item 23.



 

 

 

The amount of the maximum total funds to be collected which shall be expended for these  

Projects and purposes shall be no more than $1,540,000,000; 

 

(ii) For financing the costs of greenbelt initiatives, including, but not limited to, 

purchasing property for conservation and conservation easements, creating passive and 

active greenspaces, protecting natural resources, protecting agricultural or heritage 

landscapes, and protecting scenic corridors. The amount of the maximum total funds to be 

collected with shall be expended for these Projects and purposes shall be no more than 

$85,000,000. 
   

 2.5  If the Sales and Use Tax is approved by a majority of the qualified electors 

voting in a referendum to be held in the County on November 5, 2024, the tax is to be 

imposed on the first day of May 2025, provided the Board of Voter Registration and 

Elections of Beaufort County shall certify the results not later than November 30, 2024, to 

the County Council and the South Carolina Department of Revenue. Included in the 

certification must be the maximum cost of the Projects to be funded in whole or in part 

from the proceeds of the tax, the maximum time specified for the imposition of the tax, and 

the principal amount of initial authorization of bonds, if any, to be supported by a portion 

of the tax.  

 2.6 The Sales and Use Tax, if approved in the referendum conducted on 

November 5, 2024 shall terminate on the earlier of: 

(1) April 30, 2040; or  

(2) the end of the calendar month during which the Department of Revenue 

determines that the tax has raised revenues sufficient to provide the greater of either the 

costs of the Projects as approved in the referendum or the cost to amortize all debts related 

to the approved Projects.  

2.7 Amounts of Sales and Use Tax collected in excess of the required proceeds 

must first be applied, if necessary, to complete each project for which the tax was imposed. 

Any additional revenue collected above the specified amount must be applied to the 

reduction of debt principal of the County on transportation infrastructure debts only.  

2.8 The Sales and Use Tax must be administered and collected by the South 

Carolina Department of Revenue in the same manner that other sales and use taxes are 

collected. The Department may prescribe amounts that may be added to the sales price 

because of the tax. 

2.9 The Sales and Use Tax is in addition to all other local sales and use taxes 

and applies to the gross proceeds of sales in the applicable area that is subject to the tax 

imposed by Chapter 36 of Title 12 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as 

amended, and the enforcement provisions of Chapter 54 of Title 12 of the Code of Laws 

of South Carolina 1976, as amended. The gross proceeds of the sale of items subject to a 

maximum tax in Chapter 36 of Title 12 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as 

125

Item 23.



 

 

amended are exempt from the tax imposed by this Ordinance. The gross proceeds of the 

sale of food lawfully purchased with United States Department of Agriculture Food Stamps 

are exempt from the tax imposed by this Ordinance. The tax imposed by this Ordinance 

also applies to tangible property subject to the use tax in Article 13, Chapter 36 of Title 12 

of the Code of Laws of South Caroilna1976, as amended.  

2.10  Taxpayers required to remit taxes under Article 13, Chapter 36 of Title 12 

of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, must identify the county in 

which the personal property purchased at retail is stored, used, or consumed in this State.  

2.11  Utilities are required to report sales in the county in which the consumption 

of the tangible personal property occurs. 

2.12 A taxpayer subject to the tax imposed by Section 12-36-920 of the Code of 

Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, who owns or manages rental units in more than 

one county must report separately in his sales tax return the total gross proceeds from 

business done in each county. 

2.13 The gross proceeds of sales of tangible personal property delivered after the 

imposition date of the Sales and Use Tax, either under the terms of a construction contract 

executed before the imposition date, or written bid submitted before the imposition date, 

are exempt from the Sales and Use tax provided in this Ordinance if a verified copy of the 

contract is filed with the Department of Revenue within six months after the imposition 

date of the Sales and Use tax provided for in this Ordinance. 

2.14 Notwithstanding the imposition date of the Sales and Use Tax with respect 

to services that are billed regularly on a monthly basis, the Sales and Use tax authorized 

pursuant to this Ordinance is imposed on the first day of the billing period beginning on or 

after the imposition date. 

Section 3. Remission of Sales and Use Tax; Segregation of Funds; 

Administration of Funds; Distribution to County: Confidentially.  

3.1 The revenues of the Sales and Use Tax collected under this Ordinance must 

be remitted to the State Treasurer and credited to a fund separate and distinct from the 

general fund of the State. After deducting the amount of any refunds made and costs to the 

Department of Revenue of administrating the tax, not to exceed one percent of such 

revenues, the State Treasurer shall distribute the revenues quarterly to the Beaufort County 

Treasurer and the revenues must be used only for the purposes stated herein. The State 

Treasurer may correct misallocations by adjusting subsequent distributions must be made 

in the same fiscal year as the misallocation. However, allocations made as a result of city 

or County code errors must be corrected prospectively.  

3.2  (a) Any outside agencies, political subdivisions, or organizations 

designated to receive funding from the Sales and Use Tax must annually submit requests 

for funding in accordance with procedures and schedules established by the County 

Administrator. The County Administrator shall prepare the proposed budget for the Sales 

126

Item 23.



 

 

and Use Tax and submit it to the County Council at such time as the County Council 

determines. At the time of submitting the proposed budget, the County Administrator shall 

submit to the County Council a statement describing the important features of the proposed 

budget.  

 (b) County Council shall adopt annually and prior to the beginning of 

each fiscal year a budget for expenditures of Sales and Use Tax revenues. County Council 

may make supplemental appropriations for the Sales and Use Tax following the same 

procedures prescribed for the enactment of other budget ordinances. The provisions of this 

section shall not be construed to prohibit the transfer of funds appropriated in the annual 

budget for the Sales and Use Tax for purposes other than as specified in the annual budget 

when such transfers are approved by County Council. In the preparation of the annual 

budget, County Council may require any reports, estimates, and statistics from any county 

agency or department as may be necessary to perform its duties as the responsible fiscal 

body of the County. 

 (c) Except as specifically authorized by County Council, any outside 

agency or organization receiving an appropriation of the Sales and Use Tax must provide 

to County Council an independent audit of such agency’s or organization’s financial 

records and transactions and such other and more frequent financial information as required 

by County Council, all in form satisfactory to County Council. 

3.3 The Department of Revenue shall furnish data to the State Treasurer and to 

the Beaufort County Treasurer for the purpose of calculating distributions and estimating 

revenues. The information which must be supplied to the County upon request includes, 

but is not limited to, gross receipts, net taxable sales, and tax liability by taxpayers. 

Information about a specific taxpayer is considered confidential and is governed by the 

provisions of S.C. Code Ann. Section 12-54-240. Any person violating the provisions of 

this section shall be subject to the penalties provided in S.C. Code Ann. Section 12-54-240.  

Section 4.  Sales and Use Tax Referendum; Ballot Question. 

4.1 The Board of Voter Registration and Elections of Beaufort County shall 

conduct a referendum on the question of imposing a Sales and Use Tax in the area of 

Beaufort County on Tuesday, November 5, 2024, between the hours of 7 a.m. and 7 p.m. 

under the election laws of the State of South Carolina, mutatis mutandis. The Board of 

Voter Registration and Elections of Beaufort County shall publish in a newspaper of 

general circulation the question that is to appear on the ballot, with the list of Projects and 

purposes as set forth herein, and the cost of Projects, and shall publish such election and 

other notices as required by law. 

4.2 The referendum question to be on the ballot of the referendum to be held in 

the County on November 5, 2024, must read substantially as follows: 

 

 

 

127

Item 23.



 

 

BEAUFORT COUNTY SPECIAL SALES AND USE TAX 

QUESTION 1 

I approve a special sales and use tax in the amount of one percent (1%) to be imposed in 

Beaufort County for not more than fifteen (15) years, or until a total of $1,625,000,000 in 

resulting revenue has been collected, whichever occurs first, to fund the following projects: 

Project (1) For financing the costs of highways, roads, streets, bridges, and other 

transportation-related projects facilities related thereto including, but not limited to, 

drainage facilities relating to the highways, roads, streets, bridges, and other transportation-

related projects; and mass transit systems operated by Beaufort County or jointly operated 

by the County and other governmental entities $1,540,000,000. 

Project (2) For financing the costs of greenbelts $85,000,000.  

    YES ______ 

    NO _______ 

Instructions to Voters:  All qualified electors desiring to vote in favor of levying the 

    special sales and use tax shall vote “YES;” and 

    All qualified electors opposed to levying the special sales  

    and use tax shall vote “NO.” 

 

QUESTION 2 

 

I approve the issuance of not exceeding $_______________ of general obligation bonds of 

Beaufort County, maturing over a period not to exceed fifteen (15) years and payable from 

the special sales and use tax described in Question 1 above, to fund completion of projects 

from among the categories described in Question 1 above.  

     YES ______ 

     NO _______ 

Instructions to Voters: All qualified electors desiring to vote in favor of the issuance 

bonds for the stated purpose shall vote “YES;” and  

     All qualified electors opposed to the issuance of bonds for  

     the stated purposes shall vote “NO.” 

 

4.3 In the referendum on the imposition of a the Sales and Use Tax in the 

County, all qualified electors desiring to vote in favor of imposing the tax for the stated 

purposes shall vote “yes” and all qualified electors opposed to levying the tax shall vote 

“no”. If a majority of the electors voting in the referendum shall vote in favor of imposing 

the tax, then the tax is imposed as provided in the Act and this Ordinance. Expenses of the 

referendum must be paid by the County.  

128

Item 23.



 

 

4.4 In the referendum on the issuance of bonds, all qualified electors desiring 

to vote in favor of the issuance of bonds for the stated purpose shall vote “yes” and all 

qualified electors opposed to the issuance of bonds shall vote “no”. If a majority of the 

electors voting in the referendum shall vote in favor of the issuance of bonds, then the 

issuance of bonds shall be authorized in accordance with S.C. Constitution Article X, 

Section 14, Paragraph (6). Expenses of the referendum must be paid by the County 

government. 

Section 5.  Imposition of Tax Subject to Referendum. 

The imposition of the Sales and Use Tax in the County is subject in all respects to the 

favorable vote of a majority of qualified electors casting votes in a referendum on the 

question of imposing a sales and use tax in the County area in a referendum to  be conducted 

by the Board of Voter Registration and Elections of Beaufort County on November 5, 2024, 

and the favorable vote of a majority of the qualified electors voting in such a referendum 

shall be a condition precedent to the imposition of a sales and use tax pursuant to the 

provisions of this Ordinance. 

Section 6. Miscellaneous. 

 6.1 If any one or more of the provisions or portions hereof are determined by a 

court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, then that provision or portion shall 

be deemed severable from the remaining terms or portions hereof and the invalidity thereof 

shall in no way affect the validity of the other provisions of this Ordinance; if any 

provisions of this Ordinance shall be held or deemed to be or shall, in fact, be inoperative 

or unenforceable or invalid as applied to any particular case in any jurisdiction or in all 

cases because it conflicts with any constitution or statute or rule of public policy, or for any 

other reason, those circumstances shall not have the effect of rendering the provision in 

question inoperative or unenforceable or invalid in any other case or circumstance, or of 

rendering any other provision or provisions herein contained inoperative or unenforceable 

or invalid to any extent whatever; provided, however that the Sales and Use Tax may not 

be imposed without the favorable results of the referendum to be held on November 5, 

2024.  

 6.2 This Ordinance shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the 

laws of the State of South Carolina and all suits and actions arising out of this Ordinance 

shall be instituted in a court of competent jurisdiction in this State. 

 6.3 The headings or titles of the several sections hereof shall be solely for 

convenience of reference and shall not affect the meaning, construction, interpretations, or 

effect of this Ordinance. 

 6.4 This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon approval following third 

reading. 

129

Item 23.



 

 

 6.5  All previous ordinances regarding the same subject matter as this Ordinance 

are hereby repealed.  

IT IS SO ORDAINED. 

     ________________________________ 

     Joseph Passiment 

     County Council Chairman 

 

____________________________ 

Sarah Brock, Clerk to Council 

  

First Reading: 

 Second Reading: 

 Public Hearing: 

 Third Reading: 

130

Item 23.


	Top
	Item 5.	APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	11.27.2023 Minutes_Draft
	12.11.2023 Special Called Meeting Minutes

	Item 8.	Discussion of 2018 Transportation Sales Tax Project Update
	Agenda Item Summary - Public Facilities 012224 2018 Sales Tax Update (2)

	Item 9.	(JR) Recommend Approval of Contract Award to APAC Atlantic, Inc. of Savannah, GA, for IFB # 042523HXD Taxiway F Rehabilitation and Construction Project ($3,488,760)
	AIS - APAC Atlantic Contract Award - HXD Taxiway F Rehab and Const (1)
	Taxiway F - Project Narrative
	HXD - TWY F Strengthening - Bid tab with cover letter  APAC IFB 042523
	APAC ltr_BidPriceExtensionTo_022924 

	Item 10.	(JR) Recommendation to approve Talbert, Bright and Ellington (TBE) Work Authorization 2119-2302 for Construction Administration and FAA-mandated Resident Project Representative Services
	AIS - TBE WA 2119-2302 - HXD Taxiway F Rehab and Const

	Item 11.	(JR) Recommendation to approve Talbert, Bright and Ellington (TBE) Work Authorization 2119-2304 to prepare an Environmental Assessment in support of the St. James Baptist Church Project. ($366,816)
	AIS - TBE WA 2119-2304 - SJBC EA
	TBE WA 2119-2304 SJBC EA - not signed

	Item 12.	(EL) Recommend Approval of Contract Award to Beaufort Construction of SC, LLC. for IFB #101823 M.C. Riley Pool Enclosure & Climate Control ($2,002,000)
	AIS MC Riley Pool Phase II renovations 01222024_1
	MC Riley Preliminary Bid TabSIGNED

	Item 13.	(JF) AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE INTERIM COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO ENTER INTO A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH THE SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (SCDOT) FOR PROPERTY LOCATED UNDER THE CROSS ISLAND PARKWAY ADJACENT TO THE BROAD CREEK BOAT LANDING PARCEL R552 010 000 0650 0000
	AIS SCDOT Lease agreement for property under Cross Island Bridge (1)
	Ordinance -SCDOT lease for Cross Island Pkwy by Broad Creek Boat Ramp (2)
	Exhibit A SCDOT Lease  Agreement 2024

	Item 14.	(JF) REQUEST TO PURCHASE (1) NEW CAT MODEL: 926 SMALL WHEEL LOADER ($224,402.59)
	AIS - Cat 926 Small Wheel Loader
	Beaufort County Public Works New Cat 926 Wheel Loader 1-18-24
	926 Next Gen

	Item 15.	(JF) RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD TO EUROVIA ATLANTIC DBA BLYTHE FOR IFB #011224E YEAR 7 RESURFACING PROJECT ($5,036,574.54)
	AIS - Public Facilities 012224 Year 7 Resurfacing CEI
	CEI Resurfacing Bid Tab

	Item 16.	(JF) Recommendation to Award Year 7 Resurfacing Construction Management and CEI to Transystems ($196,672.20)
	Agenda Item Summary - Public Facilities 01222024 YEar 7 Resurfacing CEI
	Beaufort Year 7 Paving rev. 12.19.2023

	Item 17.	(JF)Recommendation to Award sole source contract for Year 7 Rejuvenator to Pavement Technology, Inc. ($189,485.93)
	Agenda Item Summary - Public Facilities 01222024 Year 7 Rejuvenator
	2023 Beaufort Co Proposal Year 7
	Nintex Forms for Office O365

	Item 18.	(JF) Recommendation to Award sole source contract for Year 7 Pavement Preservation to Slurry Pavers, Inc. ($632,551.87)
	Agenda Item Summary - Public Facilities 01222024 Year 7 Preservation
	Slurry Pavers - Year 7 Preservation Bid Package
	Nintex Forms for Office O365 (1)

	Item 19.	(JF) Recommendation of award for RFP 102423 Recyclables Processing and Marketing for Beaufort County to i2 Recycle ($1,129,618)
	AIS - Recyclable Materials Processing  Marketing for Beaufort County
	Recyclable Materials Processing & Marketing for Beaufort County - RFP 102423 Summary Report

	Item 20.	(JF) A RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE MILITARY ENHANCEMENT PLAN FUND GRANT FROM THE SOUTH CAROLINA DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS’ AFFAIRS FOR THE AMOUNT OF $3,392,328 FOR THE LAUREL BAY ROAD PATHWAY PROJECT
	AIS - SCDVA Grant Public Facilities 012224 Resolution
	Resolution - Military Enhancement Grant
	Military Enhancement Fund award for Laurel Bay 2022
	Ordinance 2022-26 Pathway funds for Sales Tax

	Item 21.	(JF) RECOMMENDATION OF AWARD TO IPW CONSTRUCTION GROUP FOR IFB #120123E LAUREL BAY RD PATHWAY PROJECT ($4,125,783.99)
	AIS - Public Facilities 012224 Laurel Bay Rd Pathway Project
	Laurel Bay Updated Bid Tab

	Item 22.	Okatie Park Construction
	AIS Okatie River Park const 01222024
	Preliminary Bid Tab Okatie River Park1

	Item 23.	2024 Transportation Sales Tax Referendum
	AIS - TST Ordinance 2024
	66. Resolution Accepting Recommendations of STAC for Implementation of 2024 Sales Tax Program
	Beaufort County Ordinance (with watermark) for Sales Tax Referendum 9030166.2 - Draft 1.01.09.2024

	Bottom

